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1995	 •	 Acquires Mayur Gem and Jewellery Export Private Limited.

2000	� •	 Purchases a 40,000 sq.ft. facility in SEEPZ, Andheri.

2001	 •	 Receives the SEEPZ-SEZ Star 2000-2001 Award. 

2002	 •	 Commences business with Wal-Mart, USA.

2004	� •	 Commences business with Zales Corporation, North America.

2005	� •	 Sets up a 100% EOU having 64,000 sq.ft. facility at Bhavnagar, Gujarat.
	 •	 Receives Wal-Mart’s ‘International Supplier of the Year’ Award.

2006	� •	 GJEPC Award for being the second largest exporter of studded precious metal Jewellery.

2007	 •	� Sets up Renaissance Jewelry New York, Inc.
	 •	 Recognition as Three Star Export House.
	 •	 Completes IPO and shares Listed on BSE & NSE.
	 •	 Sets up Diamond Division at Mumbai.

2008	�� •	 Top line crosses ` 597 crore.
	 •	 GJEPC Award for being the largest exporter of studded precious metal Jewellery.

2009	 •	� Sets up Verigold Jewellery (UK) Ltd.
	 •	 Sets up Renaissance Adrienne LLC, USA.
	 •	 Formation of Renaissance Foundation.
	 •	 Top line crosses ` 750 crore.
	 •	 Receives ‘Emerging India Awards 2009’.

2010	 •	 Sets up Unit V in SEEPZ, Andheri

2011	 •	 Acquires N. Kumar Diamond Exports Ltd. along with its wholly owned subsidiaries.
	 •	 Sets up Renaissance Jewellery Bangladesh Pvt. Ltd.
	 •   Sets up Unit VI in SEEPZ, Andheri
	 •	 Sets up Domestic Division at Mumbai
	 •	 Sets up Diamond Division at Bhavnagar
              •	 Acquires Caro Fine Jewellery Pvt. Ltd.
              •	 GJEPC Award for being the largest exporter of studded precious metal Jewellery.

2012	 •	 GJEPC Award for being the largest exporter of studded precious metal Jewellery.
	 •	 Incorporated Aurell Jewellery LLP.K
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(` Lacs)

2013-14 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11 2009-10

Profit & Loss A/C

Revenues 122216 95193 95162 86218 65348

PBIDT 6209 4626 7088 5143 4358

PAT 2948 1477 3353 3062 2482

Shareholders' fund

Equity Share Capital 1908 1908 1908 1908 1908

Reserves & Surplus 35481 30579 29006 24276 22136

Less : Misc. Expd. 0 0 0 0 0

Total 37389 32487 30914 26184 24044

Loan Fund 34199 24194 27330 28279 13990

Debt-Equity Ratio 0.91:1 0.74:1 0.88:1 1.07:1 0.58:1

Return on Net Worth (%) 7.88 4.55 10.85 11.61 10.32

Earning per share (`) 15.45 7.74 17.40 16.05 13.01

Dividend per share (`) 1.00
(Proposed)

1.00 1.50 2.00 2.00

The above table evaluates our managerial performance verses SENSEX. We have 
used change in per share Book Value instead of change in our stock price because 
year-to-year market prices can be extraordinarily erratic. Even evaluations covering 
as long as a decade can be greatly distorted by foolishly high or low prices at the 
beginning or end of the measurement period. Thus ideal standard for measuring 
yearly progress is change in Renaissance’s per-share book value.  

Note: �The SENSEX numbers are pre-tax whereas the Renaissance numbers are post-
tax. Both these numbers are exclusive of dividend.

Year SENSEX Growth Book 
Value/Share

Growth Difference

1999 3326  6.90   

2000 5001 50.36% 15.47 124.14% 73.78%

2001 3604 -27.93% 20.46 32.26% 60.20%

2002 3469 -3.75% 22.78 11.35% 15.10%

2003 3049 -12.11% 25.56 12.19% 24.30%

2004 5591 83.37% 29.89 16.95% -66.42%

2005 6493 16.13% 35.12 17.50% 1.37%

2006 11280 73.73% 46.44 32.20% -41.52%

2007 13072 15.89% 62.12 33.78% 17.89%

2008 15644 19.68% 104.58 68.35% 48.67%

2009 9709 -37.94% 110.44 5.60% 43.54%

2010 17528 80.53% 126.02 14.11% -66.42%

2011 19445 10.94% 138.23 9.69% -1.25%

2012 17404 -10.50% 164.00 18.64% 29.14%

2013 18836 8.23% 170.27 3.82% -4.41%

2014 22386 18.85% 202.26 18.78% -0.07%

673.12% 2930.72%

 CAGR 16%  CAGR 21%   

Five Years at a Glance (CONSOLIDATED)

Renaissance’s Corporate Performance vs. the SENSEX
Book Value per Share
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE TWENTY 
FIFTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE 
MEMBERS OF RENAISSANCE JEWELLERY LTD. 
WILL BE HELD ON FRIDAY, SEPTEMBER 12, 2014 
AT 3:30 PM AT YUVRAJ HALL, SUPREMO ACTIVITY 
CENTRE, MATOSHREE ARTS & SPORTS TRUST, 
JOGESHWARI-VIKHROLI LINK ROAD, ANDHERI (E), 
MUMBAI–400 093 TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING 
BUSINESS:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.	� To receive, consider and adopt the Audited 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 
March 31, 2014 and the Balance Sheet as at that 
date together with the Reports of the Board of 
Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2.	� To declare dividend for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2014.

3.	� To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Niranjan A. 
Shah (DIN: 00036439), who retires by rotation at 
this Annual General Meeting and being eligible 
has offers himself for re-appointment.

4.	� To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration 
and in this regard to consider and if thought 
fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the 
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

	� “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions 
of Section 139 and other applicable provisions, 
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Rules framed there under, as amended from 
time to time, M/s. J. K. Shah & Co., Chartered 
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 109606W), 
be and is hereby re-appointed as Auditors of the 
Company to hold office from the conclusion of 
this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 
next Annual General Meeting of the Company at 
such remuneration as shall be fixed by the Board 
of Directors of the Company.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

5.	�� To appoint Mr. Veerkumar C. Shah as an 
Independent Director of the Company and to 
consider and if thought fit to pass with or without 
modification(s) the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution:

	� “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions  
of Sections 149, 152 read with Schedule IV  

Notice

and all other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 
2014 (including any statutory modification(s) 
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in 
force) and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, 
Mr. Veerkumar C. Shah (DIN: 00129379), a 
non-executive Director of the Company, who 
has submitted a declaration that he meets the 
criteria for independence as provided in Section 
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and who is 
eligible for appointment and in respect of whom 
the Company has received a notice in writing, 
under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
from a member intending to propose him as a 
candidate for the office of Director, be and is 
hereby appointed as an Independent Director 
of the Company with effect from September 12, 
2014 to hold the office up to conclusion of the 
Annual General Meeting for the Financial Year 
ended March 31, 2019.”

6.	� To appoint Mr. Vishwas V. Mehendale as an 
Independent Director of the Company and 
to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or 
without modification(s) the following resolution 
as an Ordinary Resolution:

	� “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions 
of Sections 149, 152 read with Schedule IV and 
all other applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including 
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment 
thereof for the time being in force) and Clause 49 of 
the Listing Agreement, Mr. Vishwas V. Mehendale 
(DIN: 00094468), a non-executive Director of 
the Company, who has submitted a declaration 
that he meets the criteria for independence as 
provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 
2013 and who is eligible for appointment and 
in respect of whom the Company has received 
a notice in writing, under Section 160 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, from a member intending 
to propose him as a candidate for the office 
of Director, be and is hereby appointed as an 
Independent Director of the Company with effect 
from September 12, 2014 to hold the office up to 
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting for the 
Financial Year ended March 31, 2019.”
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7.	� To appoint Mr. Anil K. Chopra as an  
Independent Director of the Company and 
to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or 
without modification(s) the following resolution 
as an Ordinary Resolution:

	� “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions 
of Sections 149, 152 read with Schedule IV and 
all other applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including 
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment 
thereof for the time being in force) and Clause 
49 of the Listing Agreement, Mr. Anil K. Chopra 
(DIN: 01417814), a non-executive Director of 
the Company, who has submitted a declaration 
that he meets the criteria for independence as 
provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 
2013 and who is eligible for appointment and 
in respect of whom the Company has received 
a notice in writing, under Section 160 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, from a member intending 
to propose him as a candidate for the office 
of Director, be and is hereby appointed as an 
Independent Director of the Company with effect 
from September 12, 2014 to hold the office up to 
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting for the 
Financial Year ended March 31, 2019.”

8.	� To appoint Mr. Arun P. Sathe as an  
Independent Director of the Company and 
to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or 
without modification(s) the following resolution 
as an Ordinary Resolution:

	� “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions 
of Sections 149, 152 read with Schedule IV and 
all other applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including 
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment 
thereof for the time being in force) and Clause 49  
of the Listing Agreement, Mr. Arun P. Sathe 
(DIN: 03092215), a non-executive Director of 
the Company, who has submitted a declaration 
that he meets the criteria for independence as 
provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 
2013 and who is eligible for appointment and 
in respect of whom the Company has received 
a notice in writing, under Section 160 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, from a member intending 
to propose him as a candidate for the office 
of Director, be and is hereby appointed as an 
Independent Director of the Company with effect 

from September 12, 2014 to hold the office up to 
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting for the 
Financial Year ended March 31, 2019.”

9.	� To appoint Dr. Madhavi S. Pethe as an 
Independent Director of the Company and 
to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or 
without modification(s) the following resolution 
as an Ordinary Resolution:

	� “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions  
of Sections 149, 152, 161 read with Schedule IV  
and all other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 
2014 (including any statutory modification(s) 
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in 
force) and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, 
Dr. Madhavi S. Pethe (DIN: 05210916), who 
has submitted a declaration that she meets 
the criteria for independence as provided in 
Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
who is eligible for appointment and in respect 
of whom the Company has received a notice 
in writing, under Section 160 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, from a member  intending to propose 
her as a candidate for the office of Director, be 
and is hereby appointed as an Independent 
Woman Director of the Company with effect 
from September 12, 2014 to hold the office up 
to conclusion of the Annual General Meeting for 
the Financial Year ended March 31, 2019.”

10.	� To re-appoint Mr. Hitesh M. Shah as a  
Whole-time Director designated as Executive 
Director and to consider and if thought fit, 
to pass, with or without modification(s), the 
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

	� “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the 
provisions of Sections 196 and 197 read 
with Schedule V and all other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the Companies (Appointment and Qualification 
of Directors) Rules, 2014 and the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the 
time being in force), approval of the Company 
be and is hereby accorded to the re-appointment 
of Mr. Hitesh M. Shah (DIN: 00036338) as a  
Whole-time Director, designated as Executive 
Director of the Company, liable to retire by 
rotation, for a period of 3 (Three) years with effect 
from January 1, 2014 up to December 31, 2016,  
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on the terms and conditions including  
remuneration as set out in the Statement 
annexed to the Notice convening this Meeting, 
with the authority to the Board of Directors to 
grant increments and to alter and vary from 
time to time, terms and conditions of the said 
remuneration within the range stated therein 
and in such manner as may be agreed to 
between the Board of Directors and Mr. Hitesh 
M. Shah, provided however, the same shall not 
exceed the limits specified under Schedule V 
to the Companies Act, 2013 or any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof;

	 �RESOLVED FURTHER THAT where in any 
financial year during the term of office of  
Mr. Hitesh M. Shah as Executive Director, the 
Company makes no profits or the profits made 
are inadequate, the Company may pay Mr. Hitesh 
M. Shah the remuneration by way of salary and 
perquisites as may be agreed to by the Board of 
Directors and Mr. Hitesh M. Shah, not exceeding 
the limits laid down in Section II of Part II of 
Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 or any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof;

	� RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of 
Directors of the Company be and is hereby 
authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters 
and things as may be necessary, proper or 
expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

11.	� To re-appoint Mr. Neville R. Tata as a Whole-time 
Director designated as Executive Director and 
to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or 
without modification(s), the following resolution 
as an Ordinary Resolution:

	� “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the 
provisions of Sections 196 and 197 read 
with Schedule V and all other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the Companies (Appointment and Qualification 
of Directors) Rules, 2014 and the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the 
time being in force), approval of the Company be 
and is hereby accorded to the re-appointment of 
Mr. Neville R. Tata (DIN: 00036648) as a Whole-
time Director, designated as Executive Director 
of the Company, liable to retire by rotation, for 
a period of 3 (Three) years with effect from 
February 1, 2014 up to January 31, 2017, on the 
terms and conditions including remuneration as 

set out in the Statement annexed to the Notice 
convening this Meeting, with the authority to 
the Board of Directors to grant increments and 
to alter and vary from time to time, terms and 
conditions of the said remuneration within the 
range stated therein and in such manner as may 
be agreed to between the Board of Directors and 
Mr. Neville Tata, provided however, the same shall 
not exceed the limits specified under Schedule 
V to the Companies Act, 2013 or any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof;

	� RESOLVED FURTHER THAT where in a 
ny financial year during the term of office of 
Mr. Neville R. Tata as Executive Director, the 
Company makes no profits or the profits made 
are inadequate, the Company may pay Mr. Neville  
R. Tata the remuneration by way of salary and 
perquisites as may be agreed to by the Board of 
Directors and Mr. Neville R. Tata, not exceeding 
the limits laid down in Section II of Part II of 
Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 or any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof;

	� RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of 
Directors of the Company be and is hereby 
authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters 
and things as may be necessary, proper or 
expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

By order of the Board

Renaissance Jewellery Limited

G. M. Walavalkar
GM – Legal & Company Secretary

Mumbai, August 7, 2014

NOTES

1.	� A Member entitled to attend and vote at the 
meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend 
and vote on poll instead of himself and the 
proxy need not be a Member of the Company. 

	� Proxy Form, in order to be effective, must be 
received at the Company’s Registered Office 
not less than FORTY-EIGHT HOURS before the 
commencement of the meeting. 

	� As per Section 105 of Companies Act, 2013, a 
person can act as a proxy on behalf of members 
not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate 
not more than ten percent of the total share 
capital of the Company carrying voting rights. 
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A member holding more than ten percent of 
the total share capital of the Company carrying 
voting rights may appoint a single person as 
proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy 
for any other person or shareholder. 

	� Corporate members intending to send their 
authorized representatives to attend the Meeting 
are requested to send to the Company a certified 
copy of the Board Resolution authorising their 
representative to attend and vote on their behalf 
at the Meeting.

2.	� As required under Clause 49 of the Listing 
Agreement particulars of Directors seeking 
appointment/re-appointment are annexed with 
this notice.

3.	� A Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, relating to the Special 
Business to be transacted at the Meeting is 
annexed with this notice.

4.	� The Register of Members and the Share 
Transfer Books of the Company will be  
closed from Thursday, September 04, 2014, to 
Friday, September 12, 2014 (both days inclusive) 
for determining the names of members eligible 
for dividend on Equity Shares, if declared at  
the Meeting. 

5.	� The dividend, if declared at the meeting, shall 
be paid within the stipulated period, to those 
members of the Company whose names appear 
on the Register of Members of the Company as 
on Wednesday, September 03, 2014. In respect of 
shares held in dematerialized form, the dividend 
will be paid to the beneficial owners as per details 
furnished by the Depositories for this purpose at 
the close of business hours on day Wednesday, 
September 03, 2014. 

6.	� Members holding shares in dematerialised form 
are requested to intimate all changes pertaining 
to their bank details, National Electronic 
Clearing Service (NECS), Electronic Clearing 
Service (ECS) mandates, nominations, power of 
attorney, change of address, change of name, 
e-mail address, contact numbers, etc., to their 
Depository Participant (DP). Changes intimated 
to the DP will then be automatically reflected 
in the Company’s records which will help the 
Company and the Company’s Registrars and 
Transfer Agents, M/s. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. 
to provide efficient and better services. 

	� The Company or its Registrars and Transfer 
Agents, M/s. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. cannot act 
on any request received directly from the members 
holding shares in dematerialized form for any 
change of bank particulars or bank mandates. 
Such changes are to be advised only to the 
Depository Participant by the members. Members 
holding shares in physical form are requested to 
intimate such changes to M/s. Link Intime India 
Pvt. Ltd. at C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound, 
L.B.S. Marg, Bhandup (West), Mumbai: 400 078.

7.	� The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) 
has mandated the submission of Permanent 
Account Number (PAN) by every participant in 
securities market. Members holding shares in 
dematerialized form are, therefore, requested to 
submit their PAN to their Depository Participants 
with whom they are maintaining their demat 
accounts. Members holding shares in physical 
form can submit their PAN to the Company/ 
M/s. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.

8.	� Members who would like to ask any questions 
on the accounts are requested to send their 
questions to the Registered Office of the 
Company at least 10 days before the Annual 
General Meeting to enable the Company to 
answer their queries satisfactorily.

9.	� Pursuant to Section 101 and Section 136 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, read with relevant rules 
made there under, companies can serve annual 
reports and other communications through 
electronic mode to those members who have 
registered their e-mail address with the Company 
or with the Depository. 

	� In compliance with the said provisions of 
Companies Act, 2013 and to support the  
“GO GREEN” initiative of the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs, Notice convening the Annual General 
Meeting, Financial Statements, Directors’ Report, 
and Auditors’ Report etc. for the year ended 
March 31, 2014, has been sent in electronic form 
to the email address provided by you and made 
available to us by the Depositories. 

	� Physical copies of the Annual Report will be 
available at our registered office for inspection 
during office hour.

	� Members who have not registered their e-mail 
addresses so far are requested to register their 
e-mail address for receiving all communication 
including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars, etc. 
from the Company electronically.
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	� As a measure of economy & environment protection, 
copies of the Annual Report will not be distributed 
at the Annual General Meeting. Members are 
requested to bring the copy of Annual Report of 
the Company at the time of this meeting.

10.	� The Members/proxies should bring the 
attendance slip duly filled in and signed for 
attending the meeting.

11.	E-voting
	 A.	� In compliance with provisions of Section 108 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014 and clause 35B of the listing 
agreement entered with Stock Exchanges, the 
Company is pleased to provide its members, 
the facility to exercise their right to vote at the  
25th Annual General Meeting by electronic 
means. 

		�  For this purpose, the Company has entered 
into an agreement with Central Depository 
Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL) for facilitating 
e-voting to enable the Members to cast their 
votes electronically. 

		�  The business of this Annual General Meeting 
may be transacted through e-voting as per 
details given below:

		  (a)	� Date and time of commencement of 
e-voting:  Saturday, September 06, 2014 
at 9.30 a.m. 

		  (b)	� Date and time of end of e-voting beyond 
which voting will not be allowed: Monday, 
September 08, 2014 at 5.30 p.m. 

			�   The e-voting module shall be disabled 
by CDSL for voting thereafter.

		  (c)	� During this period shareholders’ of 
the Company, holding shares either in 
physical form or in dematerialized form, 
as on the cut-off date Wednesday, 
September 03, 2014 may cast their 
vote electronically irrespective of mode 
of receipt of notice by the shareholder. 

		  (d)	� Details of Website for e-voting:  
www.evotingindia.com 

		  (e)	� Details of Scrutinizer: V. V. Chakradeo 
Practising Company Secretary.  
(COP No. 1705),

			   E-mail: vvchakra@gmail.com
		  (f)	 �Once the vote on a resolution is cast 

by the shareholder, the shareholder 
shall not be allowed to change/modify 
the vote subsequently.

	� The instructions for Members for e-voting are 
as follows:

	 (�Applicable in all cases whether NOTICE is 
received by e-mail or in physical form)

	 (i)	� Log on to the e-voting website  
www.evotingindia.com during the voting 
period

	 (ii)	 Click on “Shareholders” tab.
	 (iii)	 Now Enter your User ID as under:
		  a. 	� For CDSL: enter 16 digits beneficiary ID,
 		  b.	� For NSDL: enter 8 Character DP ID 

followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
 		  c.	� Members holding shares in Physical 

Form should enter their Folio Number 
registered with the Company.

	 (iv)	� Next enter the Image Verification  
as displayed on the screen and Click  
on Login.

	 (v)	� Now enter your password as under:
		  (a)	� If you are holding shares in 

demat form and had logged on to  
www.evotingindia.com and voted on 
an earlier voting of any other company, 
then your existing password is to be 
used.

		  (b)	� If you are a first time user, then follow 
the steps given below:

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN 
issued by Income Tax Department 
(Applicable for both demat shareholders 
as well as physical shareholders)
– �Members who have not updated their PAN 

with the Company/ Depository Participant 
are requested to use the first two letters of 
their name and the last 8 digits of the demat 
account/ folio number in the PAN field

– �In case the folio number is less than 8 
digits enter the applicable number of 
0’s before the number after the first 
two characters of the name in CAPITAL 
letters. Eg. If your name is Ramesh 
Kumar with folio number 100 then enter 
RA00000100 in the PAN field.

DOB# Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your 
demat account or in the Company records, 
for the said demat account or folio in  
dd/mm/yyyy format.

Dividend 
Bank 
Details#

Enter the Dividend Bank Details as 
recorded in your demat account or in 
the Company records, for the said demat 
account or folio. 

# �Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank Details 
in order to login. If the details are not recorded 
with the depository or Company, please enter the 
number of shares held by you as on the cut off 
date i.e. Wednesday, September 03, 2014 in the 
Dividend Bank details field.
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	 (vi)	� After entering these details appropriately, 
click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

	 (vii)	� Members holding shares in physical form will 
then reach directly to the Company selection 
screen. However, members holding shares 
in demat form will now reach ‘Password 
Creation’ menu wherein they are required 
to mandatory enter their login password in 
the new password field. Kindly note that this 
password is also to be used by the demat 
holders for voting for resolutions of any 
other company(s) on which they are eligible 
to vote, provided that Company opts for 
e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly 
recommended not to share your password 
with any other person and take utmost care 
to keep your password confidential.

	 (viii)	�For Members holding shares in physical 
form, these details can be used only for 
e-voting on the resolutions contained in this 
Notice.

	 (ix)	� Click on the EVSN for RENAISSANCE 
JEWELLERY LIMITED, on which you 
choose to vote.

	 (x)	� On the voting page, you will see 
“RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against 
the same the option “YES/NO” for voting. 
Select the option YES or NO as desired. 

		�  The option YES implies that you assent to 
the Resolution and option NO implies that 
you dissent to the Resolution.

	 (xi)	� Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK”, 
if you wish to view the entire Resolution 
details.

	 (xii)	� After selecting the resolution you have 
decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. 
A confirmation box will be displayed.  
If you wish to confirm your vote, click 
on “OK”, else to change your vote,  
click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify 
your vote.

	 (xiii)	�Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the 
resolution, you will not be allowed to modify 
your vote.

	 (xiv)	�You can also take out print of the voting 
done by you by clicking on “Click here to 
print” option on the Voting page.

	 (xv)	� If Demat account holder has forgotten the 
changed password then Enter the User ID 
and the image verification code and click 
on Forgot Password & enter the details as 
prompted by the system.

	 (xvi)	�Note for Non-Individual Shareholders and 
Custodians: 

		  –	� Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other 
than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and 
Custodian are required to log on to 
www.evotingindia.com and register 
themselves as Corporates.

		  –	� A scanned copy of the Registration 
Form bearing the stamp and sign 
of the entity should be emailed to  
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

		  –	� After receiving the login details they 
have to create a compliance user should 
be created using the admin login and 
password. The Compliance user would 
be able to link the account(s) for which 
they wish to vote on.

		  –	� The list of accounts should be mailed to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and 
on approval of the accounts they would 
be able to cast their vote.

		  –	� A scanned copy of the Board Resolution 
and Power of Attorney (POA) which they 
have issued in favour of the Custodian, 
if any, should be uploaded in PDF 
format in the system for the scrutinizer 
to verify the same.

	 �In case you have any queries or issues regarding 
e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked 
Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual 
available at www.evotingindia.com under help  
section or write an email to  
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

	 B.	� In terms of Clause 35B of the Listing 
Agreement, to enable the members, who do 
not have access to e-voting facility, a Ballot 
Form is attached with this Annual Report. 

		�  Members desiring to exercise vote by the 
Ballot Form, are requested to carefully 
read the instructions printed in the Ballot 
Form and to complete the said Form with 
assent (for) or dissent (against) in respect 
of resolution listed in this Form and then 
send it to Mr. V. V. Chakradeo, Scrutinizer,  
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C/o Link Intime India Private Limited,  
Unit: Renaissance Jewellery Limited, C-13, 
Pannalal Silk Mills Compound, L.B.S. 
Marg, Bhandup (West), Mumbai-400 078,  
Tel. No: 022-25946970, Fax No : 022- 25962691, 
E-mail: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in, so 
as to reach him on or before 5.30 p.m. on 
Monday, September 08, 2014. 

		�  Any Ballot Form received after the said 
date shall be treated as if the reply from the 
Members has not been received.

		�  In light of the recent judgment of the 
Bombay High Court, until clarity is available, 
members who have not voted electronically 
or sent ballot form, will be permitted to 
deposit the filled in Ballot Forms, physically 
at the Annual General Meeting to enable 
them to exercise their vote.

	 C.	� Members can request for a Ballot Form 
at Link Intime India Private Limited, Unit: 
Renaissance Jewellery Limited, C-13, 
Pannalal Silk Mills Compound, L.B.S. Marg,  
Bhandup (West), Mumbai-400 078 or they  
may also address their request through 
e-mail to: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in. 
Contact No.:022-25946970.

		�  In case of voting by physical ballot, the 
institutional members (i. e. other than 
individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to 
send a copy of the relevant Board Resolution/
Authority Letter etc. together with attested 
specimen signature of the duly authorized 
signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, 
to the Scrutinizer along with the Ballot Form  
so as to reach the Scrutinizer on or before 
5.30 p.m. on Monday, September 08, 2014.

	 D.	� Members have option to vote either through 
e-voting or through physical Ballot Form. 

		�  Members can opt for only one mode of 
voting i.e. either by e-voting or thought 
physical ballot. If Members opt for e-voting 
then he/she/it shall not vote by Physical 
Ballot or vice versa. 

		�  However, in case Members cast their vote 
both by e-voting and Physical Ballot, then 
voting done through e-voting shall prevail 
and voting done by Physical Ballot will be 
treated as invalid.

	 E.	� In terms of the provisions of Section 107 
of the Companies Act, 2013, since the 
resolutions as set out in this Notice are 
being conducted through e-voting or 
physical Ballot, the said resolutions will  
not be decided on a show of hands at  
the AGM.

		�  The voting right of all shareholders shall  
be in proportion to their share in the paid 
up equity.

12.	� The Scrutinizer will scrutinize the voting process 
(both e-voting and voting by physical ballot) 
in a fair and transparent manner. 

	� The Scrutinizer shall within a period not exceeding 
three (3) working days from the conclusion of the  
e-voting period unblock the votes in the 
presence of at least two (2) witnesses not in 
the employment of the Company and make a 
Scrutinizer’s Report of the votes cast in favor 
or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman of  
the Company. 

	� The results shall be declared on or after the  
AGM of the Company. The results declared along 
with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be available on 
the Company’s website www.renjewllery.com 
within two (2) days of passing of the resolution 
at the AGM of the Company and communicated 
to the stock exchange.

13.	� The shareholders can also access the  
Annual Report 2013-14 of the Company circulated 
to the Members of the Company and other 
information about the Company on Company’s 
website, i.e., www.renjewellery.com or on  
Stock Exchange websites, which are  
www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com.

By order of the Board

Renaissance Jewellery Limited

G. M. Walavalkar
GM – Legal & Company Secretary

Mumbai, August 7, 2014
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The following Statement sets out all material facts 
relating to the Special Business mentioned in the 
accompanying Notice:

Item Nos. 5 to 8

The Company, in pursuance of Clause 49 of 
the Listing Agreements entered with the Stock 
Exchanges, which requires at least 50% of the  
Board should comprise of Independent Directors, 
if the Chairman of the Board is an Executive 
Chairman, had appointed Mr. Veerkumar C. Shah,  
Mr. Vishwas V. Mehendale, Mr. Anil K. Chopra and  
Mr. Arun P. Sathe, as Independent Directors at 
various times.

Now, Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
which came in to effect from April 1, 2014, requires  
every listed public Company to have at least 
one-third of the total number of directors as 
independent directors, who are not liable to retire 
by rotation, hence the resolutions for appointment of  
Independent Directors. 

It is proposed to appoint Mr. Veerkumar C. Shah, 
Mr. Vishwas V. Mehendale, Mr. Anil K. Chopra and 
Mr. Arun P. Sathe as Independent Directors under 
Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and  
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement to hold office  
for 5 (five) consecutive years with effect from 
September 12, 2014 up to conclusion of the  
Annual General Meeting for the Financial year ended 
March 31, 2019, who will not be liable to retire  
by rotation.

Mr. Veerkumar C. Shah, Mr. Vishwas V. Mehendale, 
Mr. Anil K. Chopra and Mr. Arun P. Sathe are not 
disqualified from being appointed as Directors in 
terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and have given their consent to act as Directors. 
The Company has received notices in writing from 
a member intending to propose them as candidates 
for the office of Director of the Company, along with 
the deposit of requisite amount under Section 160 of 
the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has also received declarations from 
Mr. Veerkumar C. Shah, Mr. Vishwas V. Mehendale, 
Mr. Anil K. Chopra and Mr. Arun P. Sathe that they 
meet with the criteria of independence as prescribed 

both under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and under Clause 49 of the 
Listing Agreement. 

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Veerkumar C. Shah, 
Mr. Vishwas V. Mehendale, Mr. Anil K. Chopra and  
Mr. Arun P. Sathe fulfill the conditions for appointment 
as Independent Directors as specified in the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreement. 

Mr. Veerkumar C. Shah, Mr. Vishwas V. Mehendale, 
Mr. Anil K. Chopra and Mr. Arun P. Sathe are 
independent of the management of the Company. 

Brief resume of Mr. Veerkumar C. Shah, Mr. Vishwas 
V. Mehendale, Mr. Anil K. Chopra and Mr. Arun P. 
Sathe, nature of their expertise in specific functional 
areas and names of companies in which they hold 
Directorships and Membership/Chairmanship of 
Board Committees, as stipulated under Clause 49 
of the Listing Agreement entered with the Stock 
Exchanges are provided as an annexure to this 
Notice of Annual General Meeting.

Copy of the draft letters for respective appointments 
of Mr. Veerkumar C. Shah, Mr. Vishwas V. Mehendale, 
Mr. Anil K. Chopra and Mr. Arun P. Sathe as 
Independent Directors setting out the terms and 
conditions are available for inspection by members 
at the Registered Office of the Company.

This Statement may also be regarded as a disclosure 
under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the 
Stock Exchanges. 

Mr. Veerkumar C. Shah, Mr. Vishwas V. Mehendale, 
Mr. Anil K. Chopra and Mr. Arun P. Sathe are interested 
in the resolutions set out respectively at Item  
Nos. 5 to 8 of the Notice with regard to their respective 
appointments. 

The relatives of Mr. Veerkumar C. Shah, Mr. Vishwas V. 
Mehendale, Mr. Anil K. Chopra and Mr. Arun P. Sathe 
may be deemed to be interested in the resolutions 
set out respectively at Item Nos. 5 to 8 of the Notice, 
to the extent of their shareholding interest, if any, in 
the Company.

Save and except the above, none of the other 
Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/ 
their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in these resolutions.

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“the Act”)
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The Board commends the Ordinary Resolutions set 
out at Item Nos. 5 to 8 of the Notice for approval by 
the shareholders.

Item No. 9

As per the requirement of second proviso to  
Section 149 (1) of Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) 
read with Rule 3 of Companies (Appointment and 
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and amended 
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, every listed 
public company should have at least one woman 
director on its Board of Directors. 

Keeping in view the above legal requirements 
and pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of 
Association of the Company, the Board of Directors 
have, at its meeting held on August 7, 2014, on the 
recommendation made by the Remuneration and 
Nomination Committee at its meeting held on the 
same day, appointed Dr. Madhavi S. Pethe, as an 
additional director designated as an Independent 
Non-Executive Woman Director of the Company, 
who shall hold office up to the date of this annual 
general meeting.

It is proposed to appoint Dr. Madhavi S. Pethe, as 
an additional director designated as an Independent 
Non-Executive Woman Director of the Company 
under Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement to hold office  
for 5 (five) consecutive years with effect from 
September 12, 2014 to hold the office up to conclusion 
of the Annual General Meeting for the Financial Year 
ended March 31, 2019, who will not be liable to retire  
by rotation. 

Dr. Madhavi S. Pethe is not disqualified from being 
appointed as Director, in terms of Section 164 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and have given her consent to 
act as Director of the Company. The Company has 
received notice in writing from a member intending 
to propose her as candidate for the office of  
Director of the Company, along with the deposit  
of requisite amount under Section 160 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has also received declarations  
from Dr. Madhavi S. Pethe, that she meet with the 
criteria of independence as prescribed both under  
sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. 
In the opinion of the Board, Dr. Madhavi S. Pethe 
fulfills the conditions for appointment as Independent 

Non-Executive Woman Director as specified in the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreement. 

Dr. Madhavi S. Pethe is independent of the 
management of the Company. 

Brief resume of Dr. Madhavi S. Pethe, nature of her 
expertise in specific functional areas and names 
of companies in which she hold Directorships and 
Membership/Chairmanship of Board Committees, as 
stipulated under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement 
entered with the Stock Exchanges are provided as 
an annexure to this Notice of AGM.

Copy of the draft letter for appointment of  
Dr. Madhavi S. Pethe as Independent Director 
setting out the terms and conditions are available  
for inspection by members at the Registered Office 
of the Company.

This Statement may also be regarded as a disclosure 
under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the 
Stock Exchanges. 

Dr. Madhavi S. Pethe is interested in the resolution 
set out at Item No. 9 of the Notice with regard to her 
appointment. 

The relatives of Dr. Madhavi S. Pethe may be deemed 
to be interested in the resolution set out at Item No. 
9 of the Notice, to the extent of their shareholding 
interest, if any, in the Company.

Save and except the above, none of the other 
Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/ 
their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in these resolutions.

The Board commends the Ordinary Resolutions set 
out at Item No. 9 of the Notice for approval by the 
shareholders.

Item No. 10

Mr. Hitesh M. Shah was re-appointed as Executive 
Director of the Company for a period of five years 
from January 1, 2009 to December 31, 2013. The 
appointment of Mr. Hitesh M. Shah as Executive 
Director and also the remuneration payable to him 
was approved by the members at the Annual General 
Meeting held on August 28, 2009.

Since the term of Mr. Hitesh M. Shah was ended 
on December 31, 2013, the Board of Directors at its 
meeting held on January 31, 2014 had, subject to 
the approval of the members, re-appointed him as 
Director in whole time service to be designated as 
the Executive Director of the Company. 
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However, consequent to the enactment of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules relating to  
the appointment and remuneration of directors, 
w.e.f. April 1, 2014, the Board at its meeting held on  
August 7, 2014 has modified the terms of  
re-appointment of Mr. Shah, to comply/align with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules 
thereof.

Considering his extensive knowledge, business 
skills, managerial experience and capabilities, the 
Board of Directors of the Company, in accordance 
with the provision of Sections 196 and 197 read 
with Schedule V and other applicable provisions, 
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, by passing  
a resolution at its meeting held on August 7, 
2014, on the recommendation made by the  
Remuneration and Nomination Committee at its 
meeting held on the same day, re-appointed him as 
the Executive Director in the whole time employment 
of the Company for a further period of 3 years 
effective January 01, 2014 up to December 31, 
2016, subject to your approval, on the terms and 
conditions, including minimum remuneration, as 
detailed hereinafter:

The range of remuneration ̀  1,25,000/- to ̀  10,00,000/-  
per month.

The aforesaid remuneration is to be bifurcated by 
way of salary, allowances, performance pay and the 
following perquisites, as per the rules and regulations 
of the Company for the time being in force and as 
determined by the Board:

1.	� Company car with Driver at the entire cost of the 
Company for use on Company’s business. Use 
of the car for personal use shall be billed by the 
Company.

2.	� Any one Club life membership fee on Company’s 
account. 

3.	� All expenses for use of mobile phone at the cost 
of the Company.

4.	� Contribution to Provident Fund, Superannuation 
Fund or Annuity Fund to the extent that these 
either singly or put together are not taxable 
under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

5.	� Gratuity Payable at a rate not exceeding half 
a month’s salary for each completed year of 
service.

6. 	� The Executive Director to devote his full time and 
attention to the business of the Company.

7. 	� The Agreement may be terminated by the 
Company or the Executive Director by three 
months prior notice in writing to the other.

However, Mr. Hitesh M. Shah shall not be entitled to 
any sitting fee for attending meetings of the Board and/ 
or Committee of Board of Directors. So long as  
Mr. Hitesh M. Shah continues to act as Director in 
the Whole-time employment of the Company, his 
office shall be liable to determination by retirement 
of Directors by rotation.

Authority is also being sought to be conferred on 
the Board to make such alterations or variations 
in the perquisites of Mr. Hitesh M. Shah during 
his tenure as Executive Director, as it deemed 
fit and as acceptable to him but within the limits 
specified in Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.  
Authority is also being sought to the payment of 
remuneration by the Company to Mr. Shah, by 
way of salary and perquisites not exceeding the  
limits stated in Section II of Part II of Schedule V 
to the Companies Act, 2013, if, in any financial 
year during his term of office as Executive Director,  
the Company makes no profits or the profits made 
are inadequate.

The Whole-time Director shall act in accordance with 
the Articles of Association of the Company and shall 
abide by the provisions contained in Section 166 
of the Companies Act, 2013 with regard to duties  
of Directors.

The Whole-time Director shall adhere to the RJL 
Code of Conduct and Ethical Policies for Directors 
and Management Personnel.

Mr. Hitesh M. Shah satisfy all the conditions set out 
in Part-I of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 
as also conditions set out under sub-section (3) of 
Section 196 of the Companies Act, 2013 for being 
eligible for his re-appointment. 

Mr. Shah is not disqualified from being appointed  
as Director in terms of Section 164 of the  
Companies Act, 2013. 

The above may be treated as a written memorandum 
setting out the terms of re-appointment of  
Mr. Hitesh M. Shah under Section 190 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Brief resume of Mr. Shah, nature of his expertise in 
specific functional areas and names of companies 
in which he hold Directorships and Membership/
Chairmanship of Board Committees, as stipulated 
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under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered 
with the Stock Exchanges, are provided as an 
annexure to this Notice of Annual General Meeting.

Board considers that the re-appointment of  
Mr. Hitesh M. Shah will be in the best interests of the 
Company and therefore, recommends passing of the 
aforesaid Ordinary Resolution at Item No. 10 of this 
Notice. The approval of the members is necessary in 
view of the provisions of Part II of Schedule V to the  
Companies Act, 2013.

Mr. Hitesh M. Shah is interested in the resolution set 
out at Item No. 9 of the notice with regard to his  
re-appointment.

The relatives of Mr. Shah may be deemed to be 
interested in the resolution set out at Item Nos. 9 
of the Notice, to the extent of their shareholding 
interest, if any, in the Company.

Save and except the above, none of the other 
Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/
their relatives, are, in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in this resolution.

ITEM NO. 11

Mr. Neville R. Tata was re-appointed as Executive 
Director of the Company for a period of five years 
from February 1, 2009 to January 31, 2014. The 
appointment of Mr. Neville R. Tata as Executive 
Director and also the remuneration payable to him 
was approved by the members at the Annual General 
Meeting held on August 28, 2009.

Since the term of Mr. Neville R. Tata was ended 
on January 31, 2014, the Board of Directors at its 
meeting held on January 31, 2014 had, subject to 
the approval of the members; re-appointed him as 
Director in whole time service to be designated as 
the Executive Director of the Company. 

However, consequent to the enactment of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules relating to 
the appointment and remuneration of directors,  
w.e.f. April 1, 2014, the Board at its meeting held 
on August 7, 2014 has modified the terms of  
re-appointment of Mr. Tata, to comply/align with 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the  
rules thereof.

Considering his extensive knowledge, business 
skills, managerial experience and capabilities, the 
Board of Directors of the Company, in accordance 
with the provision of Sections 196 and 197 read 

with Schedule V and other applicable provisions, 
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, by passing a 
resolution at its meeting held on August 7, 2014, 
on the recommendation made by the Remuneration 
and Nomination Committee at its meeting held  
on the same day, has re-appointed Mr. Tata as the 
Executive Director in the whole time employment  
of the Company for a further period of 3 years  
effective February 1, 2014 up to January 31, 
2017, subject to your approval, on the terms and 
conditions, including minimum remuneration, as 
detailed hereinafter:

The range of remuneration ̀  2,50,000/- to ̀  10,00,000/-  
per month.

The aforesaid remuneration is to be bifurcated by 
way of salary, allowances, performance pay and the 
following perquisites, as per the rules and regulations 
of the Company for the time being in force and as 
determined by the Board:

1.	� Company car with Driver at the entire cost of the 
Company for use on Company’s business. Use 
of the car for personal use shall be billed by the 
Company.

2.	� Any one Club life membership fee on Company’s 
account.

3.	� All expenses for use of mobile phone at the cost 
of the Company.

4.	� Contribution to Provident Fund, Superannuation 
Fund or Annuity Fund to the extent that these 
either singly or put together are not taxable 
under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

5.	� Gratuity Payable at a rate not exceeding half 
a month’s salary for each completed year of 
service.

6. 	� The Executive Director to devote his full time and 
attention to the business of the Company.

7. 	� The Agreement may be terminated by the 
Company or the Executive Director by three 
months prior notice in writing to the other.

However, Mr. Neville R. Tata shall not be entitled to 
any sitting fee for attending meetings of the Board  
and/or Committee of Board of Directors. So long as  
Mr. Neville R. Tata continues to act as Director in 
the Whole-time employment of the Company, his 
office shall be liable to determination by retirement 
of Directors by rotation.
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Authority is also being sought to be conferred on 
the Board to make such alterations or variations 
in the perquisites of Mr. Neville R. Tata during his 
tenure as Executive Director, as it deemed fit and as 
acceptable to him but within the limits specified in 
Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013. Authority 
is also being sought to the payment of remuneration 
by the Company to Mr. Tata, by way of salary  
and perquisites not exceeding the limits stated  
in Section II of Part II of Schedule V to the  
Companies Act, 2013, if, in any financial year during 
his term of office as Executive Director, the Company 
makes no profits or the profits made are inadequate.

The Whole-time Director shall act in accordance with 
the Articles of Association of the Company and shall 
abide by the provisions contained in Section 166 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 with regard to duties of 
Directors.

The Whole-time Director shall adhere to the RJL 
Code of Conduct and Ethical Policies for Directors 
and Management Personnel.

Mr. Neville R. Tata satisfy all the conditions set out 
in Part-I of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 
as also conditions set out under sub-section (3) of 
Section 196 of the Companies Act, 2013 for being 
eligible for his re-appointment. 

Mr. Tata is not disqualified from being appointed  
as Director in terms of Section 164 of the  
Companies Act, 2013.

The above may be treated as a written memorandum 
setting out the terms of re-appointment of  
Mr. Neville R. Tata under Section 190 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Brief resume of Mr. Tata, nature of his expertise in 
specific functional areas and names of companies 
in which he hold Directorships and Membership/
Chairmanship of Board Committees, as stipulated 
under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered 
with the Stock Exchanges are provided as an 
annexure to this Notice of Annual General Meeting.

Board considers that the re-appointment of  
Mr. Neville R. Tata will be in the best interests of the 
Company and therefore, recommends passing of the 
aforesaid Ordinary Resolution at Item No. 11 of this 
Notice. The approval of the members is necessary in 
view of the provisions of Part II of Schedule V to the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Mr. Neville R. Tata is interested in the resolution set 
out at Item No. 11 of the notice with regard to his 
appointment. 

The relatives of Mr. Tata may be deemed to be 
interested in the resolution set out at Item No. 11 
of the Notice, to the extent of their shareholding 
interest, if any, in the Company.

Save and except the above none of the other 
Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/
their relatives, are, in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in this resolution.

By order of the Board

Renaissance Jewellery Limited

G. M. Walavalkar
GM – Legal & Company Secretary

Mumbai, August 7, 2014
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Dear Members,

The Directors take great pleasure in presenting the 
25th report on the business and operations of your 
Company along with the Annual Report and Audited 
Financial Statements for the Financial Year 2013-14.

Financial Highlights

Your Company earned a Profit Before Tax (PBT) of  
` 328 million, as compared to PBT of ` 196 million 
in the previous year. 

Highlights of the financial performance (Standalone) 
are as follows: 

(` in million)

F.Y. 2013-14 F.Y. 2012-13

Sales 9823 7190

Gross Profit 693 545

PBID 478 361

Less : Interest 81 96

Less : Depreciation 69 68

PBT 328 196

Provision for Tax 57 62

PAT 271 134

Add : Balance brought 
forward from P.Y. 2048 1941

Profit available for 
appropriation 2319 2073

Appropriations:

Transfer to Reserve Fund 
General Reserve 7 3

Dividend on Equity Shares 19 19

Corporate Dividend Tax 3 3

Balance carried forward 2290 2048

The consolidated revenue from operations of the 
Company for the year ended March 31, 2014 
was ` 12221.60 million (P.Y. ` 9519.27 million), 
an increase of 28.38% on a year-on-year basis.  

An earnings before interest, tax, depreciation  
and amortization (EBITDA) was ` 620.93 million  
(P.Y. ` 462.61 million) an increase of 34.22% on  
a year-on-year basis. Profit after tax (PAT) was 
` 294.83 million (P.Y. ` 147.70 million) an increase of 
99.61% on a year-on-year basis.

A detailed analysis of the financials is given in the 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report that 
forms part of this Annual Report. 

Dividend

The Directors recommend a dividend of 10% i.e. ` 1/- 
per share (last year ` 1/- per equity share), subject 
to approval of the shareholders at the ensuing  
25th Annual General Meeting. The total outgo on 
account of dividend amounts to ` 19.08 million.

The dividend, if declared at the meeting, shall be paid 
within the stipulated period, to those members of 
the Company whose names appear on the Register 
of Members of the Company as on September 12, 
2014. In respect of shares held in Electronic form, 
the dividend will be paid to the beneficial owners 
as per details furnished by the Depositories for  
this purpose at the close of business hours on 
September 3, 2014.

Subsidiaries

As on signing date of this report your Company  
had following direct and indirect subsidiary 
companies/LLP:

Direct Subsidiary Companies:

1.	 Renaissance Jewelry New York Inc., USA

2.	 Verigold Jewellery (UK) Ltd., London

3.	 N. Kumar Diamond Exports Limited, India

4.	 Renaissance Jewellery Bangladesh Pvt. Ltd., 
Bangladesh 

Indirect (Step-down) Subsidiary Companies:

1.	 House Full International Ltd., India (Subsidiary of 
N. Kumar Diamond Exports Limited)

2.	 House Full Supply Chain Management Ltd., India 
(Subsidiary of House Full International Ltd.)

Directors’ Report
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Limited Liability Partnership:

1.	 Aurelle Jewellery LLP, India

Financial statements/reports of the subsidiaries:
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of 
India, vide General Circular No. 2 and 3 dated 
February 8, 2011 and February 21, 2011 respectively 
has granted a general exemption from compliance 
with Section 212 of the Companies Act, 1956, 
subject to fulfillment of conditions stipulated in the 
said circulars. The Company has complied with the 
conditions stipulated in these circulars and hence is 
entitled to the exemption from attaching the Directors’ 
Report, Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account 
of its subsidiaries to the Annual Report 2013-14 of 
the Company.

Accordingly, the financial statements of the 
subsidiaries of the Company are not attached to 
the Annual Report of the Company. The Company 
undertakes that the financial statements of the 
subsidiary companies for the year ended March 31,  
2014 will be made available to the members on 
request at the Registered Office of the Company and 
the same will be kept open for inspection by any 
member during the office hours of the Company.

Necessary information relating to the subsidiaries 
has been included in the Consolidated Financial 
Statements attached with the Annual Report  
2013-14 of the Company.

The Employee Stock Purchase Scheme

Your Company, through RJL Employee Welfare 
Trust (ESPS Trust), has offered the ESPS shares to 
the recommended employees under the Tranch – I 
and Tranch – II of RJL Employees’ Stock Purchase 
Scheme – 2008 (RJL ESPS - 2008). 

Following is the status of the RJL ESPS – 2008 as on 
August 07, 2014:

Particulars Number of Shares

Shares allotted to ESPS Trust 7,20,000

Tranch – I Tranch - II
Shares offered to recommended 
employees by ESPS Trust 6,17,500 2,57,490
Shares transferred back to ESPS 
Trust due to non-acceptance/
disqualification 1,55,000 3,000

4,62,500 2,54,490 7,16,990
Shares acquired by employees: 58,334 9,220
Shares transferred back to ESPS 
Trust due to Surrender/lapse 4,04,166 2,03,260 6,07,426
Balance shares to be acquired 
by the employees 0 42,010
Balance shares with ESPS 
Trust to offer 6,10,436

The Company has not issued shares equal to or 
exceeding 1% of the issued capital to any of the 
identified employee during the financial year under 
consideration. 

The Company had opted for trust route for offering 
ESPS and 720000 shares were issued to the Trust in 
F.Y. 2008-09 for onward offering to the recommended 
employees. Hence, basic and Diluted Earning Per 
Share (EPS) is ` 14.21.

Awards/Recognition

Your Company has always strived for the best quality 
and designs and has been consistently receiving 
recognition by various Trade Organizations and 
Councils, for its’ performance and achievements.

Following are some of the awards/recognition 
received by the Company in the past:

	 SEEPZ-SEZ Star 2000-2001 Award 

	 Wal-Mart’s ‘International Supplier of the Year’ 
Award 

	 GJEPC Award for being the largest exporter of 
studded precious metal Jewellery in 2008

	 Emerging India Awards 2009

	 GJEPC Award for topping the export performance 
under the category “Studded Precious Metal 
Jewellery Exports from EPZ/EOU Complexes”  
in 2011

	 GJEPC Award for outstanding Export Performance 
under the category “Studded Precious Metal 
Jewellery Exports”, in 2012

Corporate Governance

The Company has taken appropriate steps and 
measures to comply with all the applicable provisions 
of Clause 49 and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 
2013. A separate report on Corporate Governance, 
along with a certificate of Practicing Company 
Secretary of the Company, is annexed herewith. 
A certificate from the Managing Director and CFO 
of the Company confirming internal controls and 
checks pertaining to financial statements for the year 
ended March 31, 2014 was placed before the Board 
of Directors and the Board has noted the same. 
A list of the committees of the Board and names 
of their members and the scope of each of these 
committees and other related information is detailed 
in the enclosed Corporate Governance Report.



Renaissance Jewellery Limited

D
IR

E
C

TO
R

S
’ 

R
E

P
O

R
T 

(P
g

. 
14

 t
o

 1
8)

16

Cash Flow Statement

In conformity with the provisions of Clause 32 of the 
listing agreement with Stock Exchanges, the cash 
flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2014  
is annexed hereto.

Consolidated Accounts

In accordance with the requirements of Accounting 
Standards AS-21 prescribed by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India, the Consolidated 
Accounts of the Company and its subsidiary is 
annexed to this Report.

Listing

At present 19,079,440 Equity Shares of the Company 
are listed on the BSE and NSE. The Company has paid 
the applicable listing fees to these Stock Exchanges 
for the financial year 2014-15. The Company’s 
shares are tradable compulsorily in electronic form 
and the Company has established connectivity 
with both the depositories, i.e. Central Depository 
Services (India) Ltd. & National Securities Depository 
Ltd. In view of the numerous advantages offered 
by the depository system, members are requested 
to avail of the facility of dematerialization of the 
Company’s shares on either of the Depositories as  
aforesaid.

Your Company has fully complied with the SEBI 
Circular – Cir/ISD/3/2011, dated June 17, 2011 by 
achieving 100% of promoter’s and promoter group’s 
shareholding in dematerialized form. Therefore, the 
securities of companies are traded in the normal 
segment of the Exchanges. 

Human Resources

Employees are the key assets of the Company and 
the Company has created a healthy and productive 
work environment which encourages excellence.  
Your Company has put in place a scalable  
requirement and human resource management 
process, which enables it to attract and retain employees 
of the high caliber. The Company continuously invests 
in training staff in the latest technology. 

Directors

As per the requirement of second proviso to  
Section 149 (1) of Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) 
read with Rule 3 of Companies (Appointment and 
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and amended 

Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement and pursuant  
to the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of the 
Company, the Board of Directors at their meeting  
held on August 7, 2014, on the recommendation made 
by the Remuneration and Nomination Committee at 
its meeting held on the same day, has appointed 
Dr. Madhavi S. Pethe, as an Additional Director 
designated as an Independent non-executive Woman 
Director of the Company, who shall hold office up to 
the date of this Annual General Meeting.

The Company had, pursuant to the provisions of 
clause 49 of the Listing Agreements entered into with 
Stock Exchanges, appointed Mr. Veerkumar C. Shah, 
Mr. Vishwas V. Mehendale, Mr. Anil K. Chopra and 
Mr. Arun P. Sathe, as Independent Directors of the 
Company.

As per Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(Act), which came into effect from April 1, 2014, 
every listed public company is required to have at 
least one-third of the total number of Directors as 
Independent Directors.

In accordance with the provisions of section 149 
of the Act, these Directors are being appointed as 
Independent Directors to hold office as per their 
tenure of appointment mentioned in the Notice of 
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting (AGM) of 
the Company.

Mr. Niranjan A. Shah, Executive Chairman, retires  
by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, 
and being eligible, offer himself for re-appointment. 

The Board recommends appointment(s)/ 
re-appointment of these Director(s). 

Brief resume of the Directors proposed to be  
appointed/re-appointed, nature of their expertise in 
specific functional areas and names of companies 
in which they hold Directorships and Membership/
Chairmanship of Board Committees, as stipulated 
under the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges 
are provided in the Notice forming part of this  
Annual Report.

The Company has received declarations from all  
the Independent Directors of the Company  
confirming that they meet with the criteria of 
independence as prescribed both under sub-section 
(6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the 
Stock Exchanges.



Annual Report 2013-14

D
IR

E
C

TO
R

S
’ R

E
P

O
R

T 
(P

g
. 14 to

 18)

17

Key Managerial Personnel 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of  
the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8 of the  
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the Board of 
Directors at their meeting held on May 23, 2014 
has appointed following whole-time Key Managerial 
Personnel:

1.	 Mr. Sumit Shah	 –	Managing Director

2.	 Mr. Ghanshyam Walavalkar 	–	�Company Secretary

3.	 Mr. Dilip Joshi 	 –	�Chief Financial Officer

Auditors

M/s J. K. Shah & Co., Chartered Accountants, the 
present Statutory Auditors of the Company, retire 
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and have 
confirmed their eligibility and willingness to accept 
office, if re-appointed. The Board, at its meeting 
held on August 7, 2014, on recommendation of 
audit committee, decided to recommend their  
re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting till the 
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting and 
to fix their remuneration. 

The Company has received a letter from  
M/s. J. K. Shah & Co., Chartered Accountants 
expressing their willingness for appointment as 
Statutory Auditors and to the effect that their  
re-appointment, if made, would be within the 
prescribed limits under Section 141(3)(g) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and that they are not 
disqualified for re-appointment.

Fixed Deposits

During the financial year 2013-14, the Company 
has not accepted any fixed deposit within the 
meaning of Section 58A of the Companies Act, 
1956, and as such, no amount of principal or interest  
was outstanding as of the date of the  
Balance Sheet.

Conservation of Energy, Technology  
Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings  
and Outgo

The particulars as prescribed under sub-section 
(1)(e) of Section 217 of the Companies Act, 1956  
read with Companies (Disclosure of particulars  
in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988,  

the relevant data pertaining to conservation  
of energy, technology absorption and foreign 
exchange earnings and outgo are furnished 
hereunder:

a.	 Conservation of energy

	 The operations of the Company are not energy-
intensive. The Company, however, takes measures 
to reduce and optimize energy consumption by 
using energy efficient computers, CFL bulbs 
and ballast-based lighting. Further, offices have 
been designed to maximize the use of ambient 
lighting while conserving the air conditioning. 
The expense on power in relation to income is 
nominal and under control.

b.	 Technology absorption 

	 Research & Development (R & D): Since 
businesses and technologies are changing 
constantly, investment in research and 
development activities is of paramount 
importance. Your Company lays a great 
emphasis on knowledge management and  
has an institutionalized process for absorption 
of new technologies. Your Company continued 
its focus on quality up-gradation product 
enhancements.

	 Benefits derived as a result of the above R & D 
for better productivity and cost reduction:

	 a.	� Enhanced productivity and reduction in 
production lead time

	 b.	� Total traceability of each piece during entire 
manufacturing process through customized 
software

	 c.	� Reduction in re-work and rejection in the 
manufacturing process.

	 d.	� Enhancement of product spectrum 

	 e.	� Improvement in quality of existing products.

	 Future plan of action: Research and Development 
has been considered as a continuous process. 
Steps have been taken for further development 
of new products of superior quality, up-gradation 
of existing product designs to improve the quality 
and reduction in rejections.

	 Expenditure on R & D: As per the established 
Accounting Policy Expenditure incurred on 
Research & Development remains merged with 
the respective heads.
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	 Technology Absorption, Adaptation & 
Innovation: The Company continuously 
monitors and keep track of technological up-
gradation taking place in other countries in the 
field of Jewellery manufacturing and the same 
are reviewed and considered for implementation.

c.	 Foreign exchange earnings and outgo: 

(` million)

F.Y. 2013-14 F.Y. 2012-13

Foreign Exchange Earnings 9,648.39 6,885.24 

Foreign Exchange Outgo 4,273.84 2,439.64

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

As required under Section 217 of the Companies 
Act, 1956 the Directors hereby confirm that:

i. 	 In preparation of the annual accounts, the 
applicable accounting standards have been 
followed along with proper explanation relating 
to material departures;

ii. 	 The Directors have selected such accounting 
policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the 
financial year and of the profit of the Company 
for that period;

iii. 	 The Directors have taken proper and sufficient 
care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of this 
act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities; 

iv. 	 The Directors have prepared the annual accounts 
on a ‘going concern’ basis.

Employee Particulars

The Company does not have any employee whose 
particulars are required to be disclosed pursuant to 
Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956, read 
with the Companies (Particulars of Employees) 
Amendment Rules, 2011, and under Section 217 
(1)(e) of the said Act, read with the Companies 
(Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board of 
Directors) Rules, 1988.

Cautionary Statement

Statements in this Directors Report and Management 
Discussion & Analysis describing the Company’s 
objectives, projections, estimates, expectations  
or predictions may be “forward-looking statements” 
within the meaning of applicable Securities laws  
and regulations. Actual results could differ materially 
from those expressed or implied due to risk of 
uncertainties associated with our expectations with 
respect to, but not limited to, changes in Government 
regulations, tax regimes, economic developments 
within India and the countries in which the Company 
conducts business, technological changes, exposure 
to market risks, general economic and political 
conditions in India and which have an impact on 
our business activities or investments, the monetary 
and fiscal policies of India, inflation, deflation, 
unanticipated turbulence in interest rates, foreign 
exchange rates, the performance of the financial 
markets in India and globally and raw material 
availability and prices, demand & pricing in the 
Company’s principal markets, and other incidental 
factors.
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About the Company

Renaissance Jewellery Limited (RJL) has gained 
a respectable name in the business of design, 
manufacture and sale of studded gold, platinum 
and silver jewellery especially in the USA, which has 
always been a focal point, being the largest end 
market. We operate through 8 manufacturing units of 
which 6 units are located at SEEPZ-SEZ at Mumbai, 
1 unit is located out of SEZ at Mumbai and one 100% 
EOU unit at Bhavnagar in Gujarat.

The Company has a Subsidiary in USA to cater 
effectively to customers in this market. In order to 
expand the market and to mitigate the geographical 
risk, your Company has a wholly owned Subsidiary 
in UK with a view to develop alternative markets. The 
Company has also set up a manufacturing facility in 
Bangladesh in order to manufacture cost effective 
quality products. The Company has been successful 
in receiving gradual but steady results through these 
strategic steps and the management is confident of 
achieving the desired objectives. 

Our portfolio includes rings, earrings, pendants, 
bracelets, bangles, etc. studded with polished 
diamonds and other precious stones. Along with US 
and European markets, we are currently exploring the 
domestic market opportunity. In its endeavor to excel, 
the company explores opportunities and embarks 
on new initiatives through newer market segments 
and niche product categories on an ongoing basis. 
Apart from our core jewellery business, we have our 
own Home Retail Brand, ‘House Full’ with 31 Stores 
across India.

General Economic and Industry trend: 

Over the past few years, the Indian economy has 
witnessed sluggish growth with relative moderation 
in all three sectors: agriculture, industry and services. 
The economy is in need of a fillip to pull itself out of 
this slump and be redirected to a path of continued 
and sustained growth.

The Indian economy experienced a second 
successive year of weak performance with the GDP 
growing at 4.7% in 2013-14 compared with 4.5%  
in 2012-13. 

A strong and stable government at center and it’s 
first budget that signifies the path as well as long 
term vision of things to come, has instilled hope.

The gems and jewellery sector has been playing 
a very important role in the Indian economy and 
contributes about 6-7% to the country’s gross 
domestic product (GDP), apart from large scale 
employment generations and foreign exchange 
earnings (FEE). In FY 2013-14, the Indian gems and 
jewellery sector contributed US$ 34,746.90 million to 
India’s FEE with a decline of 11 per cent as compared 
to the last year figures.

The export of gold jewellery and gold medallions 
together for the period April 2013-14 stood  
at $11045.92 million which shows a drop of  
39.50 per cent. This was mainly due to the  
non-availability of the gold limiting the extent of trade 
for many of the Indian players.

The silver jewellery exports had a significant increase 
by 58.57 per cent with figures of $1460 million.

A FICCI–Technopak report predicts that gems and 
jewellery exports will touch US$ 58 billion by 2015. 
The report also estimates that the domestic market 
for gems and jewellery will reach US$ 35-40 billion 
by 2015.

The domestic gems and jewellery industry had a 
market size of ` 251,000 crore (US$ 41.61 billion) 
in 2013, with potential to touch ` 500,000-530,000 
crore (US$ 82.94-87.93 billion) by 2018, according 
to a joint report by FICCI – AT Kearney titled ‘All that 
glitters is Gold: India Jewellery Review 2013’. 

Key exporting destinations for gems and jewellery 
in FY 2013-14 were UAE – 35 per cent of exports 
valued at US$ 12,195.34 million; Hong Kong –  
28 per cent of exports valued at US$ 9,790.45 
million; and the US – 14 per cent of exports valued at  
US$ 4,948.92 million. 

The country’s success in the gems and jewellery 
global market can be attributed to the following 
factors – highly skilled, low-cost labour; excellence in 
jeweler manufacturing and diamond polishing; and 
technologically advanced factories. 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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The country is slowly starting to move towards 
branded jewellery and consumers are progressively 
accommodating modern retail formats. While 
this could impact traditional players, it also gives  
them the opportunity to upgrade to keep pace  
with evolving market trends. It is expected  
that traditional and modern players will co-exist  
in future.

In March, the RBI had allowed more banks, to import 
gold under the 80:20 scheme, a move seen as a 
precursor to easing restrictions on inward shipments 
of the metal.

COMPANY PERFORMANCE

Consolidated Financial Performance

Consolidated Revenue for FY ’14 was INR 1222.2 Cr. 
The company EBITDA was 5.08% at INR 62.10 Cr. 
the PBT was INR 38.4 Cr in FY ’14, while the PAT 
was INR 29.5 Cr. in FY ’14. 
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Chart 1: Historical Revenue
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Chart 2: Historic EBITDA,
PBT and PAT

EBITDA2012 PBT2013 PAT2014

CAGR 13%
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JEWELLERY SEGMENT

Company Manufacturing Performance

We exported a total of 25.98 Lac Pcs in FY ’14, 15.26% 
higher than the previous year. and, our average 
realization per unit has increased from USD 52  
in FY ’13 to USD 58.86 in FY ’14, an increase by  
13.19%.

Table 1: Manufacturing Data – Standalone

Total Units 
Exported

Average Realization  
per unit (USD)

Sales  
(USD)

FY 2014 25.98 Lacs 59 152.9 Mn

FY 2013 22.54 Lacs 52 117.0 Mn

FY 2012 15.9 Lacs 84 133.6 Mn

Our Gold : Silver Jewellery mix for FY ’14 was 30:70 
as compared to 32:68 in FY ’13 in terms of Value. 
In terms of Volume; the Mix of FY ’14 was 12:88 as 
compared to 13:87 in FY ’13. The average realization 
per unit for Gold was USD 146  in FY ’14 while that for 
Silver Jewellery was USD 47.

Table 2: �Raw Material-wise break-up – Standalone  
(FY 2014)

Total Units 
Exported

Average Realization  
per unit (USD)

Total Value (USD)

Gold 313546 146 45.80 Mn

Silver 2284541 47 107.10 Mn

Category mix: The Major Contributors in the 
categories have been the rings and pendants which 
have contributed to 80% of the total Standalone 
Sales for the Company.

Chart 3: Category-wise Revenue break up – Standalone (FY 2014)

Challenges
•	 �The rising prices of precious metals and stones, 

is matter of concern and continues to be a 
challenge for the entire industry.  

•	 �The Economic Slowdown in the US and 
European markets could have an impact to the 
buying pattern of our customers since our major 
market is the US. 

•	 �Volatile USD – INR exchange rate is a concern in 
recent times.

Outlook
�•	 �We have started exports of high end Bridal Jewellery 

to our customers in the US and will look to grow 
this category in the years to come through our 
current customers as well as through new markets.

•	 �We also look to expand our presence in the 
Domestic Jewellery industry through our jewellery 
brand, “AURELLE”. Given the demographics, we 
believe India will be one of the fastest growing 
markets in the world.
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Store Presence (June ’14)

 
Mumbai

 
Gujarat

 

Rest of 
Maharashtra

 
Bangalore

 
Hyderabad

 
Chennai

• Dahisar • Ahmedabad • Aundh, Pune • Banergatta • Dilsukhnagar • Arkot Road

• Vashi • Baroda • Kharadi, Pune • Banshankari • Karkhana • ECR Road

• Kurla • Rajkot • PCMC, Pune • HRBR • Kukatpally

• Worli • Surat • Sinhagad, Pune • Marathali • Toli Chowki

• Andheri • Nashik • Rajaji Nagar

• Vasai

• Thane

• Kalyan

Home Retail Segment

HouseFull International Ltd.

Our Home retail segment operates under the brand 
“HOUSEFULL” and caters to all customer segments, 
bringing appealing designs, lasting quality, and  
‘value for money’ tag along, at their doorstep.  
In FY ’14 the company has added 5 new Stores 
and currently has 31 Stores (126,364 sq. ft.) across 
India. Our presence currently is in the regions of 
Mumbai, Pune, Nasik, Ahmedabad, Surat, Baroda, 
Bangalore, Hyderabad and Chennai. We also plan on  
exploring opportunities in other Regions in the years 
to come.

As far as the brand’s product basket goes, we offer 
a range of stylish furniture range essential in the 
making of a complete home. Ranging from sofa sets, 
dining tables, bedroom set, wardrobes to furniture 
accessories like shoe cabinets, book cases, bean 
bags etc; making it a one-stop-shop for all furniture 
needs. Equipped with an in-house RESEARCH AND 
DEVELOPMENT team for engineering the furniture, 
our products are designed keeping in mind Indian 
tastes and preferences, are high on utility, and yet 
look stylish in a unique way. 

Company Performance

The company’s revenue from operations for the 
Home Retail business for FY ’14 was up 2.38% to  
INR 112.70 Cr. from INR 110.09 Cr. in FY ’13. This 
was on account of same store Growth in FY ’14 at 
the store count of 27 Stores. The Company was 
cash positive on the operating level and had EBITDA 
margins of 5.27% at INR 5.94 Cr.

INR Lacs
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4,000
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Chart 4: Home Retail Revenue
Growth

11008.7 11270.8

Home Retail Performance Snapshot 
FY’13

Revenue from 
Operations 

INR 112.71 Cr 

EBITDA INR 5.94 Cr 

Store Count 
(Mar’14)

    27 Stores 

Sales/Sq. Ft. 
(annualized)

   INR 6,420 
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Challenges

•	 �Unorganized sector is a major contributor in the 
industry and remains to be a stiff competition 
and a major challenge is to compete with the 
price points of these unorganized players.

•	 �Cost of rentals and Staff in the metros, continue 
to post a challenge, resulting in lowering our 
margins.

•	 �Exchange Rate fluctuations in another challenge 
in recent times for the home retail division  
as well. 

Outlook

Consistent growth in the Indian economy and rising 
standards of living are key factors driving demand 
in the India furniture industry. Changing consumer 
demographics and increased propensity to spend on 
lifestyle products by young Indian consumers have 
a positive impact on the furniture sector and are 
expected to drive demand for furniture in the future.

We expect to consistently ramp up the store count 
of “HOUSE FULL” with a 30% increase planned in  
FY ’15. Our 5 year goal is to have greater than  
100 stores across the country.
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In compliance with the Corporate Governance 
requirements as per the format prescribed by 
SEBI & incorporated in Clause 49 of the listing 
agreements entered into with the Stock Exchanges, 
the Company’s policies on Corporate Governance 
and compliance thereof in respect of specific areas, 
as applicable, for the year ended March 31, 2014 are 
set out below for information of shareholders and 
investors of the Company.

THE COMPANY’S GOVERNANCE PHILOSOPHY

Being an export oriented Company, the International 
standards of Corporate Governance have been 
infused into the Company, since its inception and 
being reviewed from time to time. The Company 
has worked with a philosophy and mission of 
good governance in every field. The Company 
believes that the Corporate Governance code will 
enhance the benefits to all the stakeholders. The 
Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance 
enshrines the goal of achieving the highest levels 
of transparency, accountability and equity in all 
spheres of its operations and in all its dealings with 
the shareholders, employees, the Government and 
other parties. In so far as compliance of Clause 49 
of the Listing Agreement entered into with the Stock 
Exchanges is concerned, the Company has complied 
in all material respects with the requirements of 
Corporate Governance specified in the Listing 
Agreement with the Stock Exchanges.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

In terms of the Company’s Corporate Governance 
Policy, all statutory and other significant and material 
information are placed before the Board to enable it 
to discharge its responsibility of strategic supervision 
of the Company as trustees of the shareholders.

Composition

The Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter 
referred as Board) comprises a combination of 
Executive and Non-Executive Directors. The Board is 
headed by an Executive Chairman. The composition 
of Board is in line with requirement of Clause 49 of 
the Listing agreement, which says at least half of the 
Board should comprise of Independent Directors, 
where the Chairman of the Board is an Executive 
Chairman. The Independent Directors do not have 

any pecuniary relationship or transactions with 
the Company, the promoters or the management, 
which may affect their judgment in any manner. The 
Directors are eminently qualified and experienced 
professionals in business, finance and corporate 
management.

The policy formulation, evaluation of performance 
and the control function vest with the Board, while the 
Board Committees oversee operational issues. The 
Board meets at least once in a quarter to consider 
amongst other business, the quarterly performance 
of the Company and financial results.

The Following is the composition of the Board as 
on March 31, 2014

Name of the Director Business 
Relationship

Executive/Non-Executive/
Independent

Niranjan A. Shah Executive 
Chairman

Promoter, Executive 

Sumit N. Shah Managing 
Director

Promoter, Executive

Hitesh M. Shah Executive 
Director

Promoter, Executive

Neville R. Tata Executive 
Director

Executive

Veerkumar C. Shah Director Independent,  
Non-Executive

Vishwas V. Mehendale Director Independent,  
Non-Executive

Anil K. Chopra Director Independent,  
Non-Executive

Arun P. Sathe Director Independent,  
Non-Executive

Composition of the 
Board

Independent 
50% 

Non-Executive  
50% 

Mr. Niranjan A. Shah, Executive Chairman retires by 
rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and 
being eligible offer himself for re-appointment.

The Board at its meeting held on August 7, 
2014 has appointed Dr. Madhavi S. Pethe, as an 
additional director designated as an Independent  
Non-Executive Woman Director of the Company, 

Report on Corporate Governance
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who shall hold office up to the date of the this  
Annual General Meeting. Her appointment is being 
confirmed in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting 
(AGM).

Mr. Veerkumar C. Shah, Mr. Vishwas V. Mehendale,  
Mr. Anil K. Chopra and Mr. Arun P. Sathe, who 
had been appointed as Independent Directors 
of the Company, pursuant to the provisions of  
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreements entered into 
with Stock Exchanges, are now being appointed 
as Independent Directors to hold office as per their 
tenure of appointment mentioned in the Notice of the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the 
Company, pursuant to provisions of Section 149 of 
the Companies Act, 2013.

The information prescribed under the Listing 
Agreement on Directors seeking appointment and  
re-appointment is provided in the Notice forming part 
of this Annual Report.

Remuneration of Directors

Remuneration of Executive Directors is determined 
by the Remuneration Committee comprising only 
Independent & Non-Executive Directors. The 
recommendations of the Remuneration Committee 
are considered and approved by the Board subject 
to the approval of the Shareholders. Non-Executive 
Directors do not receive any salary or commission 
and receive only Sitting Fees. Sitting Fees constitute 
fees paid to Non-Executive Directors for attending 
Board and Committee Meetings. At the meeting 
held on September 5, 2011, the Board of Directors 
has revised the sitting fees payable to a Director at 
` 15,000/- for attending each Board Meeting and 
` 7,500/- for attending each Committee Meeting.

Details of Remuneration Paid to Directors during 
the F.Y. ended March 31, 2014

(` In Lac)

Name of Directors Category Sitting 
Fees

Salary PF & 
Superan- 
nuation 

Fund

Total

Niranjan A. Shah Executive Chairman — 18.00 0.09 18.09

Sumit N. Shah Managing Director — 12.00 0.09 12.09

Hitesh M. Shah Executive Director — 15.00 0.09 15.09

Neville R. Tata Executive Director — 32.00 0.09 32.09

Veerkumar C. Shah Independent Director 1.35 — — 1.35

Vishwas V. Mehendale Independent Director 1.12 — — 1.12

Anil K. Chopra Independent Director 1.12 — — 1.12

Arun P. Sathe Independent Director 1.12 — — 1.12

The total amount of remuneration to Executive 
Directors as indicated above does not include share 
of gratuity as under group gratuity scheme, separate 
amount for each person is not ascertainable. 

The Salary payable to the Managing Director and 
Executive Directors is reviewed by the Board of 
Directors annually and is based on the performance 
of the individual and the Company. 

During the financial year under review, no Equity 
Shares have been offered to any of the Directors, 
under the Employee Stock Purchase Scheme, 
approved by the members at the 19th Annual General 
Meeting. 

Details of Equity Shares held by the Directors as 
on March 31, 2014

Name of the Directors No. of Equity  
Shares held

% Holding

Niranjan A. Shah 2607040* 13.6641*

Sumit N. Shah 4171120 21.8619

Hitesh M. Shah 1303520 6.8321

Neville R. Tata 0 0

Veerkumar C. Shah 64 0.0003

Vishwas V. Mehendale 0 0

Anil K. Chopra 0 0

Arun P. Sathe 0 0

* �Mr. Niranjan Shah has transferred 2607040 equity shares 
to the family trust viz. “Niranjan Family Private Trust”, 
pursuant to a private family arrangement, after seeking 
an exemption from making an Open Offer as per 
Regulation 3(2), read along with Regulation 3(3) of the 
SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011.

Meetings and Attendance

During the F. Y. 2013-14 five Board Meetings were held 
as follows, at the registered office of the Company, 
and the gap between any two Board Meetings did 
not exceed four months.

Sr.
No.

Date Board Strength No. of Directors 
Present

1 27/05/2013 8 7

2 30/07/2013 8 8

3 28/08/2013 8 8

4 12/11/2013 8 6

5 31/01/2014 8 8
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Attendance of Directors at the Board meetings 
and at the Twenty Fourth Annual General Meeting

Name of the Directors No. of Board 
Meetings attended

Attendance at  
last AGM

Niranjan A. Shah 5 Yes

Sumit N. Shah 3 Yes

Hitesh M. Shah 5 Yes

Neville R. Tata 5 Yes

Veerkumar C. Shah 5 Yes

Vishwas V. Mehendale 5 Yes

Anil K. Chopra 5 Yes

Arun P. Sathe 4 Yes

Directorships/Committee Memberships of Directors 
in other companies as on March 31, 2014

Name of the Directors No. of 
Directorships in 
other companies

No. of Committee 
Memberships in other 

companies

Chairman Member

Niranjan A. Shah 3 Nil Nil

Sumit N. Shah 2 Nil Nil

Hitesh M. Shah 3 Nil Nil

Neville R. Tata 1 Nil Nil

Veerkumar C. Shah 1 Nil Nil

Vishwas V. Mehendale 1 1 1

Anil K. Chopra 0 Nil Nil

Arun P. Sathe 0 Nil Nil

Directorship and Committee Membership/
Chairmanship in foreign companies, private limited 
companies and companies registered under  
Section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956 are excluded. 

The above information includes Chairmanship/
Membership in Audit Committee and Shareholders’/
Grievances Committee of public limited companies, 
whether listed or not.

Necessary disclosures regarding Directorships and 
the committee positions in other public companies 
as on March 31, 2014 has been received from all 
Directors and the Disclosure regarding independency, 
in terms of Section 149(6) of Companies Act, 2013, 
has been received from all Independent Directors.

Review of Compliance Report by the Board of 
Directors

A Compliance Certificate confirming the due 
compliance with the statutory requirements is placed 
at the Board Meeting for the review by the Board of 
Directors. A system of ensuring material compliance 
with the laws, orders, regulations and other legal 
requirements concerning the business and affairs of 
the Company is in place. Instances of non-compliance, 
if any, are also separately reported to the Board.

Code of Conduct

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for 
its Directors and the Senior Management personnel, 
as approved by the Board of Directors. This Code 
of Conduct is available at Company website  
www.renjewellery.com. 

The Company is in compliance with the requirements 
stipulated under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreements 
entered into with the Stock Exchanges with regard to 
corporate governance. 

All the Board Members and Senior Management 
Personnel have affirmed their compliance with the Code 
of Conduct. Following is the declaration to that effect 
signed by the Managing Director of the Company.

DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE 
CODE OF CONDUCT

All the Directors and senior management personnel 
have, respectively, affirmed compliance with the 
Code of Conduct as approved and adopted by  
the Board of Directors.

Sumit Shah
Managing Director Mumbai, August 7, 2014

Insider Trading Code

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct 
for Prevention of Insider Trading, applicable to the 
Directors and the Senior Management personnel. 
The same was approved by the Board of Directors 
in accordance with the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider 
Trading) Regulations, 1992. 

The Company has implemented an effective 
mechanism to track and monitor Insider Trading 
activities in securities of the Company. Under 
this mechanism the Compliance Officer receives 
weekly reports of insider trading, which ensures 
the compliance and effective implementation of the 
Insider Trading Code.
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Currently, there are four Board Committees –  
The Audit Committee, the Remuneration 
Committee, the Shareholders’/Investor Grievances  
Committee and the ESPS Compensation 
Committee. The terms of reference of the Board  
Committees are determined by the Board from 
time to time. Meetings of each Board Committee  
are convened by the respective Committee  
Chairman and the signed minutes are placed for the 
information of the Board. The role and composition of 
these committees, including the number of meetings 
held during the financial year under review and the 
related attendance are provided in the following 
paragraphs:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Board, inter alia, provides 
reassurance to the Board on the existence of an 
effective internal control environment and ensures:

	� Efficiency and effectiveness of operations, both 
domestic and overseas;

	� Safeguarding of assets and adequacy of 
provisions for all liabilities;

	� Reliability of financial and other management 
information and adequacy of disclosures

	� Compliance with all relevant statutes. 

The Role of the Committee includes the following:

	� Overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process and the disclosure of its financial 
information to ensure that the financial statement 
is correct, sufficient and credible.

	� Recommending to the Board, the appointment, 
re-appointment and if required the replacement 
or removal of the statutory auditor and the 
fixation of audit fees.

	� Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any 
other services rendered by them.

	� Reviewing with the management, the annual 
financial statements before submission to the 
Board for approval with particular reference to:

	 •	 �Matters required to be included in the 
Director’s responsibility statement to be 
included in the Board’s report in terms 
of Clause (2AA) of Section 217 of the 
Companies Act, 1956 

	 •	 �Changes if any, in accounting policies and 
practices and reasons for the same

	 •	 �Major accounting entries involving estimates 
based on the exercise of judgment by 
management

	 •	 �Significant adjustments made in the financial 
statements arising out of the audit findings 

	 •	 �Compliance with listing and other legal 
requirements relating to financial statements

	 •	 �Disclosure of any related party transactions

	 •	 �Qualifications in the draft audit report.

	� Reviewing with the management, quarterly 
financial statement before submission to the 
board for approval.

	� Reviewing with the management the performance 
of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of 
the internal control systems.

	� Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit  
function, if any, including the structure of 
the internal audit department, staffing and 
seniority of the official heading the department, 
reporting structure, coverage and frequency of  
internal audit.

	� Discussion with the internal auditors of any 
significant findings and follow up thereon.

	� Reviewing the findings of any internal 
investigations by the internal auditors into the 
matters where there is suspected fraud or 
irregularity or a failure of internal control systems 
of a material nature and reporting the matter to 
the Board.

	� Discussions with statutory auditors before the 
audit commences, about the nature and scope 
of audit as well as post audit discussion to 
ascertain any area of concern. 

	� To look into the reasons for substantial defaults 
in the payment to depositors, debenture holders, 
shareholders (in case of non payment of declared 
dividends) and creditors.

	� To review the functioning of the whistle blower 
mechanism, in case same is existing. 

	� Carrying out any other function as is mentioned 
in the terms of reference of the audit  
committee.
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Constitution & Composition

All the members of Audit Committee are  
Non-Executive and Independent Directors. During 
the financial year under review Mr. Veerkumar C. 
Shah was the Chairman of the Audit Committee. 
The other members of the Audit Committee were  
Mr. Vishwas V. Mehendale and Mr. Arun P. Sathe. 

Mr. G. M. Walavalkar, GM - Legal & Company 
Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

The Committee’s composition meets with the 
requirements of Section 177 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. 
Members of the Audit Committee possess financial/
accounting expertise/exposure.	

Meetings and Attendance

During the year ended March 31, 2014, Four Audit 
Committee meetings were held on 27/05/2013, 
30/07/2013, 12/11/2013 and 31/01/2014. The 
attendance of each Audit Committee member is 
given hereunder:

Name of the Directors Number of Meetings 
attended during the year

Number of Meetings  
held during the year

Veerkumar C. Shah 4 4

Vishwas V. Mehendale 4 4

Arun P. Sathe 3 4

Attendees

The Executive Directors, VP – Finance, Internal 
Auditors and the Statutory Auditors are normally 
invited to the Audit Committee meetings.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Role of the Committee includes the following:

	� The Remuneration Committee recommends 
to the board the compensation terms of the 
Executive Directors. 

	� Framing and implementing a credible and 
transparent policy on remuneration of Executive 
Directors including ESOP, Pension Rights and 
any compensation payment, on behalf of the 
Board and shareholders. 

	� Considering approving and recommending to the 
Board the changes in designation and increase 
in remuneration of the Executive Directors. 

	� Ensuring that the remuneration policy is good 
enough to attract, retain and motivate Directors.

	� Bringing about objectivity in deeming the 
remuneration package while striking a balance 
between the interest of the Company and the 
shareholders.

Constitution & Composition

This committee was constituted to recommend to 
the Board the remuneration package for managerial 
persons. All the members of Remuneration Committee 
are Non-Executive and Independent Directors. 

During the financial year under review,  
Mr. Arun P. Sathe was the Chairman of the 
Remuneration Committee. The other members of the 
Remuneration Committee were Mr. Anil K. Chopra 
and Mr. Vishwas V. Mehendale.

Mr. G. M. Walavalkar, GM – Legal & Company 
Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

The terms of reference of this Committee  
was conferred on the ‘Nomination and  
Remuneration Committee’ re-constituted by 
the Board on May 23, 2014 and consequently,  
the Remuneration Committee was dissolved  
w.e.f. May 23, 2014, in compliance with provisions of 
Section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and it’s 
Powers) Rules, 2014.

Meetings and Attendance

During the year ended March 31, 2014, one 
Remuneration Committee meeting was held on 
31/01/2014. The attendance of each remuneration 
Committee member is given hereunder:

Name of the Directors Number of Meetings 
attended during the year

Number of Meetings 
held during the year

Arun P. Sathe 1 1

Anil K. Chopra 1 1

Vishwas V. Mehendale 1 1

THE SHAREHOLDERS’/INVESTORs’ GRIEVANCE 
COMMITTEE:

The scope and function of this committee is to consider 
and review shareholders’/investors’ grievances and 
complaints and to ensure that all shareholders’/
investors’ grievances and correspondence are 
attended to expeditiously and satisfactorily unless 
constrained by incomplete documentation and/or 
legal impediments.
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Constitution & Composition

All the members of Shareholders’/Investors’ 
Grievances Committee are Non-Executive and 
Independent Directors. During the Financial Year 
under review, Mr. Anil K. Chopra was the Chairman of 
this Committee. The other members of the Committee 
were Mr. V. C. Shah and Mr. Arun P. Sathe.

Mr. G. M. Walavalkar, GM – Legal & Company 
Secretary GM – Legal & Company Secretary acts as 
the Secretary to the Committee.

The terms of reference of this Committee was 
conferred on the ‘Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee’ re-constituted by the Board on  
May 23, 2014 and consequently, the ‘Shareholders’/
Investors’ Grievance Committee’ was dissolved 
w.e.f. May 23, 2014, in compliance with provisions of 
Section 178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Meetings and Attendance

During the year ended March 31, 2014, Four 
Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievances Committee 
meetings were held on 27/05/2013, 30/07/2013, 
12/11/2013 and 31/01/2014. The attendance of each 
Committee member is given hereunder:

Name of the Directors Number of Meetings 
attended during the year

Number of Meetings 
held during the year

Anil K. Chopra 4 4

Veerkumar C. Shah 4 4

Arun P. Sathe 3 4

THE ESPS COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The scope and function of this committee is to 
formulate from time to time the detailed terms and 
conditions of offer of Equity Shares pursuant to 
Employee Stock Option/Purchase Schemes and to 
administer these schemes.

Constitution & Composition

During the Financial Year under review, Mr. Vishwas 
V. Mehendale was the Chairman of the ESPS 
Compensation Committee. The other members  
of the Committee were Mr. Arun P. Sathe and  
Mr. Hitesh M. Shah.

Mr. G. M. Walavalkar, GM – Legal & Company 
Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

Meetings and Attendance

During the year ended March 31, 2014, no meeting 
of the ESPS Compensation Committee was held.

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. G. M. Walavalkar, GM - Legal & Company 
Secretary is the Compliance Officer of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ COMPLAINTS 

During the financial year ended March 31, 2014,  
the Company has received 3 new complaints  
from the shareholders, which were attended to 
promptly. Apart from the said complaints the Company 
also received certain requests/general intimations 
regarding change of address, request for revalidation 
of refund orders/Dividend warrants, requests for 
annual reports etc. There is one complaint/request, 
which awaits judicial determination.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Details of the last three Annual General Meetings are 
as follows:

Day Date Time Venue

Friday August 30, 2013 3.30 p.m Yuvraj Hall, Supremo Activity 
Centre, Matoshree Arts &  
Sports Trust, Jogeshwari - 
Vikhroli Link Road, Andheri (E),  
Mumbai – 400 093

Friday September 7, 2012 3.30 p.m

Wednesday September 7, 2011 3.30 p.m

Special Resolutions

No Special Resolution was passed at the above 
mentioned Annual General Meetings.

No special resolution was passed through Postal 
Ballot during 2013-14. None of the Businesses 
proposed to be transacted in the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting require passing of special 
resolution(s) through Postal Ballot.

DISCLOSURES

The Company does not have any materially  
significant commercial and financial transactions  
with any of the related parties i.e. Promoters, Directors, 
Relatives, Associated Company or management 
having conflict, actual or potential, with the interest 
of the Company. 

The Company has complied with the statutory 
provisions, rules and regulations relating to the 
capital markets during the last year and the Stock 
Exchanges or the SEBI or any statutory authority 
have not imposed any penalties or strictures on the 
Company for the said period.
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MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The Audit Committee, in its meeting, considers the 
financial results of the Company and recommends 
it to the Board of Directors for its approval. The 
financial results, as taken on record by the Board of 
Directors, are communicated to the Stock Exchanges,  
where the shares of the Company are listed, 
in accordance with the directives of regulatory 
authorities in this regard. These quarterly, half yearly 
and annual results are also published in widely 
circulated newspapers (English and one vernacular 
language) as per the guidelines issued from time  
to time.

Communication/notices etc. through electronic 
mode

The Company appreciates the response and support 
extended by the shareholders of the Company 
to the “Green Initiative in Corporate Governance” 
initiated by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs’ (MCA). 
The Company will send various notices/documents 
including General Meeting Notices (including 
AGM), Audited Financial Statements, Directors’ 
Report, Auditors’ Report, etc. to its members 
through electronic mode to their registered e-mail  
addresses. 

As a member of the Company, the shareholders will 
be entitled to get a copy of the Balance Sheet of the 
Company and all other documents required by law 
to be attached thereto, upon receipt of a requisition 
from them, at any time.

Please note that these documents will also be  
available on the Company’s website  
www.renjewellery.com for download by the 
shareholders.

To support this green initiative of the MCA, in 
full measure, members who have not registered 
their e-mail addresses so far, are requested to 
register their e-mail addresses with their concerned 
Depository Participants, in respect of electronic 
holdings. Members who hold shares in physical  
form are requested to write to the Registrar and 
Transfer Agents, M/s. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. or to 
the Company. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

The Management Discussion & Analysis Report 
forms a part of this Annual Report.

CERTIFICATION BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR 
AND THE V. P. (FINANCE)

Mr. Sumit Shah, Managing Director and  
Mr. Dilip Joshi, V. P. – Finance (CFO), have issued  
a Certificate to the Board, as prescribed under  
sub–clause V of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. 
The said Certificate was placed before the  
Board Meeting held on May 23, 2014, in which 
the Audited Accounts for the Financial Year ended  
March 31, 2014 were considered and approved by 
the Board of Directors.

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Twenty Fifth Annual General Meeting Details

Day Friday

Date September 12, 2014

Time 3.30 p.m.

Venue Yuvraj Hall, Supremo Activity Centre, Matoshree 
Arts & Sports Trust, Jogeshwari - Vikhroli Link 
Road, Andheri (E), Mumbai – 400 093

Financial Year

Financial Year of the Company is April 1 to March 31.

Dates of Book Closure

From 	: 	Thursday, September 04, 2014 

To 	 : 	Friday, September 12, 2014
		  (Both days inclusive)

Dividend Payment Date

Dividend Payment Date: on or before October 11, 2014.

Listing on Stock Exchanges

The Company’s equity shares having ISIN No. 
INE722H01016 are listed on the following Stock 
Exchanges:

Name of Stock Exchanges Scrip Code/
Symbol

Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. (BSE)
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,
Dalal Street, Mumbai 400 001

532923

National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE) 
Exchange Plaza, Bandra-Kurla Complex, 
Bandra (E), Mumbai 400 051

RJL
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Market Price Data

Month BSE NSE

High
(`)

Low
(`)

High
(`)

Low
(`)

Apr-13 67.95 59.40 66.45 60.00

May-13 67.00 57.00 64.60 58.50

Jun-13 66.35 46.25 65.80 46.45

Jul-13 58.00 44.10 51.80 46.30

Aug-13 53.95 45.30 51.10 42.20

Sep-13 62.90 49.50 57.45 49.50

Oct-13 72.95 45.05 67.65 48.50

Nov-13 70.00 53.30 65.80 54.90

Dec-13 64.00 49.00 60.45 50.55

Jan-14 75.00 54.00 66.45 54.55

Feb-14 68.00 55.00 65.00 56.50

Mar-14 64.45 53.15 62.55 55.00
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Performance in comparison with SENSEX/S&P 
CNX NIFTY
The performance of the Company’s shares related to 
SENSEX and S&P CNX NIFTY at a common base of 
100 is as follows. The period covered is April 2013 
to March 2014.

Chart showing RJL price at BSE vs SENSEX

Chart showing RJL price at NSE vs CNX NIFTY
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Registrar and Transfer Agents
Name 	 : 	 Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.
Address 	: 	 C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound
		  L. B. S. Marg, Bhandup (West),
		  Mumbai 400 078
Tel 	 : 	 +91-22- 2594 6970
Fax 	 : 	 +91-22- 2596 2691	
e-mail 	 : 	 rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in 

Share Transfer System
Shares held in the dematerialized form are 
electronically traded in the Depositories and the 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agents of the Company, 
viz. Link Intime India Pvt Ltd., periodically receive the 
beneficial holdings data from the Depository, so as to 
enable them to update their records and to send all 
corporate communications. Physical shares received 
for dematerialization are processed and completed 
within a period of 15 days from the date of receipt, 
provided they are in order in every respect.
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Bad deliveries are immediately returned to Depository 
participants under advice to the shareholders within 
the aforesaid period.

Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2014

Shareholding of 
Nominal Value of `

No. of 
Shareholders

% No. of 
Shares

Amount in 
`

%

Up to 5000 11475 95.15 934121 9341210 4.90

5001 to 10000 234 1.95 187472 1874720 0.98

10001 to 20000 131 1.09 195048 1950480 1.02

20001 to 30000 58 0.48 148484 1484840 0.78

30001 to 40000 28 0.23 98296 982960 0.52

40001 to 50000 27 0.22 116566 1165660 0.61

50001 to 100000 44 0.36 309387 3093870 1.62

100001 onwards 63 0.52 17090066 170900660 89.57

Total 12060 100 19079440 190794400 100

Shareholding pattern as on March 31, 2014

Category No. of Shares Percentage

A.	 Promoters’ Holding

	 1. Promoters 9105946 47.73

	 2. Promoter Trust 2607040 13.66

	 3. Relatives of Promoters 2596514 13.61

	 4. Corporate Bodies (Promoter Co) 80 0.00

Sub Total A 14309580 75.00

B.	 Non Promoters’ Holding  

	 Institutional Investors:  

	 Mutual Fund 0 0.00

	 Insurance Companies 0 0.00

	 Non Nationalized Banks 70000 0.37

	 Foreign Inst. Investors 521372 2.73

	 Sub Total 591372 3.10

	 Non Institutional Investors:  

	 Other Bodies Corporate 404124 2.12

	 Clearing Member 94176 0.50

	 Non Resident Indians 58221 0.31

	 Non Resident (Non Repatriable) 3950 0.02

	 Public 2965443 15.54

	 Trusts 652574 3.42

	 Sub Total 4178488 21.90

Sub Total B 4769860 25.00

Grand Total 19079440 100.00

Inter se transfer of shares by the promoter

Mr. Niranjan Shah, Executive Chairman and one 
of the promoters of the Company, has transferred 
2607040 equity shares to the family trust viz. 
“Niranjan Family Private Trust”, pursuant to a private 
family arrangement. This transaction was done under 
the provisions of Inter se Transfer of shares, after 
seeking an exemption from Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (SEBI) for making an Open Offer 
as per Regulation 3(2), read with Regulation 3(3) 
of the SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011.

Dematerialization of shares and liquidity

The shares of the Company are compulsorily traded 
in dematerialized form and are available for trading 
under both the Depository Systems i.e. NSDL 
(National Securities Depository Limited) and CDSL 
(Central Depository Services (India) Limited). 

Your Company has fully complied with the SEBI 
Circular – Cir/ISD/3/2011, dated June 17, 2011 by 
achieving 100% of promoter’s and promoter group’s 
shareholding in dematerialized form. 

At present 99.9% of total equity shares of the 
Company are held in dematerialized form with NSDL 
& CDSL.

Dematerialized Position as of March 31, 2014

Shares held in physical
form: 0.00003%

Shares held in Demat form with
NSDL: 12.87761%

Shares held in Demat form
with CSDL: 87.12236%

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any 
Convertible instruments, conversion date and 
likely impact on equity 

The Company’s capital comprises only of Equity 
shares. The Company does not have any preference 
shares, outstanding ADRs, GDRs, or any convertible 
instruments. 

Plant Locations and Address for correspondence

The information regarding office locations and 
address for correspondence is given at the beginning 
of the Annual Report under Company Information.

Unclaimed Dividends/IPO Refund

Pursuant to Section 205C of the Companies Act, 
1956, IPO Refund/dividends that are unclaimed for 
a period of seven years from the date they became 
due for payment are required to be transferred 
by the Company to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund (IEPF) administered by the 
Central Government. Given below are the dates  
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of IPO Refund/declaration of dividend and  
corresponding dates when the unclaimed amounts 
will be due for transfer to IEPF:

Financial Year Due for payment Due Date for transfer to IEPF

IPO Refund

2006-07 December 5, 2007 January 4, 2015

Date of declaration of Dividend

2007-2008 September 5, 2008 October 5, 2015

2008-2009 August 28, 2009 September 27, 2016

2009-2010 August 25, 2010 September 24, 2017

2010-2011 September 7, 2011 October 7, 2018

2011-2012 September 7, 2012 October 7, 2019

2012-2013 August 30, 2013 September 28, 2020

Members who have so far not claimed their IPO 
Refund/encashed their dividend warrants are 
requested to write to the Company/Registrar to claim 
the same before the above mentioned due dates, to 
avoid transfer to IEPF. 

Members are advised that no claims shall lie against 
the said Fund or the Company for the amounts so 
transferred to the said Fund. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Investor Education 
and Protection Fund (Uploading of information 
regarding unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with 
companies) Rules, 2012, the Company has uploaded 
the details of unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying 
with the Company as on August 30, 2013 (date of 
last Annual General Meeting) on the website of the 
Company (www.renjewellery.com), as also on the 
website of the Ministry of Corporate.

Disclosure pursuant to Clause 5A of the Listing 
Agreement

As per Clause 5A of the Listing Agreement 
inserted as per SEBI notification no. SEBI/CFD/DIL/
LA/1/2009/24/04 dated April 24, 2009, the details  
in respect of the shares, which were issued from  
time to time and lying in the suspense account,  
are as under:

Description Number of 
Shareholders

Number of 
Equity Shares

Aggregate number of shareholders and the 
outstanding shares as on April 1, 2013

19 1112

Number of shareholders who approached 
the Company for transfer of shares from 
suspense account till March 31, 2014

0 0

Number of shareholders to whom shares 
were transferred from the Suspense 
account till March 31, 2014

0 0

Aggregate number of shareholders and 
the outstanding shares in the suspense 
account lying as on March 31, 2014

19 1112

The voting rights on the shares outstanding in the 
suspense account as on March 31, 2014 shall remain 
frozen till the rightful owner of such shares claims the 
shares. In compliance with the said requirements, 
these shares will be transferred into a single folio in the 
name of ‘Unclaimed Suspense Account’ in due course.

Nomination:
Individual shareholders holding shares singly or 
jointly in physical form can nominate a person in 
whose name the shares shall be transferable in case 
of death of the registered shareholder(s). Nomination 
facility in respect of shares held in electronic form is 
also available with the depository participants as per 
the bye-laws and business rules applicable to NSDL 
and CDSL. Nomination forms can be obtained from 
the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent.

Electronic Clearing Service:
The Securities and Exchange Board of India has 
made it mandatory for all companies to use the 
bank account details furnished by the depositories 
and shareholders for crediting dividends through 
Electronic Clearing Services (ECS) to the investors 
wherever ECS and bank details are available. In the 
absence of ECS facility, the Company is required 
to print the bank account details on the dividend 
warrants. This ensures that the dividend warrants, 
even if lost or stolen, cannot be used for any purpose 
other than for depositing the money in the accounts 
specified on the dividend warrants and ensures 
safety for the investors. The Company complies with 
the SEBI requirement.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MANDATORY 
REQUIREMENTS

The Company has complied with the mandatory 
requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance 
as stipulated under Clause 49 of the Listing 
Agreement with the Stock Exchanges.

EXTENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE  
NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS

Remuneration Committee
Remuneration Committee comprising of 3  
Non-Executive Independent Directors has been 
constituted by the Board.

Shareholder Rights

The Company is publishing unqualified financial 
statements in the news papers and the same are also 
available on Companies website www.renjewellery.com.
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Audit qualifications
Since inception the Company did not have any 
qualifications in its financial statements. The Company 
continues to adopt best practices to ensure regime 
of unqualified Financial Statements.

Training of Board Members
The Company’s Board of Directors comprise of 
professionals with expertise in their respective fields 
and industry. They endeavor to keep themselves 
updated with changes in global economy and 
various legislations. They attend various workshops 
and seminars to keep themselves abreast with the 
changes in business environment.

Vigil Mechanism

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy 
and the same has been communicated within the 
organization, in compliance with the Clause 49  

of the Listing Agreement entered with Stock 
Exchanges and the provisions of Section 177(9)  
of the Companies Act, 2013 and same is available on 
Companies website www.renjewellery.com.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE 
CERTIFICATION

A certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary, 
M/s. V. V. Chakradeo & Co., Company Secretary, 
Mumbai, regarding compliance of conditions of 
Corporate Governance as stipulated in Clause 49 of 
the Listing Agreement is enclosed.

For and on behalf of the Board,

Sumit Shah
Managing Director

Mumbai, August 07, 2014

CERTIFICATION BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER (CEO) AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
(CFO) ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE 
COMPANY
We, Sumit Shah, Managing Director and Dilip Joshi,  
Vice President-Finance, certify that:
1.	� We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow 

statement for the year ended March 31, 2014 and that to the 
best of our knowledge and belief:

	 •	 �These statements do not contain any materially untrue 
statement nor omit any material fact nor contain 
statements that might be misleading, and

	 •	 �These statements present true and fair view of the 
Company’s affairs and are in compliance with the existing 
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2.	� There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief,  
no transactions entered into by the Company during the year, 
which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the Company’s 
code of conduct;

3.	� We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining 
internal controls, we have evaluated the effectiveness of 
the internal control systems of the Company and we have 
disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies 
in the design or operation of internal controls, if any, of which 
we are aware and the steps that we have taken or propose to 
take to rectify the identified deficiencies; and

4.	� That we have informed the auditors and the Audit Committee of: 
	 i.	 Significant changes in internal control during the year;
	 ii.	� Significant changes in accounting policies during the 

year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes 
to the financial statements; and

	 iii.	� Instances of significant fraud of which we have become 
aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the 
management or an employee having a significant role in 
the Company’s internal control system.

Sumit Shah	 Dilip Joshi
Managing Director	 Chief Financial Officer

Mumbai, May 23, 2014 

CERTIFICATE OF practicing companY 
secretary

To
The Members of
Renaissance Jewellery Ltd.

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate 
Governance by Renaissance Jewellery Ltd. (‘the Company’), 
for the year ended on March 31 2014, as stipulated in  
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said Company with the 
stock exchanges.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the 
responsibility of the Management. Our examination has been limited 
to a review of the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted 
by the Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of 
Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression  
of an opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, and the representations made by 
the Directors and the Management, we certify that the Company 
has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as 
stipulated in Clause 49 of the above mentioned Listing Agreement.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance 
as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 
affairs of the Company.

For V. V. Chakradeo & Co.,
Company Secretary

V. V. Chakradeo
COP 1705

Mumbai, August 07, 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of
Renaissance Jewellery Limited

Report on Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements 
of Renaissance Jewellery Limited (“the Company”), which 
comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2014, the 
Statement of Profit & Loss and Cash Flow Statement for 
the year ended and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial 
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these 
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of 
the Company in accordance with the Accounting Standards 
notified under the Companies Act, 1956 of India (the 
“Act”) read with the General Circular No. 15/2013 dated 
September 13, 2013 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in 
respect of Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. This 
responsibility includes the design, implementation and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the financial statements that give a 
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant 
to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained  
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our  
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
financial statements give the information required by the 
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair 
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India:
•	 �in the case of the balance Sheet, of the state of affairs 

of the Company as at March 31, 2014;
•	 �in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the 

profit for the year ended on that date; and
•	 �in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash 

flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Matters
1.	� As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 

2003 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government 
of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of Section 227 of 
the Act, we give in the Annexure a statement on the 
matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Order.

2.	� As required by Section 227(3) of the Act, we report that:
	 a)	� We have obtained all the information and 

explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purpose of  
our audit;

	 b)	� In our opinion proper books of account as required 
by law have been kept by the Company so far as 
appears from our examination of those books;

	 c)	� the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit & Loss, 
and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report 
are in agreement with the books of account;  

	 d)	� In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of 
Profit & Loss, and Cash Flow Statement comply with 
the Accounting Standards notified under the Act   
read with the General Circular No. 15/2013 
dated September 13, 2013 of the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs in respect of Section 133 of the  
Companies Act, 2013;

	 e)	� On the basis of written representations received 
from the directors as on March 31, 2014, and taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the 
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2014, from 
being appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) 
of sub-section (1) of Section 274 of the Act.

For J. K. Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Registration No. 109606W

Sanjay A. Gandhi
Partner

Membership No: 048570
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 23, 2014
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Annexure referred to in paragraph 3 of our report 
of even date
Re: Renaissance Jewellery Limited (‘the Company’)

i.	 (a)	� The Company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of fixed assets except where 
item wise particulars in the fixed asset register 
and tagging of fixed assets are in the process of 
updation.

	 (b)	� All fixed assets have not been physically verified 
by the management during the year but there 
is a regular programme of verification which, in 
our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the 
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. 
No material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification.

	 (c)	� There was no substantial disposal of fixed assets 
during the year.

ii.	 (a)	� The management has conducted physical 
verification of inventory at reasonable intervals 
during the year.

	 (b)	� In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the procedures of 
physical verification of inventory followed by the 
management are reasonable and adequate in 
relation to the size of the Company and the nature 
of its business.

	 (c)	� The Company is maintaining proper records 
of inventories. As explained to us there were 
no material discrepancies noticed on physical 
verification of inventories as compared to the 
book records.

iii.	 (a)	� According to the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company has not granted any 
loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms 
or other parties covered in the register maintained 
under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. 
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(iii)(a) to (d) 
of the Order are not applicable to the Company 
and hence not commented upon.

	 (b)	� The Company has taken interest free loan from 
three directors covered in the register maintained 
under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 
1956. The maximum amount involved during 
the year was ` 2,364.38 Lacs and the year-end  
balance of loans taken from such parties was  
` 1,909.11 Lacs.

	 (c)	� In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the other terms 
and conditions for such loans are not prima facie 
prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

	 (d)	� The loans taken are re-payable on demand and 
have been paid regularly and thus, there has 
been no default on the part of the Company.

iv.	� In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, there is an adequate 
internal control system commensurate with the size 
of the Company and the nature of its business, for 
the purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for the 
sale of goods and services. During the course of our 
audit, we have not observed any major weakness or 
continuing failure to correct any major weakness in the 
internal control system of the company in respect of 
these areas.

v.	� In our opinion, there are no contracts or arrangements 
that need to be entered in the register maintained 
under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. 
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(v)(b) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company and hence 
not commented upon.

vi.	� The Company has not accepted any deposits from  
the public.

vii.	� In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit 
system commensurate with the size and nature of its 
business.

viii.	� We have broadly reviewed the books of account 
maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made 
by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost 
records under Section 209(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 
1956, related to manufacture of jewellery and are of 
the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts 
and records have been made and maintained.

ix.	 (a)	� Undisputed statutory dues including income tax, 
provident fund, investor education and protection 
fund, employees’ state insurance, wealth-tax, 
customs duty, sales tax, service tax, excise duty 
and other material statutory dues applicable 
to it have generally been regularly deposited  
with appropriate authorities except for few  
cases of income tax and Employees’ State 
Insurance Corporation.
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	 (b)	� According to the information and explanations 
given to us, no undisputed amounts payable 
in respect of provident fund, investor education 
and protection fund, employees’ state insurance, 
income-tax, wealth-tax, service tax, sales tax, 
customs duty, excise duty, cess and other material 
statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, 
for a period of more than six months from the date 
they became payable.

	 (c)	� According to the information and explanations 
given to us, the disputed dues that have not been 
deposited on account of disputed matters pending 
before appropriate authorities are as under:

Name of 
the Statute

Nature  
of dues

Amount
(` in 

lakhs)

Period to 
which the 

amount 
relates

Forum 
where 

dispute is 
pending

Customs 
Act, 1962

Custom  
Penalty

3 1998-1999
2002-2003

CESTAT

Customs 
Act, 1962

Duty and  
Penalty for 
Non-compliance  
with SEZ rules

21,322 April 2005 
to March 

2009

Bombay 
High 

Court

x.	� The Company has no accumulated losses at the  
end of the financial year and it has not incurred cash 
losses in the current and immediately preceding 
financial year.

xi.	� Based on our audit procedures and as per 
the information and explanations given by the 
management, we are of the opinion that the Company 
has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial 
institution, bank or debenture holders.

xii.	� According to the information and explanations given 
to us and based on the documents and records 
produced to us, the Company has not granted loans 
and advances on the basis of security by way of 
pledge of shares, debentures and other securities.

xiii.	� In our opinion, the Company is not a chit fund or a  
nidhi/mutual benefit fund/society. Therefore, the 
provisions of clause 4(xiii) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company.

xiv.	� In our opinion, the Company is not dealing in or 
trading in shares, securities, debentures and other 
investments. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(xiv) 
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xv.	� According to the information and explanations given to 
us, the Company has given guarantee for loans taken 
by its indirect subsidiary from a bank. According to 
the information and explanations given, we are of the 
opinion that the terms and condition thereof are not 
prima-facie prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

xvi.	� The Company has not taken any term loans during  
the year.

xvii.	�According to the information and explanations given 
to us and on an overall examination of the balance 
sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised 
on short-term basis have been used for long-term 
investment.

xviii.	�The Company has not made any preferential 
allotment of shares to parties or companies covered 
in the register maintained under Section 301 of the 
Companies Act, 1956. 

xix.	� The Company did not have any outstanding debentures 
during the year.

xx.	� The Company has not raised any money through a 
public issue during the year.

xxi.	� Based upon the audit procedures performed for the 
purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the 
financial statements and as per the information and 
explanations given by the management, we report that 
no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or 
reported during the year.

For J. K. Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Registration No. 109606W

Sanjay A. Gandhi
Partner

Membership No. 048570
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 23, 2014
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Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2014

Notes March 31, 2014
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013
` In Lacs

Equity and Liabilities
Shareholders’ funds
Share Capital 3  1,907.94  1,907.94 
Reserves and Surplus 4  32,490.88  28,589.06 

 34,398.82  30,497.00 
Non-current liabilities
Long-term provision 5  218.03  129.07 

 218.03  129.07 
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 6  26,859.77  18,469.45 
Trade payables 7  17,405.83  12,473.09 
Other Current liabilities 7  732.87  414.48 
Short-term provisions 5  471.31  438.34 

 45,469.78  31,795.36 
TOTAL  80,086.63  62,421.43 
Assets
Non-current assets
Fixed assets
	 Tangible assets 8  4,331.75  4,162.70 
	 Intangible assets 8  50.86  54.54 
	 Capital work-in-progress  32.24  103.98 
Non-current investments 9  10,515.53  10,509.33 
Deferred tax assets (net) 10  33.74  28.90 
Long-term loans and advances 11  1,255.26  1,125.23 
Other non-current assets 12.2  25.61  52.93 

 16,244.99  16,037.61 
Current assets
Inventories 13  24,826.10  20,975.06 
Trade receivables 12.1  34,971.80  23,020.51 
Cash and bank balances 14  1,259.45  1,320.06 
Short-term loans and advances 11  1,358.61  732.04 
Other current assets 12.2  1,425.68  336.15 

 63,841.64  46,383.82 
TOTAL  80,086.63  62,421.43 
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1   
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial 
statements.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the board of directors of
For J. K. Shah & Co. Renaissance Jewellery Limited
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 109606W Niranjan A. Shah Sumit N. Shah Hitesh M. Shah 

Sanjay A. Gandhi Executive Chairman Managing Director Executive Director 

Partner Ghanashyam M. Walavalkar Dilip B. Joshi
Membership No. 48570 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Place	:  Mumbai Place	:  Mumbai
Date	 :  May 23, 2014 Date	 :  May 23, 2014
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Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended March 31, 2014

Notes March 31, 2014
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

Income
Revenue from operations 15  98,229.65  71,900.74 
Other income 16  68.29  74.09 

Total revenue (I)  98,297.94  71,974.83 

Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 17  81,017.12  53,472.54 
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 18  (6,210.77)  2,854.69 
Purchase of traded goods —  0.15 
Employee benefit expense 19  4,722.63  5,835.02 
Other expenses 20  13,986.95  6,206.92 

Total (II)  93,515.93  68,369.32 

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization 
(EBITDA) (I)-(II)  4,782.01  3,605.51 
Depreciation and amortization expense 21  686.36  684.07 
Finance costs 22  811.90  963.45 

Profit before tax  3,283.75  1,957.99 

Tax expenses
Current tax  689.00  422.00 
Less: MAT credit entitlement  (111.00)  —   
Net current tax expenses  578.00  422.00 
Deferred tax  (4.84)  125.18 
Earlier year’s tax —  7.88 
MAT of earlier year —  66.15 

Total tax expense  573.16  621.21 

Profit AFTER TAX for the year  2,710.59  1,336.78 

Earning per equity share [nominal value of share ` 10/-] 
(March 31, 2013: ` 10/-)

28

Basic `   14.21  `  7.01  

Diluted `  14.21 `  7.01  

Summary of Significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial 
statements.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the board of directors of
For J. K. Shah & Co. Renaissance Jewellery Limited
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 109606W Niranjan A. Shah Sumit N. Shah Hitesh M. Shah 

Sanjay A. Gandhi Executive Chairman Managing Director Executive Director 

Partner Ghanashyam M. Walavalkar Dilip B. Joshi
Membership No. 48570 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Place	:  Mumbai Place	:  Mumbai
Date	 :  May 23, 2014 Date	 :  May 23, 2014
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Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended March 31, 2014

March 31, 2014
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013
` In Lacs

Cash Flow from operating activities
Profit before tax  3,283.75  1,957.99 
Non-cash adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
	 Depreciation/amortization  686.36  684.07 
	 Sundry balance written off  46.33  88.19 
	 Unrealized foreign exchange loss/(gain)  101.29  (380.01)
Loss/(profit) on sale of fixed assets  2.57  1.06 
Loss/(profit) on sale of non current investment —    (1.67)
Interest expense  811.90  963.45 
Interest income  (60.88)  (50.63)
Dividend Income —    (5.82)
Operating profit before working capital changes  4,871.32  3,256.63 
(Increase)/decrease in Working Capital  (10,062.65)  (511.41)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations  (5,191.33)  2,745.21 
Direct taxes paid (Net of refunds)  610.57  505.98 
Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activity	 (A)  (5,801.90)  2,239.23 
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets, including intangible assets, CWIP and capital 
advances  (878.79)  (717.33)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets  78.91  43.69 
Proceeds from sale/maturity of non-trade investments —  162.34 
Investment in subsidiaries  (6.20)  (652.58)
Redemption/maturity of bank deposits 
(having original maturity of more than three months)  (197.38)  34.82 
Interest received  54.45  50.74 
Dividend received —  5.82 
Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities	 (B)  (949.01)  (1,072.50)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds/(Repayment) from/of short-term borrowing (net)  7,526.88  (76.16)
Interest paid  (810.74)  (964.33)
Dividend and tax on dividend paid on Equity Shares  (223.22)  (332.62)
Net cash flow from/(used in) financing activities	 (C)  6,492.92  (1,373.11)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents	 (A+B+C)  (257.99)  (206.38)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  1,205.66  1,410.14 
Add: �Opening cash balance of “Caro Fine Jewellery Private Limited” 

pursuant of scheme amalgamation —  1.90 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  947.67  1,205.66 
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on hand  12.12  25.25 
With banks
– on current account  728.68  1,119.53 
– on deposit account  202.68  53.54 
– on unpaid dividend account *  4.19  7.34 
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Refer note 14)  947.67  1,205.66 
* �The company can utilize these balances only towards the settlement of 

the respective unpaid dividend.
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the board of directors of
For J. K. Shah & Co. Renaissance Jewellery Limited
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 109606W Niranjan A. Shah Sumit N. Shah Hitesh M. Shah 

Sanjay A. Gandhi Executive Chairman Managing Director Executive Director 

Partner Ghanashyam M. Walavalkar Dilip B. Joshi
Membership No. 48570 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Place	:  Mumbai Place	:  Mumbai
Date	 :  May 23, 2014 Date	 :  May 23, 2014
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1.	 Corporate Information

	� Renaissance Jewellery Limited (“the Company”) is a public limited company domiciled in India and incorporated 
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. Its shares are listed on two stock exchanges in India. The Company  
is engaged in the manufacture of diamond studded jewellery which are majorly exported to countries like USA, 
Hong Kong, etc.

2.	Basis  of preparation

	� The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles in India (Indian GAAP). The Company has prepared these financial statements to comply in all material 
respects with the Accounting Standards notified by Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, (as amended) 
and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The financial statements have been prepared under the 
historical cost convention. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent 
with those of previous year.

2.1	SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

	 a)	U se of estimates

		�  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and 
liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are 
based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions 
and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets 
or liabilities in the future periods. 

	 b)	T angible fixed assets

		�  Fixed assets are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing 
costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition 
for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

		�  Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset is added to its book value only if it increases the future 
benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses 
on existing fixed assets, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, 
are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

		�  Gains or losses arising from derecognition of fixed assets are measured as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss 
when the asset is derecognized.

	 c)	D epreciation/Amortization

		�  Depreciation on fixed assets is calculated on a written down value basis using the rates prescribed in  
Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956. The Company has used the following rates to provide depreciation 
on its fixed assets.

Nature of Assets Rates (WDV)
Factory buildings 10%
Other buildings 5%
Plant and equipments 13.91%
Furniture and fixtures 18.1%
Vehicles 25.89%
Computers 40%
Office Equipment 13.91%
Leasehold Improvements 18.1% or the rate based on lease period, whichever is higher

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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		�  Further in respect of assets built on leasehold land or leasehold premises, if the life as per Schedule XIV is more 
than the balance period of lease as per lease term the asset shall be written off over the balance period of lease. 

		�  Leasehold Land is amortized on a straight line basis over the period of lease i.e. 24 years.

		�  Fixed assets costing ` 5,000 or less are depreciated fully in the year of acquisition.

	 d)	 Intangible Assets

		�  Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, 
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

		�  Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life.

		�  Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and 
loss when the asset is derecognized.

		�  A summary of amortization policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as below:

Computer Software 20%

	 e)	 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

		�  The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment 
based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset 
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and 
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value 
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks 
specific to the asset.

	 f)	 Leases

		  Company is the lessee

		�  Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the  
leased items, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in 
the Profit and Loss account on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

	 g)	 Investments

		�  Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on 
which such investments are made, are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified 
as long-term investments. 

		�  On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price and directly 
attributable acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties. 

		�  Current investments are carried in the financial statements at lower of cost and fair value determined on an 
individual investment basis. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in 
value is made to recognize a decline other than temporary in the value of the investments.

		�  On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged 
or credited to the statement of profit and loss.

	 h)	 Inventories

Cut & Polished Diamonds Polished diamonds are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value.
Cost is ascertained on lot-wise weighted average basis.

Raw materials Lower of cost and net realizable value. However, materials and other 
items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down 
below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are 
expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost is determined on specific 
identification basis. Cost of raw materials comprises of cost of purchase 
and other cost in bringing the inventory to their present location and 
condition excluding refundable taxes and duties. 

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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Work-in-progress and Finished 
goods

Lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct materials, 
labor and proportionately all other cost related to converting them into 
finished goods. Cost is determined on specific identification basis.

Stores and spares Stores and spares are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. The 
cost is computed on moving weighted average.

		�  Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

	 i)	 Revenue Recognition

		�  Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company 
and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before 
revenue is recognized:

		  �Sale of Goods

		�  Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to 
the buyer. The Company collects sales taxes and value added taxes (VAT) on behalf of the government and, 
therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to the Company. Hence, they are excluded from revenue. 

		  �Interest

		�  Revenue is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate 
applicable. Interest income is included under the head “other income” in the statement of profit and loss.

		  �Dividends

		�  Revenue is recognized when the shareholders’ right to receive payment is established by the reporting date. 

	 j)	B orrowing Cost

		�  Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of 
borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded 
as an adjustment to the interest cost.

		�  Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily 
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost 
of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. 

	 k)	 Foreign currency translation

		�  Foreign currency transactions and balances

		  a)	 Initial Recognition

			�   Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency 
amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the 
transaction.

		  b)	 Conversion

			�   Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate.

		  c)	 Exchange Differences

			�   Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting such monetary items of 
Company at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in 
previous financial statements, are recognized as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise.

		  d)	 Forward Contracts

			�   The premium or discount arising at the inception of forward exchange contracts is amortized as expense 
or income over the life of the contract. Exchange differences on such contracts are recognized in the 
statement of profit and loss in the year in which the exchange rates change. Any profit or loss arising 
on cancellation or renewal of forward exchange contract is recognized as income or as expense for  
the year.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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	 l)	 Retirement and other employee benefits

		�  A retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions are 
charged to the Profit and Loss Account of the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due. 
There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective funds.

		�  Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation. The costs of providing benefits under this plan is determined 
on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end using the projected unit credit method. 

		�  Actuarial gains and losses for defined benefit plans are recognized in full in the period in which they occur  
in the statement of profit and loss.

		�  Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term 
employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that 
it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

	 m)	 Income taxes

		�  Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected 
to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India.

		�  The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, 
at the reporting date.

		�  Deferred income taxes reflects the impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and 
accounting income for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years.

		�  Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the 
balance sheet date. 

		�  Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized 
for deductible timing differences only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future 
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. In situations where 
the Company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized  
only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realized against future 
taxable profits.

		�  In the situations where the Company is entitled to a tax holiday under the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in 
India or tax laws prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions where it operates, no deferred tax (asset or 
liability) is recognized in respect of timing differences which reverse during the tax holiday period, to the extent 
the Company’s gross total income is subject to the deduction during the tax holiday period. Deferred tax in 
respect of timing differences which reverse after the tax holiday period is recognized in the year in which the 
timing differences originate. However, the Company restricts recognition of deferred tax assets to the extent 
that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable 
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. For recognition of deferred 
taxes, the timing differences which originate first are considered to reverse first.

		�  At each reporting date, the Company re-assesses unrecognized deferred tax assets. It recognizes unrecognized 
deferred tax asset to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case  
may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can  
be realized.

		�  The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. The Company writes-
down the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtually 
certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred tax 
asset can be realised. Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or 
virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available.

	 n)	 Segment Reporting Policies

		�  The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for 
preparing and presenting the financial statements of the Company as a whole.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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	 o)	 Earnings per share

		�  Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

		�  Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to 
participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period.

		�  For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to 
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted 
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

	 p)	P rovisions

		�  A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable 
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate 
can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate 
required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and 
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

	 q)	 Contingent liabilities

		�  A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company 
or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a 
liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize 
a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

	 r)	 Cash and Cash equivalents

		�  Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and 
short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

	 s)	 Measurement of EBITDA

		�  As permitted by the Guidance Note on the Revised Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956, the Company has 
elected to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item 
on the face of the statement of profit and loss. The Company measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/(loss) 
from continuing operations. In its measurement, the Company does not include depreciation and amortization 
expense, finance costs and tax expense.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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March 31, 2014 
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

3.	 Share Capital

	 Authorized shares
	 27,000,000 (March 31, 2013 : 27,000,000) equity shares of ` 10/- each  2,700.00  2,700.00 

	 Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
	 19,079,440 (March 31, 2013 : 19,079,440) equity shares of ` 10/- each  1,907.94  1,907.94 

 1,907.94  1,907.94 

	� a.	 Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
		  Equity shares

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

No. of Shares ` in Lacs No. of Shares ` in Lacs

At the beginning of the year  19,079,440  1,907.94  19,079,440  1,907.94 

Issued during the year — — — —

Outstanding at the end of the year 19,079,440 1,907.94 19,079,440 1,907.94

		�  Of the above, 720,000 Equity Shares of ` 10/- each fully paid-up have been issued during the period of five years 
immediately preceding the reporting date to RJL – Employee Welfare Trust pursuant to Employee Stock Purchase 
Scheme (ESPS). (Refer note 38)

	 b.	T erms/rights attached to equity shares

		�  The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of ` 10 per share. Each holder of equity 
shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The 
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting. During the year ended March 31, 2014, the amount of per share dividend recognized 
as distributions to equity shareholders was ` 1.00 (March 31, 2013: ` 1.00).  

		�  In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets 
of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the numbers 
of equity share held by the shareholders.

	 c.	D etails of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

No. of Shares % holding in
the class

No. of Shares % holding in 
the class

Equity Shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up

Niranjan A. Shah  2,607,040  13.66  5,214,080  27.33 

Sumit N. Shah  4,171,120  21.86  4,171,120  21.86 

Hitesh M. Shah  1,303,520  6.83  1,303,520  6.83 

Kalpana N. Shah  1,274,380  6.68  1,088,308  5.70 

Niranjan Family Private Trust  2,607,040  13.66 —   —

		�  As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received 
from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial 
ownerships of shares.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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March 31, 2014 
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

4.	 Reserves and surplus
	 Capital Reserve
	� Money received against equity share warrants forfeited, option not exercised 

by warrants holders  380.00  380.00 
 380.00  380.00 

	 Securities Premium Reserve
	 Balance as per the last financial statements  7,128.62  7,128.32 
	 Add	 : Addition on ESPS's exercised — —

 7,128.62  7,128.62 
	 General Reserve
	 Balance as per the last financial statements  599.00  1,281.00 

	 Add	 : �Amount transferred from surplus balance in the statement of profit  
and loss  68.00  34.00 

	 Less	: �Amount adjusted pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation —  (716.00)
	  667.00  599.00 
	 Hedging Reserve
	 Hedging reserve account (Refer note 23)  1,414.47 —

 1,414.47 —
	 Surplus/(deficit) in the statement of profit and loss
	 Balance as per last financial statements  20,481.40  19,413.11 
	 Transfer pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation —  (11.27)
	 Profit for the year  2,710.59  1,336.78 

	 Less	: Appropriations
		  �Proposed final equity dividend [amount per share ` 1.00  

(March 31, 2013: ` 1.00)]  190.79  190.79 
		  Tax on proposed equity dividend  32.43  32.43 
		  Transfer to general reserve  68.00  34.00 
	To tal appropriations  291.22  257.22 
	 Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss  22,900.77  20,481.40 

	To tal reserves and surplus  32,490.88  28,589.06 

Long-term  Short-term

March 31, 2014
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013
` In Lacs

March 31, 2014
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

5.	Pro visions
	P rovision for employee benefits
	� Provision for gratuity  

(Refer note 24)  124.21  66.59  227.58  202.89 
	� Provision for Leave salary  93.82  62.48  20.51  12.23 

 218.03  129.07  248.09  215.12 
	 Other provisions
	 Proposed equity dividend — —    190.79  190.79 
	� Provision for tax on proposed 

equity dividend — —    32.43  32.43 
—   —  223.22  223.22 

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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March 31, 2014 
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

6.	 Short-term borrowings

	� Working Capital Finance from banks denominated in Foreign Currency 
(secured)  24,914.95  18,086.96 

	� Working Capital Finance from banks denominated in Indian Currency 
(secured)  35.71  290.00 

	 Interest free loan from related parties repayable on demand (unsecured)  1,909.11  92.49 

 26,859.77  18,469.45 

	� (The Working Capital Loan is secured by first charge on pari passu basis 
by way of hypothecation and/or pledge of company’s current assets both 
present and future, by way of joint equitable mortgage of Company’s 
factory premises situated at Plot Nos. 36A and 37 (Mumbai), at Plot No. 
2302 (Bhavnagar) and office premises situated bearing no CC9081 with 
car parking situated at Bharat Diamond Bourse and hypothecation of 
machinery and plant, furniture and fixtures, electrical installations, office 
equipments, erected and installed therein and by personal guarantee of 
some of the directors/promoters. The working capital finance is generally 
having tenure of 180 days. The Foreign currency loans carries interest rate 
@ LIBOR plus 2% to 4.5% and Indian currency Loans carries interest rate 
@ 10% to 12%.)

7.	Tra de payables and other current liabilities

	� Trade payable (Refer note 33 for details of dues to micro and small 
enterprises)  17,405.83  12,473.09 

	 Other liabilities

	 Interest accrued but not due on gold loan  1.46  0.30 

	 Salaries, wages and others payables  645.80  320.20 

	� Investor Education and Protection Fund will be credited by following 
amount (as and when due)

		  Unclaimed dividend  4.19  7.34 

	 Other payables

		  Statutory dues payable  81.42  86.64 

 732.87  414.48 

 18,138.70  12,887.57 

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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March 31, 2014 
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

9.	No n-current investments

	 (Trade investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise))
	 In Equity Shares (Unquoted-Trade)

	 Subsidiaries Companies
	 i)	� Equity Shares without par value of Renaissance Jewelry N.Y Inc.  

 (Nos. of Equity Shares 100 PY : 100)  5,082.74  5,082.74 
	 ii)	� Equity Shares of GBP 1/- each of Verigold Jewellery (UK) Ltd.  

 (Nos. of Equity Shares 450,000 PY : 450,000)  309.72  309.72 
	 iii)	� Equity Shares of ` 10/- each of N. Kumar Diamond Exports Pvt Ltd. 

(Nos. of Equity Shares 65,00,000 PY : 65,00,000)  1,235.00  1,235.00 
	 iv)	� Equity Shares of Tk. 100/- each of Renaissance Jewellery Bangladesh 

Pvt. Ltd.  (Nos. of Equity Shares 1,479,366 PY : 1,479,366)  930.97  930.97 

	 In Preference Shares (Unquoted-Trade)
	 i)	� Eight years’ 0% optionally convertible Redeemable Preference shares 

of ` 10/- each of House Full International Ltd. (Nos. of Preference 
Shares 25,000,000 PY : 25,000,000)  2,500.00  2,500.00 

	 In Mutual Funds (Unquoted-Non Trade)
	 i)	� SBI PSU Fund of ` 10/- each (Nos. of units 100,000 PY : 100,000)  10.00  10.00 

	 In Limited Liability Partnership
	 i)	 Aurelle Jewellery LLP (Refer note below) 6.20 —

	 Others
	 Application money pending allotment
	 Renaissance Jewellery Bangladesh Pvt. Ltd. – Subsidiary company  440.90  440.90 

 10,515.53  10,509.33

	 Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  10,515.53  10,509.33 

	 Details of Investment in LLP
	 Investment in Aurelle Jewellery LLP
	 Name of Partners
	 Renaissance Jewellery Limited 66.00% 0.00%
	 Mr. Vikash Kanoi 34.00% 0.00%
	 Total Capital of LLP (` in Lacs)	 10.00 0.00

10.	 Deferred tax ASSETS (Net)   

	 Deferred tax liability:
	� Fixed assets: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and 

depreciation/amortization charged for the financial reporting  124.70  106.64 
	 Add: Transfer pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation —    4.36 

	 Gross deferred tax liabilities  124.70  111.00 
	 Provision for leave salary & gratuity  158.44  116.99 
	 Provision for Bonus/Ex-gratia —    22.91 
	 Gross deferred tax assets  158.44  139.90 
	N et deferred tax asset  33.74  28.90 

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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Non-Current  Current

March 31, 2014
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013
` In Lacs

March 31, 2014
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

11.	Loans and advances

	 (Unsecured, considered good)

	 Capital advances

	 Unsecured, considered good  52.17  34.85 — —

(A)  52.17  34.85 — —

	 Security deposit

	 Unsecured, considered good  88.10  86.39 — —

(B)  88.10  86.39 — —

	� Loan and advances to related 
parties (Refer note 26)

	 Unsecured, considered good — —  12.35 —

(C) — —  12.35 —

	� Advances recoverable in cash 
or kind

	 Unsecured, considered good — —  705.28  164.42 

(D) — —  705.28  164.42 

Non-Current  Current

March 31, 2014
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013
` In Lacs

March 31, 2014
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

	� Other loans and advances

	�U nsecured, considered good

	� Advance income-tax (net of provisions)  12.56  12.56  39.20  117.63 

	� Minimum Alternate Tax Credit 
Entitlement 812.05    701.05  —    —   

	� Prepaid expenses —  —    145.65  144.50 

	� Balance with RJL Employee 
Welfare Trust  290.38  290.38  —    —   

	� Loans to employees  —    —    28.25  58.23 

	� Balance with statutory/government 
authorities —  —    427.88  247.26 

(E)  1,114.99  1,003.99  640.98  567.62 

	� Total (A+B+C+D+E)  1,255.26  1,125.23  1,358.61  732.04 

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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Non-Current  Current

March 31, 2014
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013
` In Lacs

March 31, 2014
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

12.	�Tra de receivables and 
other assets

12.1	Trade receivables

	� Unsecured, considered good 
unless stated otherwise

	� Outstanding for a period exceeding 
six months from the date they are 
due for payment — —  7.49  38.73 

	 Other receivables — —  34,964.31  22,981.78 

Total — —  34,971.80  23,020.51 

12.2	OTHER ASSETS

	� Deposits with original maturity  
for more than 12 months (Refer 
note 14)	  22.85  52.16 — —

(A)  22.85  52.16 — —

	U namortized expenditure

	 Forward contract receivable (net) — —  1,417.51  332.42 

	 (B)  1,417.51  332.42 

	 Others

	� Interest accrued on fixed 
deposits  2.76  0.77  8.17  3.73 

                                                                        (C) 2.76 0.77  8.17  3.73 

	 Total (A+B+C)  25.61  52.93  1,425.68  336.15 

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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March 31, 2014 
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

13.	�INVENTORIES

	 Raw Materials

		�  Gems and diamonds  9,912.93  11,942.13 

		�  Gold, Silver and others (Refer note 39)  190.37  546.29 

	� Manufactured Jewellery (Finished Goods)  448.31  357.97 

	 Work-in-progress  13,862.55  7,742.12 

	 Consumable, tools and spares  411.94  386.55 

 24,826.10  20,975.06 

Non-Current  Current

March 31, 2014
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013
` In Lacs

March 31, 2014
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

14.	�Cash and bank 
balances

	 Cash and cash equivalents

	B alance with banks:

		  On current accounts — —  728.68  1,119.53 

		�  Deposits with original maturity 
of less than 3 months — —  202.68  53.54 

		  On unclaim dividend account — —  4.19  7.34 

	 Cash on hand — —  12.12  25.25 

(A) — —  947.67  1,205.66 

	 Other bank balances

		�  Deposits with original maturity 
for more than 12 months  22.85  52.16 — —

		�  Deposits with original maturity 
of more than three months but 
less than 12 months — —  178.88  112.60 

		�  Margin Money Deposit with 
banks against gold loan — —  132.90  1.80 

 22.85  52.16  311.78  114.40 

	� Amount disclosed under “other 
asset” (Refer note 12.2)  (22.85)  (52.16) — —

(B) — —  311.78  114.40 

Total (A+B) — —  1,259.45  1,320.06 

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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March 31, 2014 
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

15. Revenue from operations
Revenue from operations
Sale of products
Jewellery  93,720.07  66,488.10 
Gems and diamonds  4,501.40  5,401.07 
Sale of services
Jewellery making charges  4.57  1.43 
Other operating revenues
Sale of dust  3.61  10.14 
Revenue from operations  98,229.65  71,900.74 

16. Other income
Interest income on 
	 Bank deposits  60.88  40.14 
	 Loan to indirect subsidiary —  10.49 
Dividend income on long-term investment —  5.82 
Gain on redemption of long-term investment —  1.67 
Other non-operating income  7.41  15.97 

 68.29  74.09 

17. Cost of materials consumed
Material consumed
Inventory at the beginning of the year  12,488.43  8,650.79 
Add	 : Transfer pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation —    0.77 
Add	 : Purchases  78,713.61  57,309.92 
Less	: Sale of raw materials  81.62  0.52 

 91,120.42  65,960.96 
Less : Inventory at the end of the year  10,103.30  12,488.42 
Total materials consumed  81,017.12  53,472.54 
Details of materials consumed
Colour Stone  1,025.11  486.64 
Diamond  62,809.18  37,607.54 
Gold  10,052.57  8,052.32 
Silver  2,870.08  3,334.81 
Others  4,260.18  3,991.23 

 81,017.12  53,472.54 
Details of inventory
Colour Stone  284.15  116.03 
Diamond  9,628.79  11,826.11 
Gold —  329.66 
Silver —  12.97 
Others  190.36  203.66 

 10,103.30  12,488.43 

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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March 31, 2014 
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

18. (Increase)/decrease in inventories
Inventories at the end of the year:
	 Work-in-progress  13,862.55  7,742.12 
	 Finished goods  448.31  357.97 

 14,310.86  8,100.09 
Inventories at the beginning of the year:
	 Work-in-progress  7,742.12  10,690.23 
	 Finished goods  357.97  264.55 

 8,100.09  10,954.78 
 (6,210.77)  2,854.69 

Details of inventory:
Work-in-progress:
	 Jewellery  13,862.55  7,742.12 

 13,862.55  7,742.12 
Finished Goods:
	 Jewellery  448.31  357.97 

 448.31  357.97 

19. Employee benefit expense
Salaries, wages and bonus  3,885.91  4,778.39 
Contribution to provident and other funds  302.03  362.21 
Gratuity expense (Refer note 24)  82.31  224.73 
Leave salary  78.71  120.50 
Staff welfare expenses  373.67  349.19 

 4,722.63  5,835.02 

20. Other expenses
Consumption of stores and spare parts  1,180.68  1,006.67 
Power and fuel  679.22  513.55 
Water charges  50.00  44.94 
Jewellery making charges  5,423.64  2,430.98 
Freight and forwarding charges  164.96  116.94 
Rent  120.74  86.36 
Rates & Taxes  26.52  37.13 
Insurance  185.88  140.19 
Repairs and maintenance:
	 Buildings  146.95  34.70 
	 Machinery  45.02  40.98 
	 Others  214.86  192.86 
Exchange difference (net)  4,261.97  129.52 
Payment to auditor (Refer details below)  22.25  26.25 
Loss on sale of assets  2.57  1.06 
Share of loss in LLP  2.30 —   
Miscellanueous expenses  1,459.39  1,404.79 

  13,986.95  6,206.92 

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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March 31, 2014 
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

20. Other expenses (Contd.)
Payment to auditor

As auditor:

	 Audit fee  13.75  13.11 

	 Tax audit fee  3.00  2.25 

	 Limited review  4.00  6.18 

In other capacity:

	 Taxation  1.50  1.12 

	 Reimbursement of expenses —  3.59 

 22.25  26.25#

# �Includes fees paid to previous auditor ` Nil  
(March 31, 2013 ` 6.40 Lacs)

21. Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation of tangible assets  670.54  674.01 

Amortization of intangible assets  15.82  10.06 

 686.36  684.07 

22. Finance costs
Interest  811.90  963.45 

 811.90  963.45 

23. Hedge
�The Company has changed its accounting policy with regard to recognition of exchange differences arising on 
translation of Forward contract and Exchange Traded Currency Futures Contracts by following an appropriate 
hedge accounting policy and applying the principles set out in AS-30 “Financial Instrument: Recognition and 
Measurement”. The Company has w.e.f. April 01, 2013 designated Forward contract and Exchange Traded Currency  
Futures Contracts as hedge instrument to hedge its foreign currency risks of highly probable forecast transaction 
(of revenue streams) to be accounted as cash flow hedge. During the current year ended March 31,2014, the net 
exchange difference gain on Forward contract and Exchange Traded Currency Futures Contracts amounting to  
` 1,414.47 Lacs has been recognized in Hedging Reserve Account. Had this accounting treatment been not adopted 
by the Company, the profit (net of tax) on account of exchange difference gain for the current year would have been 
higher by ` 1,139.17 Lacs and consequently the reserves would have been lower by ` 275.30 Lacs.

24. Employee Benefits

General Description of Defined Benefit plan:

Gratuity:

The Company operates single type of Gratuity plans wherein every employee is entitled to the benefit equivalent to 
fifteen days  salary last drawn for each completed year of service depending on the date of joining and eligibility 
terms. The same is payable on termination of service or retirement whichever is earlier. The benefit vests after five 
years of continuous service.  

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and 
loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans.

Gratuity

March 31, 2014 
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

Statement of Profit & Loss Account:

Net Employee Benefit Expense recognized in the employee cost

Current service cost  68.16  72.09 

Interest cost on benefit obligation  25.92  36.78 

Past service Cost —   —

Expected return on plan assets  (4.69)  (11.82)

Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in the year  (7.60)  127.68 

Net Benefit Expense:  81.79  224.73 

Actual Return on Plan Assets  1.87  15.20 

Balance sheet:

Benefit asset/liability

Present Value of defined benefit obligation  (369.94)  (323.95)

Fair value of plan assets — —

Plan assets/(liability)  (369.94)  (323.95)

Changes in Present Value of Defined Benefit:

Opening defined benefit obligation  323.95  432.71 

Current service cost  68.16  72.09 

Interest cost  25.92  36.78 

Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation  (10.40)  131.06 

Past Service Cost —   —

Benefits paid  (37.69)  (348.67)

Closing defined benefit obligation  369.94  323.95 

Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets are as follows:

Opening Fair Value of planned assets  53.97  137.44 

Expected return  4.67  11.82 

Actuarial gain/(loss)  (2.80)  3.38 

Contributions by employer —  250.00 

Benefits paid  (37.69)  (348.67)

Closing Fair Value of plan assets  18.15  53.97 

The Company expects to contribute ` 227.57 Lacs to gratuity in the  
next year (March 31, 2013: ` 202.89 Lacs).

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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Gratuity

March 31, 2014 
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

The major category of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of 
total plan assets are as follows:

Insurance of Policy 100% 100%

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the 
Company’s plans are shown below:

Discount rate 8.00% 8.00%

Expected rate of return on assets 8.70% 8.70%

Age of Retirement 60 60

Annual increase in salary cost 5.00% 5.00%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, 
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing as on that date, 
applicable to the period over which the obligation is expected to be settled.

	 Amounts for the current and previous four periods are as follows:

March 31, 
2014 

` In Lacs

March 31, 
2013 

` In Lacs

March 31, 
2012 

` In Lacs

March 31, 
2011 

` In Lacs

March 31, 
2010 

` In Lacs

Gratuity:

Defined Benefit Obligation  (369.94)  (323.95)  (432.71)  (144.11)  (294.30)

Plan Assets  18.15  53.97  137.44  172.16  182.71 

Surplus/(deficit)  (351.79)  (269.98)  (295.27)  28.05  (111.59)

Experience adjustment on plan liabilities  (351.79)  (269.71)  (180.20)  (128.86)  (3.85)

Experience adjustment on plan assets 1.89  15.20  13.44  (4.97)  (6.76)

25. Segment Information

		  Business Segments:
		�  In accordance with the principles given in Accounting Standard on Segment Reporting (AS-17) notified by Companies 

(Accounting Standard) Rules 2006, the Company has determined its primary business segment as “Manufacturing 
and sale of Jewellery”). The Company has no other reportable segment. 

		  Geographical Segments:
	�	�  The Company’s secondary segments are the  geographic distribution of activities. Revenue and receivable are 

specified by location of customers while the other geographic information is specified by location of assets/liabilities. 
The following table presents Revenue, capital expenditure and cetain asset information regarding the company 
geographical segments.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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Year ended March 31, 2014 India Outside India Total

Revenue
Sales to external customers  1,606.75  96,622.90  98,229.65 

Other segment information

Carrying amount of segment assets  38,013.88  41,208.94  79,222.82 
Capital Expenditure:
Additions to tangible & intangible fixed assets (Including CWIP & advance)  861.47 —  861.47 

Year ended March 31, 2013 India Outside India Total

Revenue
Sales to external customers  2,966.35  68,934.38  71,900.74 
Other segment information
Carrying amount of segment assets  32,276.90  29,313.29  61,590.19 
Capital Expenditure:
Additions to tangible & intangible fixed assets (Including CWIP & advance)  701.36 —  701.36 

	 Notes:

	 Geographical Segment:
	 a)	 For the purpose of geographical segment the sales are divided into two segments – India and outside India.
	 b)	 The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in Note 2.1.

26. �Related party disclosures as required under AS-18, “Related Party Disclosures”, 
are given below:

a) Names of related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

Subsidiary company:
1)	 Renaissance Jewelry N.Y. Inc.
2)	 Verigold Jewellery (UK) Limited
3)	 Renaissance Jewellery Bangladesh Private Limited
4)	 N. Kumar Diamond Exports Limited

Indirect subsidiary company:
1) VGJA Inc., – Subsidiary of Renaissance Jewelry N.Y Inc.,
2) Housefull International Limited - Subsidiary of N. Kumar Diamond Exports Limited
3) Housefull Supply Chain Management Limited – Subsidiary of Housefull International Limited

Associate concerns/Companies/trust under control of key management personnel and relatives:

1) Anived Trade Impex Private Limited (formerly known as Fancy Jewellery Private Limited)
2) Vedani Allcomm Impex Private Limited (formerly known as Anika Jewellery Private Limited)
3) Niranjan Holdings Private Limited
4) Renaissance Jewellery Limited – Employee Group Gratuity Trust
5) iAlpha Enterprise
6) RJL – Employee Welfare Trust
7) Renaissance Foundation
8) Aurelle Jewellery LLP

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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26. �Related party disclosures as required under AS-18, “Related Party Disclosures”, 
are given below (Contd.)

Key Management Personnel:

1) Mr. Niranjan A. Shah

2) Mr. Sumit N. Shah

3) Mr. Hitesh M. Shah

4) Mr. Neville R. Tata

b) Related Party transactions:

�The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties 
for the relevant financial year:

March 31, 2014 
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

Nature of transactions

1) Sale of goods

1)	 Renaissance Jewelry N.Y Inc.,  44,096.36  33,669.74 

2)	 Verigold Jewellery (UK) Limited  3,939.77  1,020.79 

3)	 Renaissance Jewellery Bangladesh Private Limited  790.02  0.62 

4)	 Aurelle Jewellery LLP  0.45 —   

5)	 Housefull International Limited  8.36 —

2) Purchase of goods

1)	 Renaissance Jewelry N.Y. Inc.,  2,795.34  2,864.30 

2)	 Verigold Jewellery (UK) Limited  213.91  66.31 

3)	 Housefull International Limited  —    14.79 

3) Interest accrued and received

1)	 Housefull International Limited —    10.49 

2)	 Aurelle Jewellery LLP  0.12  —

4) Interest accrued and paid

1)	 Housefull International Limited  11.66 —   

5) Expenses reimbursement

1)	 N. Kumar Diamond Exports Limited  6.69  7.81 

2)	 Housefull International Limited  0.46 —

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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March 31, 2014 
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

6) Investment made
In equity shares

1)	 Renaissance Jewellery Bangladesh Private Limited —  652.58 

2)	 Aurelle Jewellery LLP  8.50 —

7) Loan given

1)	 Housefull International Limited —  400.00 

2)	 Aurelle Jewellery LLP  12.30 —

3)	 RJL – Employee Welfare Trust —  0.30 

8) Loan repayment received

1)	 Housefull International Limited —    400.00 

2)	 RJL – Employee Welfare Trust —  39.00 

9) Loan accepted 

1)	 Mr. Niranjan A. Shah  1,569.04  92.00 

2)	 Mr. Sumit N. Shah  2,360.95  159.12 

3)	 Mr. Hitesh M. Shah  169.73  15.00 

4)	 Housefull International Limited  1,008.79 —

10) Loan repaid

1)	 Mr. Niranjan A. Shah  721.50  110.90 

2)	 Mr. Sumit N. Shah  1,393.12  113.92 

3)	 Mr. Hitesh M. Shah  168.48  41.67 

4)	 Housefull International Limited  1,008.79 —   

11) Donation given

Renaissance – Foundation  46.35  22.35 

12) Managerial remuneration

1)	 Mr. Niranjan A. Shah  18.09  18.09 

2)	 Mr. Sumit N. Shah  12.09  12.09 

3)	 Mr. Hitesh M. Shah  15.09  15.09 

4)	 Mr. Neville R. Tata  32.09  25.16 

13) Guarantee Given

1)	 Housefull International Limited  1,700.00  1,500.00 

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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March 31, 2014 
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

Balance as at

Trade receivable

1) Renaissance Jewelry N.Y. Inc.  17,156.33  12,702.01 

2) Verigold Jewellery (UK) Limited  2,744.54  543.37 

3) Renaissance Jewellery Bangladesh Private Limited  517.67 —   

4) Aurelle Jewellery LLP  0.45 —

5) Housefull International Limited  8.36 —   

Others receivable

1) Housefull International Limited  0.46 —

2) Renaissance Jewellery N.Y Inc.,  2.24 —

Trade payable

1)	 Renaissance Jewelry N.Y. Inc. —  50.35 

2)	 Verigold Jewellery (UK) Limited  178.09  0.02 

3)	 N. Kumar Diamond Exports Limited —  7.81 

Others payable

RJL - Employee Group Gratuity Trust  351.79  269.19 

Loans and advances receivable

1) Aurelle Jewellery LLP  12.35 —

2) RJL – Employee Welfare Trust  290.38  290.38 

Loans and advances payable

1) Mr. Niranjan A. Shah  857.54  10.00 

2) Mr. Sumit N. Shah  1,019.94  52.11 

3) Mr. Hitesh M. Shah  31.63  30.38 

Investments

1) Renaissance Jewelry N.Y Inc.,  5,082.74  5,082.74 

2) Verigold Jewellery (UK) Limited  309.72  309.72 

3) Renaissance Jewellery Bangladesh Private Limited 
(Including application money pending allotment of ` 440.90 Lacs)

 1,371.87  1,371.87 

4) Housefull International Limited  2,500.00  2,500.00 

5) N. Kumar Diamond Exports Limited  1,235.00  1,235.00 

6) Aurelle Jewellery LLP  8.50 —

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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27. Leases
Operating Lease: Company as lessee

The Company has entered into arrangements for taking on leave and license basis certain residential/office premises 
and warehouses. These leases have average life of bewteen 2 to 5 years with renewal option included in the 
contract. The specified disclosure in respect of these agreements is given below:

March 31, 2014 
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases 
are as follows:
Charged to statement of profit and loss  72.43  73.11 
Within one year  45.90  63.11 
After one year but not more than five years  29.05  58.81 
More than five years  48.81  53.04 

28. Earnings per share (EPS)
The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and 
diluted EPS computations:

Total operations for the year

Profit after tax  2,710.59  1,336.78 

Net profit for calculation of basic and diluted EPS  2,710.59  1,336.78 

 No. of Shares  No. of Shares 

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS  19,079,440  19,079,440 

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating Diluted EPS — —

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS  19,079,440  19,079,440 

Add : No. of convertible shares warrants — —

Weighted average number of dilutive potential equity shares  19,079,440  19,079,440 

Basic Earnings per share  14.21  7.01 
Diluted Earnings per share  14.21  7.01 

29. Capital and other commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed
on capital account and not provided for (net of advances)  3.52  3.38 

30. Contingent Liabilities
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:
i)	� Guarantees given to banks against credit facilities extended to indirect 

subsidiary company  1,700.00  1,700.00 
ii)	 Penalty levied by the Custom Authorities  3.11  3.11 
iii)	 Income Tax demand disputed in appeal: 
	 Disputed by the Department  92.58  92.58 
iv)	 Disputed demand by Custom Authorities  21,322.24  21,322.24 

 23,117.93  23,117.93 
	� (The contingent liabilities, if materialised, shall entirely be borne by the company, as there is no likely reimbursement 

from any other party.)

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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30. Contingent Liabilities (Contd.)
�The company has received a demand of Customs Duty along with the penalty amounting to ` 16,754.90 Lacs  
from the Commissioner of Customs, Chhatrapati Shivaji International Airport, Mumbai (Customs), alleging that  
the import of finished jewellery for remaking is not a permitted activity for an unit in SEEPZ SEZ and hence 
chargeable to Customs duty. Further, the Commissioner has also preferred an appeal to CESTAT for levy of interest 
of ` 2,283.67 Lacs along with penalty amounting of ` 2,283.67 Lacs on the said Customs Duty considering the 
issue is currently sub-judice and under litigation in the Bombay High Court, management has disclosed the demand  
of ` 21,322.24 Lacs as a contingent liabilities.

31. Derivative Instruments and unhedged foreign currency exposure

a)	 Forward contract outstanding as at Balance Sheet date:

Particulars Purpose

Forward Contract to sell US $ Forward contract against future order (Revenue Stream)

US $ 424.81 Lacs (March 31, 2013: US $ 281.50 Lacs)

` 25,509.97 Lacs (March 31, 2013: ` 15,324.86 Lacs)

Forward Contract to buy US $ Forward contract against foreign currency trade payables
US $ 17.05 Lacs (March 31, 2013: US $ Nil)

` 1,023.85 Lacs (March 31, 2013: ` Nil)

b)	P articulars of unhedged foreign currency exposure as at the reporting date:

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

  In Lacs  In Lacs  In Lacs  In Lacs

Trade receivables USD	 572.27   34,364.52 USD	 413.98  22,537.18

Secured loans USD	 414.90   24,914.95 USD	 332.24  18,086.96 

Trade Payables USD	 183.88   11,042.24 USD	 119.20  6,489.10

EUR	 0.25  20.48  EUR	 0.71  49.18 

GBP	 0.01  1.48 GBP	 —  — 

CHF	 0.12  8.21 CHF	 —  — 

JPY	 1.12  0.66 JPY	 —  — 

Balance with Banks USD	 3.69  221.52 USD	 0.51  27.82 

March 31, 2014 
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

32. Loans and advances in the nature of loans given 
to subsidIaries in which directors are interested

Housefull International Limited

Balance as at year end — —   

Maximum amount outstanding during the year —  400.00 

The repayment schedule for the above loan is of 4 months

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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March 31, 2014 
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

33. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as  
defined under the MSMED Act 2006*
a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid 

to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year 
–  Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises  3.11  2.90 
–  Interest due on above —  — 

b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the 
Micro and Small Enterprise Development Act, 2006, along with the 
amounts of the payment made  to the supplier beyond the appointed 
day during each accounting year.  —  — 

c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in 
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed 
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under 
Micro and Small Enterprise Development Act, 2006.   —  — 

d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid  at the end of 
each accounting year.  — —

e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are 
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance 
as  a deductible expenditure under section   —  — 
* � The company has initiated the process of identification of suppliers 

registered under Micro and Small Enterprise Development Act, 
2006, by obtaining confirmations from all suppliers. Information 
has been collated only to the extent of information received as at 
balance sheet date.

34. Value of imports calculated on CIF basis
Raw materials (Includes Goods in transit)  41,744.75  23,542.50 
Consumable, Tools and Spares  730.13  597.12 
Capital goods  198.82  132.48 

 42,673.70  24,272.10 

35. Expenditure in foreign currency (accrual basis)
Others  64.71  124.33 

 64.71  124.33 

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

% of total 
consumption

` In Lacs % of total 
consumption

` In Lacs

36. Imported and indigenous raw 
materials/stores and spares 
consumed
Imported 51.86%  42,624.78 44.71%  24,357.57 
Indigenous 48.14%  39,573.01 55.29%  30,121.63 

100.00%  82,197.79 100.00%  54,479.20 

Consumption of raw materials includes consumption on account of manufacturing of samples.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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March 31, 2014 
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

37. Earnings in foreign exchange (accrual basis)

Exports at F.O.B. Value  96,483.87  68,852.48 

 96,483.87  68,852.48 

38. EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE SCHEME (“ESPS 2008”)

�A maximum 720,000 options can be granted under the plan. Employees who acquire shares under “ESPS 2008” 
would not be able to transfer such shares during the lock in period. The shares as per the scheme  are issued 
at market price and hence there is no employee compensation expense. (Market price based on average of 
the two weeks high and low price of the share preceding the grant date on the Stock Exchange with highest 
trading volumes in that period).

39. Accounting for Gold on loan

�The Company has taken gold on loan from various banks. The said gold has been alloyed and the jewellery is sold 
or in the process of manufacture. The value of purchase is initially taken on the basis of the Gold price Index on 
the date of purchase. The final value of purchase is recorded on the date of repayment of the loan or on final price 
confirmation of gold loan agreed with the bank with the difference of purchase amount being recorded to gold rate 
difference account.

As at year end the price of unfixed Gold loan and the corresponding inventory of gold is recorded at the closing 
price as per the Gold price Index. 

The closing stock of Raw Materials-Gold includes Gold valued at ` 333.93 Lacs (March 31, 2013 : ` 250.13 Lacs) 
taken on loan from Banks under the EXIM-Gold Loan Scheme.

40. Previous year figures

�Previous year’s figures are regrouped/rearranged/recast wherever considered necessary.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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To,
The Board of Directors 
Renaissance Jewellery Limited

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements of Renaissance Jewellery Limited (“the 
Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as 
“the Group”), which comprises the Consolidated Balance 
Sheet as at March 31, 2014, the Consolidated Statement 
of Profit & Loss and Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 
for the year then ended and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these 
consolidated financial statements that give a true and 
fair view of the financial position, consolidated financial 
performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group 
in accordance with the Accounting principles generally 
accepted in India including Accounting Standards 
notified under the Companies Act, 1956 of India (the 
“Act”) read with the General Circular No. 15/2013 dated 
September 13, 2013 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in 
respect of Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. This 
responsibility includes the design, implementation and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the consolidated financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated 
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In 
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Group’s preparation and 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements 

that give a true and fair view in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, and based on 
consideration of the reports of the other auditors on the 
financial statements/consolidated financial statements of 
the subsidiaries as noted below, the consolidated financial 
statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India:

•	 �in the case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the 
state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2014;

•	 �in the case of the Consolidated Statement of Profit 
and Loss, of the profit of the Group for the year 
ended on that date; and

•	 �in the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, 
of cash flows of the Group for the year ended on that 
date.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of certain 
subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect total 
assets of ` 5,183.19 lacs as at March 31, 2014, the total 
revenue of ` 5,619.06 lacs and cash inflows amounting to 
` 374 lacs for the year ended on that date. The financial 
statements of these subsidiaries have been prepared in 
accordance with accounting policies generally accepted 
in their respective countries and have been audited by 
other auditors who have submitted their audit opinions 
prepared under generally accepted auditing standards 
of their respective countries. The Management of 
the Company has converted these audited financial 
statements of the Company’s subsidiaries to accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, for the purpose 
of preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial 
statements under accounting principles generally 
accepted in India. Our opinion, thus, insofar it relates 
to amount included in respect of these subsidiaries, is 

Independent Auditor’s Report
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based solely on the reports of other auditors under the 
aforementioned GAAPs in respective countries and the 
aforesaid conversion undertaken by the management 
examined by us on a test basis.

We have relied on the reviewed/management certified 
financial statements of one of the subsidiary and 
associate whose financial statements reflect total assets 
of ` 33,749.41 lacs as at March 31, 2014, the total 
revenue of ` 58,337.94 lacs and cash inflows amounting 
to ` 1,303.50 lacs for the year ended on that date. These 
financial statements have been certified and approved 
by the Board of Directors of the said subsidiary and our 
report in so far as it relates to the amounts included in 
respect of the said subsidiary is based solely on such 
reviewed/approved financial statements. 

We draw attention to Note No. 30 to the financial 
statements in respect to the litigation in relation to 
service tax payable on lease rent of immovable properties 
amounting to ` 184.13 lacs for which no provision has 
been made in the books as the matter is currently sub 

judice and pending final decision by the Honourable 
Supreme Court of India. Pending final outcome of the 
said litigation, liability, if any, which may arise on the 
Company is presently not ascertainable and accordingly 
no provision has been considered necessary by the 
management in these financial statements.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of other matters.

For J. K. Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Registration No. 109606W

Sanjay A. Gandhi
Partner

Membership No: 048570

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 23, 2014
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2014

Notes March 31, 2014 
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

Equity and liabilities
Shareholders’ funds
Share Capital 3  1,907.94  1,907.94 
Reserves and Surplus 4  35,481.49  30,578.71 

 37,389.43  32,486.65 
Minority Shareholder Interest (net)  0.31 —  
Non-current liabilities
Long-term provision 5  248.83  159.08 

 248.83  159.08 
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 6  34,199.29  24,193.88 
Trade payables 7  20,174.93  15,557.94 
Other Current liabilities 7  1,387.77  789.77 
Short-term provisions 5  523.93  459.08 

 56,285.92  41,000.67 
TOTAL  93,924.49  73,646.40 
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill on consolidation  943.05  943.05 
Fixed assets
	 Tangible assets 8  7,336.95  7,111.95 
	 Intangible assets 8  822.53  806.03 
	 Capital work-in-progress  33.08  103.98 
Non-current investments 9  10.92  10.92 
Deferred tax asset (net) 10  219.00  180.53 
Long-term loans and advances 11  1,865.07  1,666.61 
Other non-current assets 12.2  60.76  83.22 

 11,291.36  10,906.29 
Current assets
Inventories 13  48,481.20  39,702.75 
Trade receivables 12.1  24,458.73  16,496.45 
Cash and bank balances 14  6,111.33  4,328.63 
Short-term loans and advances 11  2,151.26  1,873.63 
Other current assets 12.2  1,430.61  338.65 

 82,633.13  62,740.11 
TOTAL  93,924.49  73,646.40 
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial 
statements.

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the board of directors of
For J. K. Shah & Co. Renaissance Jewellery Limited
Firm Registration No. 109606W
Chartered Accountants Niranjan A. Shah Sumit N. Shah Hitesh M. Shah 

Sanjay A. Gandhi Executive Chairman Managing Director Executive Director 

Partner Ghanashyam M. Walavalkar Dilip B. Joshi
Membership No. 48570 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Place	:  Mumbai Place	:  Mumbai
Date	 :  May 23, 2014 Date	 :  May 23, 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
for the year ended March 31, 2014

Notes March 31, 2014 
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

Income
Revenue from operations 15  122,216.07  95,192.71 
Other income 16  145.02  315.10 

Total revenue (I)  122,361.09  95,507.81 

Expenses
Cost of materials consumed  78,664.79  50,532.73 
(Increase)/decrease in inventories  (9,672.95)  3,103.48 

Purchase of traded goods  18,974.65  17,235.55 
Employee benefits expense 17  8,645.84  8,965.42 
Other expenses 18  19,539.44  11,044.49 

Total (II)  116,151.77  90,881.67 
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization 
(EBITDA) (I)-(II)  6,209.32  4,626.14 
Depreciation and amortization expense 19  1,201.17  1,053.48 
Finance costs 20  1,167.31  1,276.59 

Profit before tax  3,840.84  2,296.07 

Tax expenses
Current tax  1,023.74  601.56 
Less : MAT credit entitlement  (111.00) —   
Net Current tax expenses  912.74  601.56 
Deferred tax  (19.10)  131.06 
Short/(Excess) Provision of tax relating to earlier years —  20.21 
MAT of earlier year tax —  66.15 

Total tax expense  893.64  818.98 
Less : Share of Minority Interest  (1.19) —

Profit AFTER TAX for the year  2,948.39  1,477.09 
Earning per equity share [nominal value of share ` 10]  
(March 31, 2013 ` 10)

28

Basic `  15.45 `  7.74 

Diluted `  15.45 `  7.74 

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial 
statements.

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the board of directors of
For J. K. Shah & Co. Renaissance Jewellery Limited
Firm Registration No. 109606W
Chartered Accountants Niranjan A. Shah Sumit N. Shah Hitesh M. Shah 

Sanjay A. Gandhi Executive Chairman Managing Director Executive Director 

Partner Ghanashyam M. Walavalkar Dilip B. Joshi
Membership No. 48570 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Place	:  Mumbai Place	:  Mumbai
Date	 :  May 23, 2014 Date	 :  May 23, 2014



Renaissance Jewellery Limited

C
O

N
S

O
LI

D
A

TE
D

 
F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

S
TA

TE
M

E
N

TS
 

(P
g

. 
68

 t
o

 9
8)

72

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended March 31, 2014

March 31, 2014 
` In Lakhs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lakhs

Cash Flow from operating activities
Profit before tax  3,840.84  2,296.07 
Non-cash adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
	 Depreciation/amortization  1,201.17  1,053.48 
	 Sundry balance written off  49.83  165.00 
	 Unrealized foreign exchange loss/(gain)  623.96 149.71 
Loss/(profit) on sale of fixed assets  11.16  62.63 
Loss/(profit) on sale of non current investment —   (1.67)
Interest expense  1,167.31  1,276.59 
Prior Period Adjustment —    31.43 
Interest income  (81.30)  (114.47)
Dividend Income —    (5.82)
Operating profit before working capital changes  6,812.97  4,912.95 
(Increase)/decrease in Working Capital  (10,877.11)  2,485.01 
Cash generated from/(used in) operations  (4,064.14)  7,397.96 
Direct taxes paid (Net of refunds)  788.85  698.95 
Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activity	 (A)  (4,852.99)  6,699.01 
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets, including intangible assets, CWIP and capital advances  (1,703.75)  (1,851.47)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets  520.94  57.54 
Proceeds from sale/maturity of non-trade investments —    162.34 
Proceeds of Minority Shares  1.50 —   
Redemption/maturity of bank deposits (having original maturity of more 
than three months)  (127.10)  (85.79)
Interest received  69.69  111.17 
Dividend received —    5.82 
Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities	 (B)  (1,238.72)  (1,600.39)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds/(Repayment) from/of short-term borrowing (net)  9,141.94  (2,653.63)
Interest paid  (1,171.41)  (1,272.21)
Dividend and tax on dividend paid on Equity Shares  (223.22)  (332.62)
Net cash flow from/(used in) financing activities	 (C)  7,747.31  (4,258.46)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents	 (A+B+C)  1,655.60  840.15 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  3,993.40  3,153.25 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  5,649.00  3,993.40 
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on hand  54.04  72.78 
With banks
–	 on current account  5,360.56  3,856.24 
–	 on deposit account  230.21  57.04 
–	 on unpaid dividend account *  4.19  7.34 
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Refer note 14)  5,649.00  3,993.40 
*	� The Company can utilize these balances only towards the settlement of the respective 

unpaid dividend.
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1  

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the board of directors of
For J. K. Shah & Co. Renaissance Jewellery Limited
Firm Registration No. 109606W
Chartered Accountants Niranjan A. Shah Sumit N. Shah Hitesh M. Shah 

Sanjay A. Gandhi Executive Chairman Managing Director Executive Director 

Partner Ghanashyam M. Walavalkar Dilip B. Joshi
Membership No. 48570 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Place	:  Mumbai Place	:  Mumbai
Date	 :  May 23, 2014 Date	 :  May 23, 2014
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Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014

1.	 Corporate Information

	� Renaissance Jewellery Limited (“the company”) along with its majority wholly owned and controlled subsidiaries 
(“the Group”) is engaged in the manufacturing and selling of diamond studded jewellery which are majorly sold in 
countries like USA, Hongkong, etc. In addition, one subsidiary “Housefull International Limited” is engaged in the 
business of furniture retail.

2.	Basis  of preparation

	� The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the accounting standards notified 
by Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, (as amended) and the relevant provisions of the Companies 
Act, 1956. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis. 
The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company.

	 2.1	 Summary of significant accounting policies

		P  rinciples of Consolidation
		�  (i)	� The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise financial statements of Renaissance Jewellery Limited 

(‘the Holding Company’), its subsidiaries referred in Note (iii) below (‘the Group’). Subsidiaries are those 
companies in which Renaissance Jewellery Limited, directly or indirectly, has an interest of more than 
one half of voting power or otherwise has power to exercise control over the composition of the Board 
of Directors. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which effective control is transferred to the 
Group to the date such control exists.

		  (ii)	� The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Accounting Standard 21 
“Consolidated financial Statements” notified under sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies act, 
1956 and other relevant provisions of the Companies act, 1956. These relates to Renaissance Jewellery 
Limited (“the Company”), and its subsidiaries (“the Group”). The consolidated financial statements have 
been prepared on the following basis:

		  (iii)	� The subsidiaries of the Holding Company considered in the consolidated financial information are as 
given below:

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Company Relationship Country of 
Incorporation

% of Group 
Holding  

as at March 
31, 2014

% of Group 
Holding  

as at March 
31, 2013

1. Renaissance Jewelry New York Inc. * Subsidiary USA 100% 100%
2. Verigold Jewellery (UK) Limited # Subsidiary United Kingdom 100% 100%
3. N. Kumar Diamond Exports Limited Subsidiary India 100% 100%
4. Renaissance Jewellery Bangladesh 

Private Limited # Subsidiary Bangladesh 100% 100%
5. Renaissance Adrienne LLC @@ 

(Subsidiary of Renaissance Jewelry 
New York Inc.) Subsidiary USA — 85%

6. VGJA Inc @@@(Subsidiary of 
Renaissance Jewelry New York Inc.) Subsidiary USA 100% —

7. Housefull International Limited 
(Subsidiary of N. Kumar Diamond 
Exports Limited) Subsidiary India 100% 100%

8. Housefull Supply Chain Management 
Limited (stepdown subsidiary of N. 
Kumar Diamonds Exports Limited) Subsidiary India 100% 100%

9. Aurelle Jewellery LLP Associate India 85% —
				    * 	 Approved by the management and review by other auditor.
				    # 	 Audited by other auditors.
				    @ 	 Amalgamation with parent company.
				    @@ 	 Ceased to be subsidiary of Renaissance Jewelry New York Inc with effect July 01, 2012.
				    @@@Inducted as a subsidiary of Renaissance Jewelry New York Inc with effect Jan 01, 2014.
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Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
			   (iv)	� The Consolidated Financial statements are prepared by adopting uniform accounting policies for like 

transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are presented, to the extent possible, in the 
same manner as the Company’s separate financial statements except otherwise stated elsewhere in  
this Notes.

				�    The activities of the foreign subsidiaries are not an integral part of those of the Holding Company 
and hence, these have been considered to be Non-Integral foreign operations in terms of Accounting 
Standard 11 – “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”. Consequently, the assets and 
liabilities, both monetary and non-monetary, of such subsidiaries have been translated at the closing 
rates of exchange of the respective currencies as at March 31, 2014; income and expenses have been 
translated at average rate of exchange which approximates the actual exchange rate and Exchange 
Difference arising on translation of financial statements as above is recognized in the Foreign Currency 
Translation Reserve.

				�    All inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized surpluses and deficits on transactions between 
group companies are eliminated.

				�    The financial statements of the subsidiaries used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn upto the 
same reporting date as that of the Holding Company i.e. March 31, 2014.

				    Other Accounting Policies

				    (a)	U se of estimates

					�     The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires management 
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, 
expenses, assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of the reporting 
period. Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events 
and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes 
requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in the future periods.

				    (b)	T angible fixed assets

					�     Fixed assets are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. The cost comprises purchase 
price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the 
asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted 
in arriving at the purchase price.

					�     Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset is added to its book value only if it 
increases the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard 
of performance. All other expenses on existing fixed assets, including day-to-day repair and 
maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are changed to the statement of profit and 
loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

					�     Gains or losses arising from de recognition of fixed assets are measured as the difference between 
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement 
of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

				    (c)	D epreciation/Amortization

					�     Depreciation is provided based on the estimated useful life of the asset which has been determined 
by the management which coincides with those prescribed under the Schedule XIV to the 
Companies Act 1956.
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Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
					     The group uses the same rates of depreciation for all the subsidiaries except as follows:

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Company and 
Description of Assets

Method Useful Life 
of Assets/
Depreciation rates

Proportion 
of Gross 
Block

1. Renaissance Jewelry New York Inc.    
  Leasehold Improvements S.L.M. 64 months

}  Furniture and Fittings S.L.M. 7 years
  Safe S.L.M. 5 years

10.17%
  Office Equipment S.L.M. 5 years
  Computers S.L.M. 5 years
  Telephone & Mobile S.L.M. 5 years
2. Verigold Jewellery (UK) Ltd.    
  Computer S.L.M. 25.00% } 0.08%
  Furniture & Fixture S.L.M. 25.00%
3. Housefull International Limited    
  Air Conditioner S.L.M. 4.75%

}  Office Equipment S.L.M. 4.75%
  Computers S.L.M. 16.21%

17.93%
  Furniture & Fixture S.L.M. 6.33%
  Electrical Installation S.L.M. 6.33%
  Vehicles S.L.M. 9.50%
4. Renaissance Jewellery Bangladesh 

Private Limited
   

  Air Conditioner S.L.M. 20.00%

}  Vehicles S.L.M. 20.00%
  Computer S.L.M. 20.00%
  Electrical Installations S.L.M. 10.00%

Furniture and fittings S.L.M. 10.00% 9.53%

Building S.L.M. 5.00%
Office Equipments S.L.M. 20.00%

  Plant and machinery S.L.M. 10.00%

					�     Further in respect of assets built on leasehold land or leasehold premises, if the life as per Schedule 
XIV is more than the balance period of lease as per lease term the asset shall be written off over 
the balance period of lease.

					     Leasehold Land is amortized on a straight line basis over the period of lease i.e. 24 years.

					     Fixed assets costing ` 5,000 or less are depreciated fully in the year of acquisition.

				    (d)	 Intangible Assets

					�     Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial 
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. 

					�     Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life. 

					�     Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in 
the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.
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					     A summary of amortization policies applied to the company’s intangible assets is as below:
Name of Company Nature of Intangible 

asset
Method Useful Life of Assets/

Depreciation rates
Renaissance Jewellery 
Limited Computer Software S.L.M. 20%
Renaissance Jewelry New 
York Inc.

Goodwill/Customer 
Rights S.L.M. 15 years

				    (e)	 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
					�     The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication 

of impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the 
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the 
greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated 
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset.

			   	 (f)	 Leases

					     Company is the lessee
					�     Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of 

the leased item, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as 
an expense in the Profit and Loss account on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

				    (g)	 Investments
					�     Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from 

the date on which such investments are made, are classified as current investments. All other 
investments are classified as long-term investments.

					�     On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price 
and directly attributable acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties. 

					�     Current investments are carried in the financial statements at lower of cost and fair value determined 
on an individual investment basis. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for 
diminution in value is made to recognize a decline other than temporary in the value of the investments.

					�     On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal 
proceeds is charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss.

				    (h)	 Inventories
Cut & Polished 
Diamonds

Polished diamonds are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value.

Cost is ascertained on lot-wise weighted average basis.
Raw materials Lower of cost and net realizable value. However, materials and other 

items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down 
below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated 
are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost is determined on 
specific identification basis. Cost of raw materials comprises of cost 
of purchase and other cost in bringing the inventory to their present 
location and condition excluding refundable taxes and duties.

Work-in-progress and 
Finished goods

Lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct materials, 
labour and proportionately all other cost related to converting them 
into finished goods. Cost is determined on specific identification basis.

Stores and spares Stores and spares are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. 
The cost is computed on moving weighted average.

					�     Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated 
costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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					     �Housefull International Limited

					�     Closing stock includes traded goods like furniture and accessories. Such finished goods are valued 
at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of finished goods is determined on a weighted 
average basis. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, 
less estimated cost of completion and estimated costs necessarily to make the sale.

					     Renaissance Jewelry New York Inc.

					�     Inventories of loose diamonds and finished jewellery are stated at the lower of cost or market, with  
cost being determined by specific identification or by average cost.

				    (i)	 Revenue Recognition

					�     Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria 
must also be met before revenue is recognized:

					     Sale of Goods

					�     Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have 
passed to the buyer. The company collects sales taxes and value added taxes (VAT) on behalf of 
the government and, therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to the company. Hence, 
they are excluded from revenue. 

					     Housefull International Limited

					�     Revenue is recognized when the property in the goods, agreed to be sold, is transferred i.e. when 
billing is done, accepted and the entire amount is collected. The Company collects sales taxes 
and value added taxes (VAT) on behalf of the government and, therefore, these are not economic 
benefits flowing to the Company. Hence, they are excluded from revenue.

					     Interest

					�     Revenue is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and 
the rate applicable. Interest income is included under the head “other income” in the statement of 
profit and loss.

					D     ividends

					�     Revenue is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive payment is established by the 
reporting date.

				    (j)	B orrowing Cost

					�     Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the 
arrangement of borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to 
the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

					�     Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset 
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are 
capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in 
the period they occur.

Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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				    (k)	 Foreign currency translation

					     Foreign currency transactions and balances

					     (a)	 Initial Recognition

						�      Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the 
foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign 
currency at the date of the transaction.

					     (b)	 Conversion

						      Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate.

					     (c)	 Exchange Differences

						�E      xchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting such 
monetary items of company at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded 
during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income or as 
expenses in the year in which they arise.

					     (d)	 Forward Contracts

						�      The premium or discount arising at the inception of forward exchange contracts is amortised 
as expense or income over the life of the contract. Exchange differences on such contracts 
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which the exchange rates 
change. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of forward exchange contract is 
recognised as income or as expense for the year.

				    (l)	 Retirement and other employee benefits

					     Parent Company/Indian Subsidiaries

					     a.	� Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the 
contributions are charged to the Profit and Loss Account of the year when the contributions 
to the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution 
payable to the respective funds.

					     b.	� Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation. The costs of providing benefits under this plan 
is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end using the projected unit 
credit method. 

					     c.	� Actuarial gains and losses for defined benefit plans are recognized in full in the period in 
which they occur in the statement of profit and loss.

					     d.	� Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as 
short-term employee benefit. The company measures the expected cost of such absences 
as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has 
accumulated at the reporting date.

					�     The company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as 
long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences 
are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-
end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not 
deferred. The company presents the entire leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, since it 
does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.

					     Renaissance Jewelry New York Inc.

					�     The company, since incorporated in the USA, has followed the law of that country and has 
established a 401(k) saving plan (the ‘Plan’). At the discretion of the company, the Plan provides for 
the company’s contributions based on eligible amounts contributed to the Plan by its participants. 
For the year ended March 31, 2014, the company did not make any contribution to this Plan.

Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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				    (m)	 Income taxes

					     Parent Company/Indian Subsidiaries

					�     Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount 
expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in 
India.

					�     The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively 
enacted, at the reporting date.

					�     Deferred income taxes reflects the impact of current year timing differences between taxable 
income and accounting income for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years.

					�     Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted 
at the balance sheet date. 

					�     Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax assets are 
recognized for deductible timing differences only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty 
that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be 
realized. In situations where the company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, 
all deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing 
evidence that they can be realized against future taxable profits.

					�     In the situations where the company is entitled to a tax holiday under the Income-tax Act, 1961 
enacted in India or tax laws prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions where it operates, no 
deferred tax (asset or liability) is recognized in respect of timing differences which reverse during 
the tax holiday period, to the extent the company’s gross total income is subject to the deduction 
during the tax holiday period. Deferred tax in respect of timing differences which reverse after the 
tax holiday period is recognized in the year in which the timing differences originate. However, the 
company restricts recognition of deferred tax assets to the extent that it has become reasonably 
certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available 
against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. For recognition of deferred taxes, the 
timing differences which originate first are considered to reverse first.

					�     At each reporting date, the company re-assesses unrecognized deferred tax assets. It recognizes 
unrecognized deferred tax asset to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually 
certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which 
such deferred tax assets can be realized.

					�     The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. The company 
writes-down the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably 
certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available 
against which deferred tax asset can be realised. Any such write-down is reversed to the extent 
that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future 
taxable income will be available.

					     Renaissance Jewelry New York Inc.

					     Income tax and deferred tax is recognized based on the tax laws of USA.

					�     The company provides for income tax based on differences between the financial statement and 
tax bases of assets and liabilities at the enacted rates in effect in the year in which the differences 
are expected to reverse.

					�     Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount 
expected to be realized.

					�     For the tax purpose, Adrienne is treated as partnership, whereby income is taxed directly to the 
members. Thus, no provision for federal and state income tax has been made by Adrienne, since 
such taxes are the responsibilities of the members.

Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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				    (n)	 Segment Reporting Policies

					�     The company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted 
for preparing and presenting the financial statements of the company as a whole.

				    (o)	 Earnings per share

					�     Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable 
to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they 
are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting 
period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the 
period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding 
during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

				    (p)	P rovisions

					�     A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event; 
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of 
which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are 
determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. 
These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

				    (q)	 Contingent liabilities

					�     A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be 
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the 
control of the company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable 
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also 
arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot 
be measured reliably. The company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its 
existence in the financial statements.

					     Renaissance Jewelry New York Inc.

					     Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed.

				    (r)	 Cash and Cash equivalents

					�     Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in 
hand and short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

				    (s)	 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

					�     The Company records employee share purchase plan in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Accounting for Employee Share based Payment issued by ICAI. The shares as per the scheme are 
issued at market price and hence there is no employee compensation expense.

				    (t)	 Measurement of EBITDA

					�     As permitted by the Guidance Note on the Revised Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956, 
the company has elected to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization 
(EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss. The company 
measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/(loss) from continuing operations. In its measurement, the 
company does not include depreciation and amortization expense, finance costs and tax expense.

Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014

March 31, 2014 
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

3.	 Share capital

	 Authorized shares

	� 27,000,000 (March 31, 2013 : 27,000,000) equity shares of ` 10/- each  2,700.00  2,700.00 

	 Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares

	� 19,079,360 (March 31, 2013 : 19,079,360) equity shares of ` 10/- each  1,907.94  1,907.94 

 1,907.94  1,907.94 

a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
Equity shares

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

No. of Shares ` In Lacs No. of Shares ` In Lacs

At the beginning of the year  19,079,360  1,907.94  19,079,360  1,907.94 

Issued during the year — — — —

Outstanding at the end of the year  19,079,360  1,907.94  19,079,360  1,907.94 

Of the above, 720,000 Equity Shares of ` 10/- each fully paid-up have been issued during the period of five years 
immediately preceding the reporting date to RJL – Employee Welfare Trust pursuant to Employee Stock Purchase 
Scheme.

b. Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of ` 10 per share. Each holder of equity 
shares is entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The 
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting. During the year ended March 31, 2014, the amount of per share dividend recognized 
as distributions to equity shareholders was ` 1.00. (March 31, 2013: ` 1.00).
In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining 
assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the 
numbers of equity share held the shareholders.

c. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

No. of Shares % holding in 
the class

No. of Shares % holding in 
the class

Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up

Mr. Niranjan A. Shah  2,607,040  13.66  5,214,080  27.33 

Mr. Sumit N. Shah  4,171,120  21.86  4,171,120  21.86 

Mr. Hitesh M. Shah  1,303,520  6.83  1,303,520  6.83 

Mrs. Kalpana N. Shah  1,274,380  6.68  1,088,308  5.70 

Niranjan Family Private Trust  2,607,040  13.66 —  —  

As per records of the company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received 
from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial 
ownerships of shares.
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March 31, 2014 
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

4.	 Reserves and surplus
	 Capital Reserve
	� Money received against equity share warrants forfeited, option not exercised 

by warrants holders  380.00  380.00 
 380.00  380.00 

	 Securities Premium Account
	 Balance as per the last financial statements  7,128.62  7,128.32 
	 Add : Addition on ESPS’s exercised —   0.30 

 7,128.62  7,128.62 
	 Foreign Currency Translation Reserve  3,205.84  2,442.64 
	 Balance as per the last financial statements  2,442.64  110.45 
	 Add/(Less) : Additions during the year  763.20  2,332.19 

 3,205.84  2,442.64 
	 General reserve
	 Balance as per the last financial statements  599.00  1,281.00 
	 Add : �Amount transferred from surplus balance in the statement of profit & loss  68.00  34.00 
	 Less : Amount adjusted pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation —    (716.00)

 667.00  599.00 
	 Hedging Reserve
	 Hedging reserve account (Refer note 21)  1,414.47 —   

 1,414.47 —  
	 Surplus/(deficit) in the statement of profit and loss
	 Balance as per last financial statements  20,028.42  18,777.81 
	 Adjustment of Goodwill pursuant to amalgamation —   (0.69)
	 Prior year adjustment —   31.43 
	 Profit for the year  2,948.39  1,477.09 
	 Less : Appropriations
		�  Proposed final equity dividend (amount per share ` 1.00  

(March 31, 2013 ` 1.00))  190.79  190.79 
		  Tax on proposed equity dividend  32.43  32.43 
		  Transfer to general reserve  68.00  34.00 
		  Total appropriations  291.22  257.22 
	 Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss  22,685.59  20,028.42 
	T otal reserves and surplus  35,481.49  30,578.71 

Long-term Short-term
March 31, 2014 

` In Lacs
March 31, 2013 

` In Lacs
March 31, 2014 

` In Lacs
March 31, 2013 

` In Lacs

5.	 Provisions
	 Provision for employee benefits
	 Provision for gratuity (Refer note 24)  139.13  79.86  235.56  209.38 
	� Provision for Leave salary  109.70  79.22  34.54  26.48 

 248.83  159.08  270.10  235.86 
	 Other provisions
	 Proposed equity dividend — —  190.79  190.79 
	� Provision for tax on proposed equity 

dividend — —  32.43  32.43 
	� Provision for Tax (Net of Advances) — —  30.61 —  

— —  253.83  223.22 

Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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March 31, 2014 
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

6.	 Short-term borrowings
	� Working Capital Finance from banks denominated in Foreign Currency 

(secured)*  30,919.95  20,808.95 
	� Working Capital Finance from banks denominated in Indian Currency 

(secured)*  35.71  455.34 
	� Buyers credit from banks in foreign currency (secured)*  313.74  709.50 
	 Interest free loan from related parties repayable on demand (unsecured)  2,929.89  1,138.24 
	 Loan from third parties# —    1,081.85 

 34,199.29  24,193.88 

*	 Renaissance Jewellery Limited
	� (The Working Capital Loan is secured by first charge on pari passu basis by way of hypothecation and/or pledge of 

company’s current assets both present and future, by way of joint equitable mortgage of Company’s factory premises 
situated at Plot Nos. 36A and 37 (Mumbai), at Plot No. 2302 (Bhavnagar) and office premises situated bearing no 
CC9081 with car parking situated at Bharat Diamond Bourse and hypothecation of machinery and plant, furniture and 
fixtures, electrical installations, office equipments, erected and installed therein and by personal guarantee of some 
of the directors/promoters. The working capital finance is generally having tenure of 180 days. The Foreign currency 
loans carries interest rate @ LIBOR plus 2% to 4.5% and Indian currency Loans carries interest rate @ 10% to 12%.)

*	 Housefull International Limited
	� (Cash credit & Buyers credit from Banks are secured by hypothecation of inventories and book debts, both present and 

future. Further, collaterally secured by mortgage of immovable property of Holding and Ultimate holding companies, 
corporate guarantees of Holding and Ultimate holding companies and personal guarantees of some of the Directors. 
Foreign currency loans carries interest rate @ LIBOR plus 250 or minus 350 bps and Indian currency Loans carries 
interest rate @ lending bank’s base rate plus 5.25%.

#	� These unsecured loans were obtained from third parties and were repayable on demand. Loans in Indian currency 
carry an interest rate of 9%.

*	 Renaissance Jewelry New York Inc.
	� The company has a credit facility with a bank for its working capital requirements. The same is secured by substantially 

all assets of the company and various guarantees. The bank is also the loss payee on the company’s jeweler’s block 
policy. Interest on these borrowings is calculated as a function of the Banks prime rate or LIBOR. The facility contains 
various restrictive convenants.

March 31, 2014 
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

7.	 Trade payables and other current liabilities
	 Trade payable  20,174.93  15,557.94 
	 Other liabilities
	 Interest accrued but not due on gold loan  1.46  5.56 
	 Salaries, wages and others  1,061.52  525.55 
	� Investor Education and Protection Fund will be credited by following 

amount (as and when due)
		  Unpaid dividend  4.19  7.34 
	 Other payables
		  Statutory dues payable  320.56  250.74 
		  Bank overdraft as per books  0.04  0.58 

 1,387.77  789.77 
 21,562.70  16,347.71 

  

Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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March 31, 2014 
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

9.	 Non-current investments

	T rade investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)

	U nquoted Equity Instruments

	 i)	E quity Shares of `  10/- each of Anived Trade Impex Private Limited

		  (formerly known as Fancy Jewellery Private Limited)

		  (Nos. of Equity Shares Nil PY : 1) — —

	 ii)	 Equity Shares of USD 1/- each of Verigold.com Ltd.

		  (Nos. of Equity Shares 1 PY : 1)  0.92  0.92 

	 iii)	 Equity Shares of ` 10/- each of Saraswat Co-op Bank Ltd.

		  (Nos. of Equity Shares 10 PY : 10) — —

	 Investments in Mutual Funds (Unquoted-Non Trade)

	 i)	 SBI PSU Fund of ` 10/- each �

		  (Nos. of units 100,000 PY : 100,000)  10.00  10.00 

 10.92  10.92 

	 Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  10.92  10.92 

10.	Deferre d tax assets (net)   

	 Deferred tax liability:

	� Fixed assets: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and 
depreciation/amortization charged for the financial reporting  125.32  107.36 

	 Add : Transfer pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation —    4.36 

	 Gross deferred tax liabilities  125.32  111.72 

	 Provision for leave salary/gratuity  158.44  116.99 

	 Provision for bonus/ex-gratia —   22.91 

	 Provision for Doubtful debts and advances  30.03  21.78 

	 Unabsorbed Business Loss —   40.75 

	 Others  155.85  89.82 

	 Gross deferred tax assets  344.32  292.25 

	 Net deferred tax asset  219.00  180.53 

Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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Non-current Current

March 31, 2014 
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

March 31, 2014 
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

11.	 Loans and advances
	 Capital advances
	 Unsecured, considered good  61.06  40.03 — —
	 (A)  61.06  40.03 — —
	 Security deposit
	� Unsecured, considered good  689.02  613.93  184.06  242.50 
	 (B)  689.02  613.93  184.06  242.50 
	� Loan and advances to related 

parties
	� Unsecured, considered good — — — —
	 (C) — — — —
	 �Advances recoverable in cash 

or kind
	� Unsecured, considered good — —  938.30  356.46 
	 (C) — —  938.30  356.46 
	� Other loans and advances
	� Advance income-tax (net of 

provisions)  12.56  12.56 —    204.28 
	� Minimum Alternate Tax Credit 

Entitlement  812.05  701.05 —   —   
	 Prepaid expenses —  8.66  280.17  269.61 
	� Balance with RJL Employee 

Welfare Trust (Net)  290.38  290.38 —   —   
	 Loans to employees —  —   28.25  58.23 
	� Balance with statutory/

government authorities —  —  720.48  742.55 
	 (D)  1,114.99  1,012.65  1,028.90  1,274.67 
	 Total (A+B+C+D)  1,865.07  1,666.61  2,151.26  1,873.63 

12.	� Trade receivables and 
other assets

	 12.1	Trade receivables
		�  Unsecured, considered good 

unless stated otherwise 
Outstanding for a period 
exceeding six months from 
the date they are due for 
payment

		  Unsecured, considered good — —  7.97  122.21 
		  (A) — —  7.97  122.21 
		  Other receivables
		  Unsecured, considered good — —  24,450.76  16,374.24 
		  Doubtful — —  54.44  54.44 

— —  24,505.20  16,428.68 
		�  Provision for doubtful 

receivables — —  54.44  54.44 
(B) — —  24,450.76  16,374.24 

		  Total (A+B) — —  24,458.73  16,496.45 

Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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Non-current Current

March 31, 2014 
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

March 31, 2014 
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

	 12.2 Other assets

		�  Deposits with original 
maturity for more than 
12 months (Refer note 14)  44.84  72.04 — —

(A)  44.84  72.04 — —

		  Unamortized expenditure

		�  Forward contract receivable — —  1,417.51  332.42 

(B) — —  1,417.51  332.42 

		  Others

		�  Interest accrued on fixed 
deposits  15.92  11.18  13.10  6.23 

(C)  15.92  11.18  13.10  6.23 

		  Total (A+B+C)  60.76  83.22  1,430.61  338.65 

March 31, 2014 
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

13.	 Inventories

	 Raw Materials

		  Gems and diamonds  9,912.93  11,956.10 

		  Gold, Silver and others  190.84  560.21 

	 Finished goods (Jewellery)  21,681.94  15,685.87 

	� Traded goods (Furniture and 
accessories)

 2,068.05  3,293.47 

	 Traded goods (Gems and diamond)  3.18  3.18 

	 Work-in-progress  14,063.94  7,742.12 

	 Consumable, tools and spares  537.54  439.08 

	 Promotional items  22.78  22.72 

 48,481.20  39,702.75 

Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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Non-current Current

March 31, 2014 
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

March 31, 2014 
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

14.	 Cash and bank balances

	 Cash and cash equivalents

	 Balance with banks:

		  On current accounts — —  5,360.56  3,856.24 

		�  Deposits with original maturity 
of less than 3 months — —  230.21  57.04 

		  On unpaid dividend account —  —  4.19  7.34 

	 Cash on hand — —  54.04  72.78 

(A) — —  5,649.00  3,993.40 

	 Other bank balances

		�  Deposits with original maturity 
for more than 12 months  44.84  72.04 —   —

		�  Deposits with original maturity 
of more than 3 months but 
less than 12 months  —   —  329.43  333.43 

		�  Margin Money Deposit with  
banks against gold loan — —  132.90  1.80 

 44.84  72.04  462.33  335.23 

	� Amount disclosed under  
“other asset” (Refer note 12.2)  (44.84)  (72.04) — —

(B) — —  462.33  335.23 

	 Total (A+B) — —  6,111.33  4,328.63 

Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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March 31, 2014
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013
` In Lacs

15.	 Revenue from operations

	S ale of products

	 Jewellery  106,642.23  78,771.38 

	 Gems and diamonds  4,294.86  5,401.07 

	 Furniture and accessories  11,251.75  10,996.27 

	S ale of services

	 Jewellery making charges  4.57  1.43 

	O ther operating revenues

	 Sale of Dust  3.61  10.14 

	 Sale of Scrap  11.86  4.78 

	 Sale of Services  7.19  7.64 

	 Revenue from operations  122,216.07  95,192.71 

16.	O ther income

	 Interest income on 

		  Bank deposits  81.27  110.60 

		  Others  0.03  3.87 

	 Dividend income on long term investment —   5.82 

	 Gain on redemption of long term investment —    1.67 

	 Exchange difference (net) —    173.08 

	 Other non-operating income  63.72  20.06 

 145.02  315.10 

17.	Em ployee benefit expense

	 Salaries, wages and bonus  7,519.62  7,662.48 

	 Contribution to provident and other funds  395.36  556.26 

	 Gratuity expense (Refer note 24)  85.89  224.47 

	 Leave salary  77.87  124.42 

	 Staff welfare expenses  567.10  397.79 

 8,645.84  8,965.42 

Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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March 31, 2014
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013
` In Lacs

18.	O ther expenses

	 Consumption of stores and spare parts  1,273.98  1,019.24 

	 Power and fuel  878.60  694.23 

	 Water charges  57.26  53.87 

	 Advertisement/Sales promotion expenses  1,300.33  882.42 

	 Jewellery making charges  5,423.64  2,430.97 

	 Freight and forwarding charges  307.21  252.92 

	 Rent  1,962.40  1,735.62 

	 Rates & Taxes  33.37  42.98 

	 Insurance  357.88  263.76 

	 Repairs and maintenance
		  Buildings  146.95  34.70 

		  Machinery  45.02  40.98 

		  Others  234.28  208.01 

	 Exchange difference (net)  3,724.60 —  

	 Payment to auditor (Refer details below)  83.63  84.50 

	 Loss on sale of assets  11.16  62.63 

	 Miscellaneous expenses  3,699.13  3,237.66 

 19,539.44  11,044.49 

	P ayment to auditor
	A s auditor:
		  Audit fee  73.44  71.36 

		  Tax audit fee  4.69  2.25 

		  Limited review  4.00  6.18 

	 In other capacity:
		  Taxation  1.50  1.12 

		  Reimbursement of expenses —   3.59 

 83.63#   84.50# 

	 # Includes fees paid to other auditor ̀  54.13 Lacs (March 31, 2013 ̀  64.65 Lacs)

	 # Includes fees paid to previous auditor ` Nil (March 31, 2013 ` 6.40 Lacs)

19.	 Depreciation and amortization expense

	 Depreciation of tangible assets  1,043.29  926.94 

	 Amortization of intangible assets  157.88  126.54 

 1,201.17  1,053.48 

20.	Fi nance costs

	 Interest  1,167.31  1,276.59 

 1,167.31  1,276.59 

Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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21. Hedge

	� The Company has changed its accounting policy with regard to recognition of exchange differences arising on 
translation of Forward contract and Exchange Traded Currency Futures Contracts by following an appropriate 
hedge accounting policy and applying the principles set out in AS-30 “Financial Instrument: Recognition and 
Measurement”. The Company has w.e.f. from April 01, 2013 designated Forward contract and Exchange Traded 
Currency Futures Contracts as hedge instrument to hedge its foreign currency risks of highly probable forecast 
transaction (of revenue streams) to be accounted as cash flow hedge. During the current year ended March 31, 
2014, the net exchange difference gain on Forward contract and Exchange Traded Currency Futures Contracts 
amounting to ` 1,414.47 Lacs has been recognized in Hedging Reserve Account. Had this accounting treatment 
been not adopted by the Company, the profit (net of tax) on account of exchange difference gain for the current 
year would have been higher by ` 1,139.17 Lacs and consequently the reserves would have been lower by  
` 275.30 Lacs.

22. Housefull International Limited

	� The company sells its goods at various retail outlets including e-commerce. Upon customer’s selection it offers 
sale and delivery thereof. On acceptance of offer for sale, the price is invoiced and the sale consideration is 
fully collected. The relevant goods are marked for that customer. The delivery of the sold product is effected or 
deferred at the customer’s request. The company recognises such invoices (where amount is fully collected) as 
sales, though the delivery is deferred at the customer’s request, in terms of legal advice and applicable Accounting 
Standard that the sale is complete when goods are appropriated and identified upon payment.

23. Derivative Instruments and unhedged foreign currency exposure

a) Forward contract outstanding as at Balance Sheet date:

Particulars Purpose

Forward Contract to sell US $ Forward contract against future order (Revenue Stream)

US $ 424.81 Lacs (March 31, 2013: US $ 281.50 Lacs)

` 25,509.97 Lacs (March 31, 2013: ` 15,324.86 Lacs)

Forward Contract to buy US $ Forward contract against foreign currency trade payables

US $ 17.05 Lacs (March 31, 2013: US $ Nil)

` 1,023.85 Lacs (March 31, 2013: ` Nil)

	 b)	P articulars of unhedged foreign currency exposure as at the reporting date:

March 31, 2014 
In Lacs

March 31, 2014 
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

Trade receivables USD	 572.27  34,364.52 USD	 413.98  22,537.18 

Secured loans USD	 420.13  25,228.69 USD	 345.27  18,796.46 

Trade Payables USD	 188.53  11,321.28 USD	 124.00  6,750.26 

EUR	 0.25  20.48 EUR	 0.71  49.18 

GBP	 0.01  1.48 GBP	 — — 

CHF	 0.12  8.21 CHF	 — —  

JPY	 1.12  0.66 JPY	 — —  

Balance with Banks USD	 3.69  221.52 USD	 0.51  27.82 

Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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24. employee benefits

General Description of Defined Benefit plan

Gratuity

�The Company operates single type of Gratuity plans wherein every employee is entitled to the benefit equivalent 
to fifteen days salary last drawn for each completed year of service depending on the date of joining and eligibility 
terms. The same is payable on termination of service or retirement whichever is earlier. The benefit vests after five 
years of continuous service.

�The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and 
loss account and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans.

Statement of Profit & Loss Account Gratuity (Un-funded) Gratuity (Funded)

Net Employee Benefit Expense 
recognized in the employee cost

March 31, 2014
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013
` In Lacs

March 31, 2014
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013
` In Lacs

Current service cost  7.64  7.55  68.16  72.09 

Interest cost on benefit obligation  1.56  1.62  25.92  36.78 

Past service Cost —  —  —   —   

Expected return on plan assets —  —  (4.69)  (11.82)

Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognised in 
the year  (5.62)  (9.44)  (7.60)  127.68 

Net Benefit Expense  3.58  (0.26)  81.79  224.73 

Actual Return on Plan Assets —   —   1.87  15.20 

Balance sheet

Benefit asset/liability

Present Value of defined benefit 
obligation  (22.90)  (19.76)  (369.94)  (323.95)

Fair value of plan assets —   —  —   —   

Plan assets/(liability)  (22.90)  (19.76)  (369.94)  (323.95)

Changes in Present Value of Defined 
Benefit Obligation are as follows:

Opening defined benefit obligation  19.76  20.60  323.95  432.71 

Current service cost  7.64  7.55  68.16  72.09 

Interest cost  1.56  1.62  25.92  36.78 

Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation  (5.62)  (9.44)  (10.40)  131.06 

Past Service Cost —   —  —   —   

Benefits paid  (0.44)  (0.58)  (37.69)  (348.67)

Closing defined benefit obligation  22.90  19.76  369.94  323.95 

Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets are as follows: March 31, 2014
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013
` In Lacs

Opening fair value of planned assets  53.97  137.44 
Expected return  4.67  11.82 
Actuarial gain/(loss)  (2.80)  3.38 
Contributions by employer —    250.00 
Benefits paid  (37.69)  (348.67)
Closing fair value of plan assets  18.15  53.97 

The company expects to contribute ` 227.57 Lacs to gratuity in the next year (March 31, 2013: ` 202.89 Lacs)

The major category of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

Gratuity

March 31, 2014
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013
` In Lacs

Insurance Policy

	 Renaissance Jewellery Limited 100% 100%

	 Housefull International Limited 0% 0%

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Company’s plans are shown below:

Gratuity (Un-funded) Gratuity (Funded)

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

Discount rate 9.19% 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%

Expected rate of return on assets NA NA 8.70% 8.70%

Age of Retirement 58 58 60 60

Annual increase in salary cost 4.00% 8.00% 5.00% 5.00%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, 
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

The over all expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing as on that date, 
applicable to the period over which the obligation is expected to be settled. There has been change in expected rate 
of return on assets due to change in the market scenario.

Amounts for the current and previous four period are as follows:

Gratuity: March 31, 
2014

` In Lacs

March 31, 
2013

` In Lacs

March 31, 
2012

` In Lacs

March 31, 
2011

` In Lacs

March 31, 
2010

` In Lacs

Defined Benefit Obligation (374.04)  (343.71)  (432.71)  (169.62)  (304.89)

Plan Assets 18.15  53.97  137.44  172.16  182.71 

Surplus/(deficit) (355.89)  (289.74)  (295.27)  2.54  (122.18)

Experience adjustment on plan liabilities (357.41)  (119.36)  (180.20)  (128.44)  (3.85)

Experience adjustment on plan assets 1.89  3.38  13.44  (4.70)  6.76 

Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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25.	S egment Information

	B usiness Segments:
	� In accordance with the principles given in Accounting Standard on Segment Reporting (AS-17) notified by Companies 

(Accounting Standard) Rules 2006, the Group has identified its primary business segments as “Manufacturing and 
sale of Jewellery” and “Furniture and accessories”.

March 31, 2014
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013
` In Lacs

	S egment Revenue
	 Jewellery  110,945.28  84,184.03 

	 Furniture and accessories  11,270.79  11,008.68 

	 Total  122,216.07  95,192.71 

	S egment Result
	 (Profit before Tax and Interest from each segment)
	 Jewellery  4,800.33  3,371.48 

	 Furniture and accessories  334.08  286.39 

	 Total  5,134.41  3,657.87 

	 Less:	Interest  1,167.31  1,276.59 

		  Unallocated (Income)/Expenditure (net)  126.26  85.21 

	 Total Profit before Tax  3,840.84  2,296.07 

	C apital Employed
	 (Segment Assets - Segment Liabilities)
	 Jewellery  67,105.87  50,514.28 

	 Furniture and accessories  3,572.68  5,084.13 

	 Unallocated  (33,289.12)  (23,111.77)

	 Total  37,389.43  32,486.64 

	 Other segment information

	 Carrying amount of segment assets
	 Jewellery  87,317.70  65,778.94 

	 Furniture and accessories  4,950.30  6,383.07 

	 Unallocated  1,656.50  1,484.38 

	 Total amount of Segment liabilities
	 Jewellery  20,211.82  15,264.65 

	 Furniture and accessories  1,377.62  1,298.94 

	 Unallocated  34,945.62  24,596.16 

	 Capital Expenditure:
	 Additions to tangible & intangible fixed assets (Including CWIP & advance)
	 Jewellery  7,965.61  1,665.78 

	 Furniture and accessories  122.97  186.01 

	 Depreciation and Amortisation
	 Jewellery  940.76  790.83 

	 Furniture and accessories  260.41  262.65 

Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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	 Geographical Segments:

	� The following table shows the distribution of the Company’s consolidated sales by geographical market, regardless 
of where the goods were produced:

	Y ear ended March 31, 2014 India Outside India Total

	 Revenue

	 Sales to external customers  12,869.29  109,346.78  122,216.07 

	 Other segment information

	 Carrying amount of segment assets  42,386.12  50,744.37  93,130.49 

	 Capital Expenditure:

	� Additions to tangible & intangible fixed assets (Including  
CWIP & advance)  5,798.20  2,290.38  8,088.58 

	Y ear ended March 31, 2013 India Outside India Total

	 Revenue

	 Sales to external customers  13,975.03  81,217.67  95,192.71 

	 Other segment information
	 Carrying amount of segment assets  36,123.30  36,605.21  72,728.51 

	 Capital Expenditure:
	� Additions to tangible & intangible fixed assets (Including CWIP & 

advance)  496.87  956.89  1,453.76 

	 Notes:
	 Geographical Segment:

	 a)	� For the purpose of geographical segment the sales are divided into two segments – India and outside India.

	 b)	� The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in Note 2.1.

26.	� Related party disclosures as required under AS-18, “Related Party Disclosures”,  
are given below:

	 a)	N ames of related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year
		A  ssociate concerns/companies/trust under control of key management personnel and relatives:

		  1)	 Anived Trade Impex Private Limited (formerly known as Fancy Jewellery Private Limited).

		  2)	 Vedani Allcomm Impex Private Limited (formerly known as Anika Jewellery Private Limited).

		  3)	 Niranjan Holdings Private Limited.

		  4)	 Renaissance Jewellery Limited – Employee Group Gratuity Trust.

		  5)	 iAlpha Enterprise.

		  6)	 RJL – Employee Welfare Trust.

		  7)	 Renaissance Foundation.

		  Key Management Personnel:

		  1)	 Mr. Niranjan A. Shah	 5)	 Mr. Amit C. Shah

		  2)	 Mr. Sumit N. Shah	 6)	 Mr. Bhupen C. Shah

		  3)	 Mr. Hitesh M. Shah	 7)	 Mr. Dhruv Desai

		  4)	 Mr. Neville R. Tata

Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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	 b)	 Related Party transactions:
		�  The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for 

the relevant financial year:

March 31, 2014 
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013 
` In Lacs

Nature of transactions:

1)	 Donation given
	 1)	 Renaissance – Foundation  46.35  22.35 

2)	S ale of goods
	 1)	 Mr. Sumit N. Shah —    0.41 

3)	 Managerial remuneration
	 1)	 Mr. Niranjan A. Shah  18.09  18.09 
	 2)	 Mr. Sumit N. Shah  12.09  12.09 
	 3)	 Mr. Hitesh M. Shah  15.09  15.09 
	 4)	 Mr. Neville R. Tata  32.09  25.16 
	 5)	 Mr. Dhruv Desai  49.18  3.23 

4)	 Loan given
	 1)	 RJL - Employee Welfare Trust —    0.30 

5)	 Loan repayment received
	 1)	 RJL - Employee Welfare Trust —   39.00 

6)	 Loan accepted
	 1)	 Mr. Niranjan A. Shah  1,705.54  184.10 
	 2)	 Mr. Sumit N. Shah  3,154.87  201.82 
	 3)	 Mr. Hitesh M. Shah  188.73  15.00 
	 4)	 Mr. Amit C. Shah  56.72 —  
	 5)	 Mr. Bhupen C. Shah  173.94  3.50 

7)	 Loan repaid
	 1)	 Mr. Niranjan A. Shah  1,573.33  110.90 
	 2)	 Mr. Sumit N. Shah  1,631.84  334.92 
	 3)	 Mr. Hitesh M. Shah  187.48  41.67 
	 4)	 Mr. Amit C. Shah  25.26  18.50 
	 5)	 Mr. Bhupen C. Shah  70.25  34.40 

Balance as at:

Loans and advances receivable
	 1)	 RJL – Employee Welfare Trust  290.38  290.38 
Other receivable
	 1)	 Mr. Sumit N. Shah  3.22  3.40 
Loans and advances payable
	 1)	 Mr. Niranjan A. Shah  857.54  725.33 
	 2)	 Mr. Sumit N. Shah  1,886.05  363.02 
	 3)	 Mr. Hitesh M. Shah  31.63  30.38 
	 4)	 Mr. Amit C. Shah  33.72  2.26 
	 5)	 Mr. Bhupen C. Shah  120.94  17.25 
	 6)	 RJL – Employee Group Gratuity Trust  351.79  269.19 

Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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27.	l eases
	O perating Lease: company as lessee
	� The Company has entered into arrangements for taking on leave and license basis certain residential/office premises 

and warehouses. These leases have average life of between 2 to 5 years with renewal option included in the 
contract. The specified disclosure in respect of these agreements is given below:

March 31, 2014
` In Lacs

March 31, 2013
` In Lacs

	� Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases 
are as follows:

	 Charged to statement of profit and loss  1,886.70  1,705.36 
	 Within one year  554.19  731.98 
	 After one year but note more than five years  1,374.08  1,333.15 
	 More than five years  1,263.03  1,308.18 

28.	E arnings per share (EPS)
	� The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and diluted 

EPS computations:
	T otal operations for the year
	 Profit after tax  2,948.39  1,477.09 
	N et profit for calculation of basic and diluted EPS  2,948.39  1,477.09 

No. of Shares No. of Shares
	 Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS  19,079,360  19,079,360 
	 Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating Diluted EPS — —
	 Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS  19,079,360  19,079,360 
	 Add : No. of convertible shares warrants —  195,086 
	 Weighted average number of dilutive potential equity shares  19,079,360  19,274,446 
	 Basic Earnings per share  15.45  7.74 
	 Diluted Earnings per share  15.45  7.74 

29.	C apital and other commitments
	� Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account 

and not provided for (net of advances)  3.52  38.40 

30.	C ontingent Liabilities
	 i)	 Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts  5.17  4.71 
	 ii)	 Penalty levied by the Custom Authorities  3.11  3.11 
	 iii)	 Income Tax demand disputed in appeal :
		  Disputed by the Company —  —
		  Disputed by the Department  92.58  234.21 
	 iv)	 Service tax on the rental of immovable property (Refer note 1)  184.13  184.13 
	 v)	 Customs duty under EPCG scheme (Refer note 2)  18.70  18.70 
	 vi)	 Letter of Credit opened by Bank (in lieu of security deposit) —   62.24 
	 vii)	 Disputed demand by Custom Authorities (Refer note 3)  21,322.24  21,322.24 
	 viii)	 Bank Guarantees  62.12  17.23 

 21,688.05  21,846.57 

	� (The contingent liabilities, if materialised, shall entirely be borne by the company, as there is no likely reimbursement 
from any other party.)

Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2014
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	 Note : 1	 Housefull International Limited

	 �In September 2008, the Company along with other retailers represented by “Retail Association of India” (RAI) filed a 
petition in the Bombay High Court seeking a declaration that the Government lacked power to levy and collect, service 
tax on the rental of immovable property. The Bombay High Court passed a Judgment upholding the constitutional 
validity of service tax levy on renting of immovable property as retrospective effect from June 01, 2007. Against the 
Bombay High Court Judgment, the RAI filed a Special Leave Petition (‘SLP’) before the Supreme Court (‘SC’) of India. 
SC has passed an interim order requiring the petitioners to deposit service tax with effect from October 01, 2011, make 
a pre deposit of 50% of the service tax liability for the period prior to October 01, 2011 and provide a solvent surety for 
the balance 50%. Considering the issue is currently sub judice and under litigation management has disclosed service 
tax amounting to ` 180 Lacs for the period prior October 01, 2011 as a contingent liability.

	 Note : 2	 Housefull International Limited

	� The Company had purchased Fixed Assets under the “Export Promotion Capital Goods Scheme” (EPCG) in year 
2008-2009. As per the terms of the license granted under the scheme, the Company has undertaken to achieve 
export commitment of ` 276.02 Lacs over a period of 8 years, which expire on January 14, 2016. In the event of 
company being unable to execute its export obligations the Company shall be liable to pay custom duty of ` 18.69 
Lacs and interest on the same at the rate of 15 percent compounded annually. The Company is hopeful of meeting 
its export obligation and accordingly no provision is required for the same in books of accounts.

	 Note : 3	 Renaissance Jewellery Limited

	� The Company has received a demand of Customs duty along with the penalty amounting to ` 16,754.90 Lacs from 
the Commissioner of Customs, Chhatrapati Shivaji International Airport, Mumbai (Customs), alleging that the import 
of finished jewellery for remaking is not a permitted activity for an unit in SEEPZ SEZ and hence chargeable to 
Customs duty. Further, the Commissioner has also preferred an appeal to CESTAT for levy of interest of ` 2,283.67 
Lacs along with penalty amounting of ` 2,283.67 Lacs on the said Customs duty considering the issue is currently 
sub judice and under litigation in the Bombay High Court, management has disclosed the demand of ` 21,322.24 
Lacs as a contingent liabilities.

31. Employee Stock Purchase Scheme (“ESPS 2008”)

	� A maximum 720,000 options can be granted under the plan. Employees who acquire shares under “ESPP 2008” 
would not be able to transfer such shares during the lock in period. The shares as per the scheme are issued 
at market price and hence there is no employee compensation expense. (Market price based on average of the 
two weeks high and low price of the share preceding the grant date on the Stock Exchange with highest trading 
volumes in that period).

32. Previous year figures

	 Previous year’s figures are regrouped/rearranged/recast wherever considered necessary.

Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements
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ECS FORM
Renaissance Jewellery Ltd.

Shareholder’s option to receive Dividend Payment through Electronic Clearing Service (ECS)

DP ID / CL ID No.: No. of Shares held:

LF No.:

I/We hereby opt for payment of dividend under NECS and give below the necessary particulars:

	   1.	 Name of the Sole/First Shareholder	 :

	   2.	 Name of the Bank	 :

	   3.	 Name of the Branch	 :

	   4.	 Address of the Branch	 :

	   5.	 Telephone No. of the Branch	 :

	   6.	 Type of Account	
		  (Savings/Current/Cash Credit)	 :

	   7.	 Applicable Code No. (10/11/13)
		  (Saving - 10/Current - 11/Cash Credit - 13)	 :

	   8.	 Account Number 
		  (As appearing in your Cheque Book)	 :

	   9.	 Ledger & Ledger Folio No. (if any)
		  of your bank account	 :

	 10.	 MICR Code	 :

		�  9 – Digit Code No. appearing on the clear band 
area at the bottom of MICR Cheque issued by Bank 
(the code number is mentioned on the MICR band 
next to the cheque number)

		  (Ensure a photocopy of a blank cheque is enclosed)	

I/We hereby declare that the above particulars are complete and correct. I/We also undertake to advice any change in 
the particulars of my/our account to facilitate updation of records for payment of dividend. If the transaction is delayed 
or is not effected at all due to incomplete or incorrect information or for any reason beyond the control of the Company, 
I/We shall not hold the Company responsible.

Place : 				 

Date  : 				   Signature of the Sole/First named Shareholder

Encl.: A photocopy of the cheque or a blank cheque duly cancelled.

Note: If cheque is not available, the following certificate may please be furnished from your Bank:

BANK CERTIFICATE

We hereby certify that the particulars furnished above are correct as per our records.

Bank’s Stamp	 	

Date:				    Signature of the Authorised Official of the Bank 





Renaissance Jewellery Ltd.
Regd. Office: 36-A & 37, SEEPZ, Andheri (E), Mumbai-400 096. 

Tel: 022-4055 1200 Fax: 022-2829 2146, Web: www.renjewellery.com Email: investors@renjewellery.com   
(CIN-L36911MH1989PLC054498)

BALLOT FORM
(To be returned to the Scrutinizer appointed by the Company)

1.	 Name(s) of Member(s)	 :

	 (Including joint-holders, if any)

2.	 Address of Member(s)	 :

3.	 Registered Folio No./
	 DPID No./ Client ID No.*	 :

4.	 No. of shares held	 :

5.	� I/We hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of the Ordinary Resolution(s), as specified in the Notice of the Company 
dated August 7, 2014 to be passed through Ballot for the business stated in the said Notice by conveying my/our 
assent or dissent to the said resolution in the relevant box below:

Resolutions For Against

  1.	� Consider and adopt Audited Financial Statement, Reports of the Board of Directors and 
Auditors thereon

  2.	 Declaration of Dividend on Equity Shares

  3.	 Re-appointment of Mr. Niranjan A. Shah, who retires by rotation

  4.	 Appointment of Auditors and fixing their remuneration

  5.	 Appointment of Mr. Veerkumar C. Shah as an Independent Director

  6.	 Appointment of Mr. Vishwas V. Mehendale as an Independent Director

  7.	 Appointment of Mr. Anil K. Chopra as an Independent Director

  8.	 Appointment of Mr. Arun P. Sathe as an Independent Director

  9.	 Appointment of Dr. Madhavi S. Pethe as an Independent Director

10.	 Re-appointment of Mr. Hitesh M. Shah as a Whole-time Director	

11.	 Re-appointment of Mr. Neville R. Tata as a Whole-time Director

Place: Signature of Member / Beneficial Owner

Date:

E mail: .......................................................... Tel: ............................................

INSTRUCTIONS
1.	� A Member desiring to exercise vote by ballot form may complete this ballot form by entering the number of shares FOR or 

AGAINST the particular resolution and send it to Mr. V. V. Chakradeo, a Practicing Company Secretary, the Scrutinizer appointed 
by the Company C/o Link Intime India Private Limited, Unit: Renaissance Jewellery Limited, C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound, 
L.B.S. Marg, Bhandup (West), Mumbai-400 078. 

2.	 Duly completed ballot form should reach the Scrutinizer on or before 5.30 p.m. on Monday, September 08, 2014. 
3.	� In case of shares held by companies, trusts, societies etc., the duly completed ballot form should be accompanied by a certified 

true copy of Board Resolution/Authority.
4.	 Unsigned ballot forms will be rejected.
5.	 The Scrutinizer’s decision on the validity of a ballot form will be final.
* Applicable to Members holding shares in dematerialized form.









Renaissance Jewellery Ltd.
Regd. Office: 36-A & 37, SEEPZ, Andheri (E), Mumbai-400 096. 

Tel: 022-4055 1200 Fax: 022-2829 2146, Web: www.renjewellery.com Email: investors@renjewellery.com   
(CIN-L36911MH1989PLC054498)

DP ID* Folio No.

CLIENT ID* No of Shares

NAME & ADDRESS OF THE SHAREHOLDER(S): ...........................................................................................................

...........................................................................................................

...........................................................................................................

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 25th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company on Friday,  
September 12, 2014 at 3.30 p.m. at Yuvraj Hall, Supremo Activity Centre, Matoshree Arts & Sports Trust,  
Jogeshwari-Vikhroli Link Road, Andheri (E), Mumbai-400 093.

Signature of the Shareholder/Proxy present
Notes:
1.	� Please hand over the attendance slip at the entrance of the meeting venue.
2.	� This attendance is valid only in case shares are held on the date of meeting.
3.	� As per section 118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Secretarial Standards for General Meeting issued by Institute of Company Secretaries 

of India “No gifts, gift coupons or cash in lieu of gifts shall be distributed to members at or in connection with the meeting”

* Applicable for Investors holding shares in Electronic Form.

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Renaissance Jewellery Ltd.
Regd. Office: 36-A & 37, SEEPZ, Andheri (E), Mumbai-400 096. 

Tel: 022-4055 1200 Fax: 022-2829 2146, Web: www.renjewellery.com 
Email: investors@renjewellery.com   
(CIN-L36911MH1989PLC054498)

Name of the member(s) *DP Id

Registered address *Client Id/Folio No.

e-mail Id

I/We, being the member(s) of ...............................................(nos.) shares of Renaissance Jewellery Ltd., hereby appoint:

1) ...............................................................of ................................. having email id………………………………or failing him;

2) ...............................................................of ................................. having email id………………………………or failing him;

3) ...............................................................of ................................. having email id……………....………………… and whose 
signature(s) are appended below as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at 
the 25th Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Friday, September 12, 2014 at 3.30 p.m. at 
Yuvraj Hall, Supremo Activity Centre, Matoshree Arts & Sports Trust, Jogeshwari-Vikhroli Link Road, Andheri (E), 
Mumbai-400 093 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

** I wish my above Proxy to vote in the manner as indicated in the box below: 

Resolutions For Against

1.	� Consider and adopt Audited Financial Statement, Reports of the Board of Directors and 
Auditors thereon

2.	 Declaration of Dividend on Equity Shares

3.	 Re-appointment of Mr. Niranjan A. Shah, who retires by rotation

4.	 Appointment of Auditors and fixing their remuneration

5.	 Appointment of Mr. Veerkumar C. Shah as an Independent Director

6.	 Appointment of Mr. Vishwas V. Mehendale as an Independent Director

PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) 
of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014]

P.T.O.



Resolutions For Against

  7.	 Appointment of Mr. Anil K. Chopra as an Independent Director

  8.	 Appointment of Mr. Arun P. Sathe as an Independent Director

  9.	 Appointment of Dr. Madhavi S. Pethe as an Independent Director

10.	 Re-appointment of Mr. Hitesh M. Shah as a Whole-time Director	

11.	 Re-appointment of Mr. Neville R. Tata as a Whole-time Director

		

Signed this ………................................ day of …...........................…. 2014

Signature of shareholder

 

Signature of First Proxy holder Signature of Second Proxy holder Signature of Third Proxy holder

Notes:

1.	 �This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the 
Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

2.	� A Proxy need not be a member of the Company. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013, a person 
can act as proxy on behalf of not more than fifty members and holding in aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share 
capital of the Company. Members holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company may appoint a single 
person as proxy, who shall not act as proxy for any other member.

3.	� Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he so wishes.

4.	� In the case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all the joint holders should be stated.

*	 Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.
**	� This is only optional. Please put a ‘X’ in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the Box. If you leave the ‘For’ 

or ‘Against’ column blank against any or all the resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks 
appropriate.
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1995	 •	 Acquires Mayur Gem and Jewellery Export Private Limited.

2000	� •	 Purchases a 40,000 sq.ft. facility in SEEPZ, Andheri.

2001	 •	 Receives the SEEPZ-SEZ Star 2000-2001 Award. 

2002	 •	 Commences business with Wal-Mart, USA.

2004	� •	 Commences business with Zales Corporation, North America.

2005	� •	 Sets up a 100% EOU having 64,000 sq.ft. facility at Bhavnagar, Gujarat.
	 •	 Receives Wal-Mart’s ‘International Supplier of the Year’ Award.

2006	� •	 GJEPC Award for being the second largest exporter of studded precious metal Jewellery.

2007	 •	� Sets up Renaissance Jewelry New York, Inc.
	 •	 Recognition as Three Star Export House.
	 •	 Completes IPO and shares Listed on BSE & NSE.
	 •	 Sets up Diamond Division at Mumbai.

2008	�� •	 Top line crosses ` 597 crore.
	 •	 GJEPC Award for being the largest exporter of studded precious metal Jewellery.

2009	 •	� Sets up Verigold Jewellery (UK) Ltd.
	 •	 Sets up Renaissance Adrienne LLC, USA.
	 •	 Formation of Renaissance Foundation.
	 •	 Top line crosses ` 750 crore.
	 •	 Receives ‘Emerging India Awards 2009’.

2010	 •	 Sets up Unit V in SEEPZ, Andheri

2011	 •	 Acquires N. Kumar Diamond Exports Ltd. along with its wholly owned subsidiaries.
	 •	 Sets up Renaissance Jewellery Bangladesh Pvt. Ltd.
	 •   Sets up Unit VI in SEEPZ, Andheri
	 •	 Sets up Domestic Division at Mumbai
	 •	 Sets up Diamond Division at Bhavnagar
              •	 Acquires Caro Fine Jewellery Pvt. Ltd.
              •	 GJEPC Award for being the largest exporter of studded precious metal Jewellery.

2012	 •	 GJEPC Award for being the largest exporter of studded precious metal Jewellery.
	 •	 Incorporated Aurell Jewellery LLP.K
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If undelivered please return to:

Registrar & Transfer Agents

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.
C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound,

L.B.S. Marg, Bhandup, Mumbai - 400 078.
Tel.: 022-25946970   Fax: 022-25962691

Email: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in    
Website: www.linkintime.co.in 

Annual Report 2013-2014
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